
 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Milne, Convener; and Councillors Boulton, Corall, Cormie, Finlayson, 

Grant, Greig, Jaffrey, Lawrence, MacGregor, Jean Morrison MBE, Samarai, 
Jennifer Stewart, Thomson and Townson. 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN, 21 October 2013 
 

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

 The Members of the PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
are requested to meet in Committee Room 2 - Town House on TUESDAY, 29 OCTOBER 
2013 at 9.00 am. 

 
JANE G. MACEACHRAN 

 HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

 Members, please note that letters of objection not included in the report pack are available to 
view in the members' library 

 

 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

 1.1  Minute of Meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee 
of 26 September 2013 - for approval  (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

 PLANNING APPLICATIONS WHICH ARE THE SUBJECT OF WRITTEN 
REPORTS 

 

 WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF APPROVAL 

 

 2.1  Site at Maidencraig, North and South of the A944 - Mixed use development 
incorporating residential, commercial uses, community facilities, open 
space, landscaping and associated infrastructure  (Pages 13 - 64) 

  Reference Number - 130265 
 

 2.2  Units 8 & 9, Queens Links Leisure Park, Links Road - Change of use from 
Class 11 assembly and leisure to Class 1 non-food goods, including coffee 
shop and linking of both units to form one single unit and associated works  
(Pages 65 - 108) 

  Reference Number - 130488 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 2.3  Ardene House, Skene Road, Kingswells - Erection of Class 4 three storey 
office development (17,129 SQ M), 425 car parking spaces, associated 
infrastructure, access, landscaping and ancillary works  (Pages 109 - 170) 

  Reference Number - 130400 
 

 2.4  Edgehill House, North Deeside Road, Milltimber - Replacement of existing 
house and construction of five additional dwellings with associated 
infrastructure, improved access and tree protection works  (Pages 171 - 
206) 

  Reference Number – 130211 
 

 2.5  50-52 College Bounds, Old Aberdeen - Proposed entrance light  (Pages 
207 - 216) 

  Reference Number - 120374 
 

 2.6  Former Bucksburn Petrol Station, Chapel of Stoneywood to Fairley Road - 
Certificate of appropriate alternative development for petrol filling station 
with associated Class 1 retail shop; sale of agricultural vehicles and 
equipment; and garden centre and nursery  (Pages 217 - 244) 

  Reference Number - 120374 
 

 WHERE THE RECOMMENDATION IS ONE OF REFUSAL 

 

 3.1  122 Broomhill Road, Aberdeen - Change of use of vacant car showroom to 
Class 1 (Shop), shopfront alterations and other external alterations, 
erection of gate/fence to rear and other associated works, including 
footpath and parking improvements  (Pages 245 - 292) 

  Reference Number - 130910 
 

 OTHER REPORTS 

 

 4.1  Planning Digest  (Pages 293 - 296) 
 

 4.2  Confirmation of Tree Preservation Orders  (Pages 297 - 300) 
 

 
 
 

Website Address:  www.aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Martin Allan 
on 01224 523057 or email mallan@aberdeencity.gov.uk or Martyn Orchard on 01224 
523097 or email morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 



 
 

 
PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT SUB COMMITTEE 

 
 

ABERDEEN, 26 September 2013. Minute of Meeting of the PLANNING 
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE.  Present:-  Councillor Milne, 
Convener; and Councillors Boulton, Corall, Cormie, Delaney (substituting for 
Councillor Jennifer Stewart from Article 10), Finlayson, Grant, Greig, Jaffrey, 
Lawrence, Jean Morrison, Jennifer Stewart, Thomson and Townson.  

 
 
The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found at:- 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=348&MId=2875&Ver=4 

 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
1. (A) The Convener welcomed members to the first proper meeting of the 
Planning Development Management Committee, and thanked those members who had 
served on the Development Management Sub Committee who were not continuing. 
 
 (B) With reference to Article 3 of the minute of meeting of the Development 
Management Sub Committee of 18 July 2013, the Committee was advised by the Head 
of Planning and Sustainable Development that the developer had agreed that the 
replacement football pitch at Stoneywood Estate (121652) would meet the 
requirements of the North East Junior Football Association, as had been requested by 
the Sub Committee. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the update. 
 
 
MINUTE OF MEETING OF THE PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE OF 22 AUGUST 2013 
 
2. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 22 August 
2013. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute. 
 
 
MINUTE OF MEETING OF THE PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
COMMITTEE (VISITS) OF 29 AUGUST 2013 
 
3. The Committee had before it the minute of the meeting of the Committee (Visits) 
of 29 August 2013. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute.  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 1.1

Page 1



 
 

 
 
 

LAND TO EAST OF WELLINGTON ROAD - 130420 
 
4. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee express a willingness to approve the application in respect of 
planning permission for a mixed use development comprising 45 residential units, 3 
commercial units and associated car parking, with consent being withheld until the 
existing legal agreement for the wider OP72 site had been amended to apply to this 
application, and the developer had made an appropriate financial contribution in lieu of 
onsite affordable housing provision via an appropriate mechanism agreed by the 
Council, subject to the following conditions:- 

(1)  That no residential unit within the development hereby approved shall be 
occupied unless a combined footway/cycleway link from the new community to 
the footway of Langdykes Road has been constructed via the existing route of 
the track that links Whitehills Road to Langdykes Road and in accordance with a 
further detailed scheme that has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the planning authority; unless the planning authority has given written consent 
for a variation; (2)  That none of the commercial units hereby approved shall be 
used other than for uses within Use Classes 1, 2 or 4 of the Use Classes 
(Scotland) Order 1997 unless planning permission has been granted for a 
change of use of the unit; (3)  That no development pursuant to the planning 
permission hereby approved shall be carried out unless a full site waste 
management plan for the processing of construction and demolition waste has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. No work 
shall be carried out unless in accordance with the approved plan unless the 
planning authority has given written consent for a variation; (4)  That no 
development shall take place unless a scheme of all drainage works designed to 
meet the requirements of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority and 
thereafter no part of the development shall be occupied unless the drainage has 
been installed in complete accordance with the said scheme; (5)  That no 
development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved shall be 
carried out unless there has been submitted to and approved in writing for the 
purpose by the planning authority a further detailed scheme of landscaping for 
the site, which scheme shall include indications of all existing trees and 
landscaped areas on the land, and details of any to be retained, together with 
measures for their protection in the course of development, and the proposed 
areas of tree/shrub planting including details of numbers, densities, locations, 
species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting; (6)  That all planting, seeding 
and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of landscaping shall be carried 
out in the first planting season following the completion of the development and 
any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 
be replaced in the next planting season with others of a size and species similar 
to those originally required to be planted, or in accordance with such other 
scheme as may be submitted to and approved in writing for the purpose by the 
planning authority; (7)  That the use hereby granted planning permission shall 
not take place unless provision has been made within the application site for 
refuse storage and disposal in accordance with a scheme which has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority; and (8) That no 

Page 2



 
 

 
 
 

development shall take place unless there has been submitted to and approved 
in writing a detailed Green Transport Plan, incorporating both the residential and 
non-residential elements of the proposal, which outlines sustainable measures to 
deter the use of the private car, in particular single occupant trips and provides 
detailed monitoring arrangements, modal split targets and associated penalties 
for not meeting targets. 

 
The Convener moved, seconded by Councillor Corall:- 

That the application be approved in accordance within the recommendation 
contained within the report, subject to condition (5) being amended as follows:- 

(5) That no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby 
approved shall be carried out unless there has been submitted to and 
approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority a further 
detailed scheme of landscaping, which shall demonstrate means of 
landscaping both within the application site and on adjacent land included in 
the wider development and shall incorporate appropriate means of 
screening car parking areas when viewed from Wellington Road. Said 
scheme shall include indications of all existing trees and landscaped areas 
on the land, and details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development, and the proposed areas of 
tree/shrub planting including details of numbers, densities, locations, 
species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting. 

 
Councillor Finlayson moved as an amendment, seconded by Councillor Boulton:- 

That the application be refused on the grounds of road safety as the proposal to 
position a bus stop on the main road, instead of the installation of a bus lay-by, 
would result in a road safety hazard which would not be in the interests of 
pedestrians and other road users, as well as the supermarket on the site being 
serviced from the main access road, as opposed to the rear of the building, 
which was also a road safety hazard. 

 
On a division, there voted:-   for the motion  (9)  -  the Convener; and Councillors Corall, 
Cormie, Grant, Jaffrey, Lawrence, Jean Morrison, Thomson and Townson;   for the 
amendment  (4)  -  Councillors Boulton, Finlayson, Greig and Jennifer Stewart.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the motion.  
 
 
431 UNION STREET - 130615 
 
5. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee express a willingness to approve the application in respect of 
planning permission for a change of use from bar/nightclub to office space and 
associated car parking, including the erection of a multi-storey development and partial 
demolition of the existing building, with consent being withheld until such time as a 
developer’s contribution had been secured towards works to the local road network, 
core paths/public realm improvements in the area and the Strategic Transport Fund, 
subject to the following conditions:- 

Page 3



 
 

 
 
 

(1) That no development shall take place unless a scheme, including submission 
of materials samples, detailing all external finishing materials to the roof and 
walls of the development hereby approved has been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the planning authority and thereafter the development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the details so agreed; (2) That full details, 
including elevational and cross sectional drawings, shall be submitted to show all 
works, including repair and cleaning works, to the remaining fabric of the listed 
building. These shall include the installation of the Capitol's art deco style clocks 
within the building.  That all works, as so agreed, to the frontage, canopy, and 
interior of the existing building - the 'Capitol' - must be fully implemented prior to 
any part of the development being brought into use. These shall be in 
accordance with the approved plans, or others subsequently approved and the 
building shall not be used unless the entrance is fully restored and available for 
use as the main entrance to the building, unless otherwise agreed in writing with 
the planning authority; (3) That the proscenium arch, decorative plaster work 
over the organ expression shutters and organ and all associated pipes, 
instruments and equipment required for the organ to be brought back into use, 
shall be carefully removed prior to any demolition works taking place. The organ 
and associated items shall be dismantled/removed and taken safely to storage 
facilities, in complete accordance with the method statement as submitted and 
approved as part of this permission, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the 
planning authority. The proscenium arch and decorative plaster work shall be 
removed and stored in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority; (4) That the development hereby 
granted planning permission shall not be occupied unless the cycle storage 
facilities as shown on the approved drawings, or others subsequently approved 
have been provided; (5)  That the development hereby approved shall not be 
occupied unless there has been submitted to and approved in writing a detailed 
Travel Plan, which outlines sustainable measures to deter the use of the private 
car in accordance with the principles set out in the Transport Assessment (TA) 
by Fairhursts issue 4, or other TA as subsequently approved; (6) That no window 
replacement shall take place unless there has been submitted to, and approved 
in writing by, the planning authority a full survey of the windows showing that 
they are beyond repair. Any replacement frames shall match those existing and 
shall be implemented fully in accordance with details, including cross sections, 
submitted to and approved in writing by, the planning authority; (7) That the 
existing entrance to the ‘Capitol’ shall be used as the main entrance to the entire 
development hereby granted permission, including the new build element 
extending back to Justice Mill Lane and the front part of the development shall 
not be functionally separated nor access physically blocked, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the planning authority; (8) That no window replacement 
shall take place unless there has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the planning authority a full survey of the windows showing that they are beyond 
repair. Any replacement frames shall match those existing and shall be 
implemented fully in accordance with details, including cross sections, submitted 
to, and approved in writing by, the planning authority; (9) That no development 
shall commence on site until a site specific Construction Method Statement 
(CMS) has been submitted and approved in writing by the planning authority in 
consultation with SEPA (and other agencies as appropriate). All works on site 
must be undertaken in accordance with the approved CMS unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the planning authority; (10) That the building shall not be 

Page 4



 
 

 
 
 

brought into use unless the handrails to the stairs and escalators have been 
retained, restored and replaced in accordance with a scheme to be submitted to, 
and approved in writing by the planning authority; (11) That the shop frontage 
within the application site to the east of the Capitol entrance shall be refurbished 
generally to match the existing shop front immediately to the west of the Capitol 
in accordance with a scheme, including detailed drawings and cross sections, to 
be submitted to and approved in writing with the planning authority. Neither the 
shop itself, nor the main development shall be brought into use unless the shop 
front has been refurbished in accordance with such a scheme; and (12)  That the 
building hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a scheme detailing 
compliance with the Council's 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings' supplementary 
guidance has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 
authority, and any recommended measures specified within that scheme for the 
reduction of carbon emissions have been implemented in full. 

 
The Convener moved, seconded by Councillor Grant:- 

(1) that the application be approved in accordance within the recommendation 
contained within the report, subject to the following additional condition:- 

(13)  That the development shall not be brought into use unless there has 
been erected on the frontage of the building at high level, individually 
lettered illuminated signage 'CAPITOL', similar to that originally on the 
building, in accordance with details to be submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the planning authority, unless otherwise agreed in writing with 
the planning authority; and 

(2) to request the Education, Culture and Sport Committee to consider finding a 
suitable venue within the city for the organ to brought back into use. 

 
Councillor Greig moved as an amendment, seconded by Councillor Jennifer Stewart:- 

That the application be refused on the grounds (1) that the proposed 
development by reason of scale and design did not fit within the character of the 
conservation area and the historic environment; and (2) that there was 
insufficient car parking provision within the proposed development which would 
have an adverse impact on the surrounding area and would increase already 
existing car parking pressures.  

 
On a division, there voted:-   for the motion  (10)  -  the Convener; and Councillors 
Boulton, Corall, Cormie, Grant, Jaffrey, Lawrence, Jean Morrison, Thomson and 
Townson;   for the amendment  (3)  -  Councillors Finlayson, Greig and Jennifer 
Stewart.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the motion.  
 
 
LAND TO NORTH OF HOPETOUN GRANGE, BUCKSBURN - 130029 
 
6. With reference to Article 1 of the minute of its meeting of 29 August 2013, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 

Page 5



 
 

 
 
 

That the Committee express a willingness to approve the application in respect of 
planning permission for 65 residential houses, including infrastructure and landscaping, 
but to withhold the issue of the consent document until the applicant had entered into a 
legal agreement with the Council to secure the identified developer contributions 
towards primary education, community facilities, recreation, core path networks and the 
Strategic Transport Fund, subject to the following conditions:- 

(1)   That the Dollar flatted properties proposed as part of the residential units of 
the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless acoustically 
attenuated ventilators have been installed within the lounge accommodation of 
these aforementioned properties; (2) That no development pursuant to this 
planning permission shall take place unless there has been submitted to and 
approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority, a report on three 
days of noise measurements, to be undertaken at a representative location in 
the vicinity of the development.  These measurements should be weekday LAeq 
1 hour or 15 minute readings and calculated to obtain 18 hour LAeq (23:00 - 
07:00). Whilst these measurements may be unmanned, short term 
measurements when helicopters are in flight overhead should also be taken. If 
the noise measurement assessment report demonstrates the need for noise 
attenuation to be incorporated into the fabric of the residential units of the 
development hereby approved, then such attenuation measures as may be 
recommended by the planning authority shall be implemented in full prior to 
occupation of any residential unit; (3)  That the SUDS basin is constructed as per 
the detail included in the Drainage Assessment Issue 1 by Fairhurst dated 4 July 
2013, and is capable of retaining flows up to and including the 1 in 200 year 
store event plus climate change; (4)  That the discharge rate, as outlined in the 
Drainage Assessment Issue 1 by Fairhurst dated 4 July 2013, does not exceed 
the greenfield flows as per the design calculations; (5)  That no development 
shall take place unless there has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
planning authority detailed plans showing the visibility splays for all new road 
junctions, including the 3 driveways accessing onto Hopetoun Grange, and 
thereafter the junctions shall be constructed in full accordance with the approved 
plans; (6)  That the development hereby granted planning permission shall not 
be occupied unless the lane to the west of the site between the A96 and the 
point that it interacts with what will become the spine road to the future 
development to the west is upgraded to an adoptable standard for pedestrians 
and cyclists. Notwithstanding that the phasing of construction on site may impact 
on when safe access and use of the path by pedestrians may be available,  
details of the proposed upgrading work to the path must nevertheless be 
submitted to and approved by the planning authority, and the upgrading work 
must be completed prior to any residential unit being occupied; (7) That the 
development hereby granted planning permission shall be completed in full 
accordance with Drawing No DL002 Rev H which demonstrates the provision of 
a service strip between the street and residential dwellings along the proposed 
shared surface road, and that no future development takes place within the 
aforementioned service strip; (8) That no part of the development hereby 
approved shall be occupied unless a schedule of work relating to upgrading of 
bus shelters, seating, lighting, timetable information and boarding kerbs for bus 
stops on the A96 and on Sclattie Park identified in the Transport Statement 
(Issue 2 Rev 3 by Fairhurst) has been submitted to and approved by the 
planning authority, and subsequently the upgrading work has been implemented 
prior to the occupancy of any residential unit implemented; (9) That no 

Page 6



 
 

 
 
 

development pursuant to this planning permission shall take place unless formal 
approval has been secured for access under the trunk road (A96) and under a 
section of third party land lying immediately to the east of the site to provide 
connection to the proposed surface water drainage and public sewer; (10)  That 
no development pursuant to this planning permission shall take place, nor shall 
any part of the development hereby approved be occupied, unless there has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority, a detailed 
scheme of site and plot boundary enclosures for the entire development hereby 
granted planning permission, which scheme shall include no boundary enclosure 
above a maximum height of 1 metre being permitted to the front of any 
residential unit within the development hereby approved.  None of the buildings 
hereby granted planning permission shall be occupied unless the said scheme 
has been implemented in its entirety; (11)  That no development pursuant to the 
planning permission hereby approved shall be carried out unless there has been 
submitted to and approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority a 
further detailed scheme of landscaping for the site, which scheme shall include 
both soft  and water landscaping, indications of all existing trees and landscaped 
areas on the land and details of any to be retained, together with measures for 
their protection in the course of development, and shall also clearly identify the 
locations where root barrier protection shall be implemented.  The scheme shall 
include the proposed areas of trees/shrub planting including details of numbers, 
densities, locations, species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting, with all 
replacement planting on site undertaken on the basis of two for one for every 
tree removed.  Such landscaping scheme shall include a high percentage of 
native species both in terms of the proposed trees (eg Sessile oak, Scots pine, 
Field maple and aspen) and the hedgerows, whilst also taking into account that 
the choice of species should discourage bird activity (feeding/roosting) which 
may present a bird strike threat to aircraft operating at Aberdeen International 
Airport; (12)  That all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved 
scheme of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following 
the completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period 
of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season 
with others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be 
planted, or in accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and 
approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority; (13) That no 
development shall take place unless a plan showing those trees to be removed 
and those to be retained and a scheme for the protection of all trees to be 
retained on the site during construction works has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the planning authority and any such scheme as may have 
been approved has been implemented; (14) That any tree work which appears to 
become necessary during the implementation of the development shall not be 
undertaken without the prior written consent of the planning authority; any 
damage caused to trees growing on the site shall be remedied in accordance 
with British Standard 3998: 2010 "Recommendations for Tree Work" before the 
building hereby approved is first occupied; (15)  That no materials, supplies, 
plant, machinery, spoil, changes in ground levels or construction activities shall 
be permitted within the protected areas specified in the aforementioned scheme 
of tree protection without the written consent of the planning authority and no fire 
shall be lit in a position where the flames could extend to within 5 metres of 
foliage, branches or trunks; (16) That no development shall take place within the 

Page 7



 
 

 
 
 

application site until the applicant has secured the implementation of a 
programme of archaeological work which shall include post-excavation and 
publication work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has 
been submitted by the applicant and approved by the planning authority; (17)  
That no construction work pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall be undertaken by cranage or scaffolding of a height greater than 8.2 metres 
above ground level without prior consultation and approval of Aberdeen 
International Airport; (18) That no development pursuant to the planning 
permsision hereby approved shall take place until a bird hazard management 
plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority. 
The submitted plan shall include details of the developer's commitment to 
managing the risk of attracting birds to the site during excavation activities, and 
the measures in place for the safe dispersal of birds and thereafter the agreed 
measures shall be implemented in full; (19) That no development shall take 
place unless details of all measures for deterring birds from the proposed SUDS 
scheme have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 
authority. Such details shall outline the meaures being put in place to avoid 
endangering the safe operation of aircraft through the attraction of birds and 
thereafter such measures should be implemented in complete accordance with 
the approved details; (20)  That there shall be no means of direct vehicular 
access from the application site to the trunk road (A96).  Pedestrian access to 
the trunk road shall be restricted to the footpath imediately to the west of the site; 
(21)  That the applicant shall liaise with Transport Scotland and its Operating 
Company in regard to the timing, traffic management and standard of 
construction required for the pipleine crossing under the trunk road (A96); (22)  
That no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved shall 
take place unless detailed plans showing lighting schemes required during 
construction and for the completed development are submitted and approved in 
writing by the planning authority.  Such lighting schemes shall incorporate flat 
glass, full cut off design with horizontal mountings, and shall ensure that no light 
spill occurs above the horizontal; (23) That no development shall take place 
unless a scheme detailing compliance with the Council's 'Low and Zero Carbon 
Buildings' supplementary guidance has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the planning authority, and any recommended measures specified 
within that scheme for the reduction of carbon emissions have been 
implemented in full.  Thereafter no building shall be occupied unless the 
recommended measures specified within that scheme for the reduction of carbon 
emissions have been implemented in full; (24)  That no development pursuant to 
this development shall take place unless further detailed specification has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority clearly 
demonstrating that the load-bearing capacity of the proposed combined 
cycleway/footpath is capable for use by emergency service vehicles; (25)  That 
no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved shall be 
carried out unless a method statement for the use of no-dig road and path 
construction within the root protection areas of retained trees has been 
submitted to and approved in writing for the purpose by the planning authority; 
(26) That no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall be carried out unless drawings showing specific finished ground levels, 
finished road levels, and finished ground floor levels of dwellings across the site 
have been submitted and approved in writing for the purpose by the planning 
authority; (27) That no felling of trees identified as category 1 or 1* in the Tree 

Page 8



 
 

 
 
 

Roost Assessment: Bats by EnviroCentre Ltd dated August 2013 takes place as 
a result of the development pursuant to this planning permission unless a pre-
felling bat inspection of the aformentioned trees, as detailed under Section 4.1 
Mitigation of the Assessment, is undertaken, in order to ensure bats are not 
present and that roosts will not be destroyed, and following inspection, should no 
bats be visible, that tree cavities are 'soft-felled' by an experienced contractor, 
and an equivalent number of bat boxes are installed in nearby retained trees to 
compensate for the loss of tree cavities; and  (28) That no part of the 
development hereby approved shall be occupied unless the spine road and 
associated footways as shown on drawing DL002 Rev M have been constructed 
in full accordance with the approved plans to the legal boundary of the 
application site, even if this requires the demolition of a section of boundary wall, 
unless the planning authority has given written consent for a variation. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation.  
 
 
MALCOLM ROAD, BUCKSBURN - 130489 
 
7. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee approve unconditionally the application in respect of planning 
permission for a proposed single storey extension to the existing Britannia Hotel to form 
a new lounge and bedrooms with external alterations. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the application subject to the following condition:- 

(1)  That no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall take place until a scheme detailing the widening of the car park access to 
accommodate coaches, has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
planning authority and the works thereby approved have been carried out in 
accordance with the approved scheme. 

 
 
THE ATHENAEUM, 15 UNION STREET - 130946 
 
8. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee approve the application in respect of planning permission for a 
change of use and conversion of the first to fourth floors of the existing building to form 
40 serviced apartments, and the installation of replacement windows and associated 
dormer windows and roof lights, subject the following conditions:- 

(1)  That the serviced apartments hereby granted planning permission shall not 
be occupied unless the cycle storage facilities as shown on drawing no. 
L(20)202 have been provided;  (2)  That the serviced apartments hereby granted 
planning permission shall not be occupied unless a noise assessment is carried 
out to confirm the effectiveness of the works and that the predicted sound 
reduction levels detailed in the Bureau Veritas noise assessment dated 26 June 

Page 9



 
 

 
 
 

2013 have been achieved and the assessment has been submitted to, and 
agreed in writing by the planning authority, in consultation with the 
Environmental Health Service; (3) That the property, inclusive of the serviced 
apartments and building access, shall be constructed in accordance with the 
recommended design described in the Bureau Veritas noise assessment dated 
26 June 2013, or in accordance with an equivalent scheme to meet specified 
noise reduction levels or ‘inaudibility’ criteria as may have been agreed in writing 
by the planning authority; (4) That the serviced apartments hereby granted 
planning permission shall not be occupied unless details of a mechanical 
ventilation system drawing air from the roof of the building shall be provided for 
the apartments fronting Union Street to minimise exposure to potential 
exceedances of the national Air Quality Objectives has been submitted to, and 
agreed in writing by the planning authority, in consultation with the 
Environmental Health Service; (5) That following the first six months of the 
approved development being brought into use, details shall be submitted to the 
planning authority highlighting how the issues identified in the submitted Travel 
Plan have been achieved; and (6) That none of the serviced apartments hereby 
approved shall be occupied for a period in excess of 90 days in any one 
calendar year by any one family, individual or group. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation.  
 
 
26 SPITAL, OLD ABERDEEN - 130849 
 
9. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee approve unconditionally the application in respect of planning 
permission for a change of use from residential property to house in multiple 
occupation. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation.  
 
 
LAND AT WESTER HUXTERSTONE, FAIRLEY ROAD, KINGSWELLS - 130404 
 
10. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee approve the application in respect of planning permission for the 
erection of a temporary building to house sales and marketing facilities to service the 
proposed residential development at the site, subject to the following conditions:- 

(1)  That the temporary buildng shall not be constructed until such time as an 
associated residential development has been approved; once this application 
has been approved the sales cabin shall be in place for a maximum period of 
two years; and (2)  That the development hereby approved shall not be occupied 
unless the car parking areas hereby granted planning permission have been 
constructed, drained, laid-out and demaracted in accordance with drawing No. 

Page 10



 
 

 
 
 

APL_102 of the plans hereby approved or such other drawing as may 
subsequently be submitted and approved in writing by the planning authority. 
Such areas shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose other than the 
purpose of the parking of cars ancillary to the development and use thereby 
granted approval.  

 
The Committee was addressed by Councillor Delaney, one of the local members for the 
area, who expressed concerns regarding the use of advertising hoardings at 
neighbouring sites. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve the recommendation; and 
(ii) in regard to advertising hoardings, to agree in principle to the use of the following 

condition for future applications:- 
(1) That the hoarding/temporary building hereby approved shall not be 
constructed until such a time as an associated residential development has been 
approved; once this application has been approved the hoarding/sales cabin shall 
be in place for a maximum period of two years and shall remain on site no longer 
than four weeks after the last house of the associated residential development 
has been sold. 

 
 
70 COUNTESWELLS ROAD - 130711 
 
11. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which recommended:- 
 
That the Committee approve the application in respect of planning permission for a 
number of alterations to the existing property, including a new entrance with associated 
shop front alterations and the installation of new roof mounted refrigeration equipment, 
subject to the following condition:- 

(1)  That the refrigeration plan shall comprise the equipment detailed in the KP 
Associates (UK) Ltd noise report dated 19 July 2013, or if alternative plant is 
proposed, the plant sound power level shall not exceed the sound power level of 
the plant detailed in the report.  

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation.  
 
 
PLANNING DIGEST 
 
12. The Committee had before it a report by the Head of Planning and Sustainable 
Development which advised members of a recent appeal decision. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee note the outcome of the appeal decision.  
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation.  
- RAMSAY MILNE, Convener. 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Development Management Committee  
 

SITE AT MAIDENCRAIG, NORTH AND SOUTH 
OF THE A944 
 
MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT INCORPORATING 
RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL USES, 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES, OPEN SPACE, 
LANDSCAPING AND ASSOCIATED 
INFRASTRUCTURE   
 
For: Bancon Developments Ltd 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Planning Permission in 
Principle 
Application Ref.   :  P130265 
Application Date:       28/02/2013 
Officer :                     Gareth Allison 
Ward : Kingswells/Sheddocksley/Summerhill (L 
Ironside/S Delaney/D Cameron) 

Advert  : Section 34 -Proj. Pub. 
Concern 
Advertised on: 01/05/2013 
Committee Date:  
Community Council : Comments 
 

 
  

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 13



RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Willingness to approve conditionally, but to withhold the issue of the 
consent document until the applicant has entered into a Legal Agreement 
to deliver: 
 
1) Affordable Housing,  
2) Transfer of land ownership to allow potential improvements to the A944,  
3) Strategic Transport Fund contributions, and  
4) Developer contributions towards: 
 

� Primary Education; 
� Community Facilities; 
� Recreation Facilities;  
� Library Facilities; 
� Core Path Networks; 
� Healthcare Facilities;  
� Flood Prevention Scheme; and  
� Road improvements to mitigate the impact of development. 

 
DESCRIPTION 
The application site refers to two specific areas of land located to the west of the 
city centre.  Identified as Maidencraig North East (OP44) and Maidencraig South 
East (OP43) under the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, they lie to the north 
and south of the Lang Stracht (A944).  Zoned under the Land Release Policy 
(LR1), the sites provide a combined opportunity for 750 no. homes. The whole of 
the site has a southern aspect, sloping from north to south, and in terms of 
landscaping is generally undefined, with a typically rural identity running through 
both areas. 
 
Situated adjacent to Sheddocksley on the western edge of the City, OP44 has a 
gradual slope from the north of the site down to the A944.  The area extends to 
22.8 hectares, and comprises the fields which surround Whitemyres House 
(Grade B listed) and Old Whitemyres Farmhouse (Grade Cs listed), and Fernhill 
Farm.  The northern section of the boundary with Sheddocksley is defined by a 
thick tree belt, and the southern section by areas of hedgerow and sporadic 
trees.  Further tree planting forms the northern boundary of the site, which in 
combination with general topography, screens the site from the north. 
 
OP43, located west of the Summerhill residential area, is much more undulating 
in nature, extending to 29.8 hectares and encompassing the land from the A944 
in the north, dropping steeply to the southern boundary with Den of Maidencraig.  
Beyond the Den Burn Valley to the south of the site is the Den of Maindencraig 
Local Nature Reserve, with Queens Road beyond.  There is a Tree Preservation 
Order to the south of the Maidencraig Steadings, which contains 1no. Grade Cs 
listed building, with a further Order covering part of Maidencraig Wood. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
Maidencraig south east was originally identified within the Aberdeen Local Plan 
2008 as Strategic Housing Land Reserve (SHLR30).  The Local Plan (p28)  
 
 

Page 14



confirmed that this site would be planned through the Local Development Plan.   
Both sites were then identified in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 
under Policy LR1: Land Release and are suitable for development within the 
2006-2016 plan period. 
 
PROPOSAL 
This is an application for Planning Permission in Principle for mixed use 
development incorporating residential, commercial uses, community facilities, 
open space, landscaping and associated infrastructure.   
 
Supporting Documents 
The application has been supporting with the following documents: 
 
� Maidencraig Masterplan; 
� Maidencraig Masterplan Pre-Application Consultation Report; 
� Maidencraig Masterplan Non-technical Summary; 
� Transport Assessment; 
� Drainage Impact Assessment; 
� Masterplan Drainage Impact Assessment;  
� Ecological Assessment; and 
� Badger Protection Plan. 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed above relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at –  
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?130265 
On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION 
The proposed development was the subject to pre-application consultation (PAC) 
between the applicant and the local community, as required for applications 
falling within the category of major developments as defined in the ‘Hierarchy of 
Development’ Regulations.  A Proposal of Application Notice was submitted to 
the Council on 29th February 2012, and all the statutory requirements of the PAC, 
including the advertisement of two public events, were met by the applicants.  
 
The applicant’s have confirmed that the design for the site has evolved with 
continued input from the local community, whose input has helped shape the 
proposals to ensure that they meet the aspirations for the site.  Events that took 
place during the masterplanning process for the sites include: 
 
� Presentation to Mastrick, Sheddocksley and Summerhill Community Council 

early 2009; 
� LDP development bids exhibition 4 June 2009; 
� End June 2009 Kingswells Community discussions; 
� Meeting with Mastrick and Sheddocksley and Summerhill Community 

Councils – 8th February 2012; and 
� Community exhibition – 29 March 2012 – 30 March 2012. 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



The public consultation events on the 29th and 30th March 2012 were held at Curl 
Aberdeen, Eday Road, Aberdeen.  The format for both public consultation events 
was that of a drop-in exhibition with plans, aerial images, site analysis and 
indicative proposals all being available for inspection.  Members of staff from the 
applicants and their Design Team were available to explain the proposals and 
record any public comments.  It was estimated that more than 100 people 
attended the two events, with a total of 23 written responses being received in 
the period after the events.  The main issues arising from this consultation 
included traffic concerns, education, impact on wildlife, and provision of 
community facilities, health-care and nurseries.  Full details of the comments 
received for the engagement process and the responses made can be found in 
Appendix 6.1 of the Masterplan and the feedback received through the PAC. 
 
The Maidencraig Masterplan was approved by Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure Committee as Supplementary Guidance on 22 January 2013.  It 
was ratified as Supplementary Guidance by the Scottish Government in April 
2013 following the statutory four week consultation period.  The following list 
highlights those that were consulted, the results of which were then reported to 
the Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure Committee: 
 
� Mastrick, Sheddocksley and Summerhill Community Council; 
� Kingswells Community Council;  
� Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority; 
� Aberdeenshire Council; 
� Forestry Commission Scotland; 
� Scottish Water; 
� SEPA; 
� Scottish Natural Heritage; 
� Historic Scotland; 
� Scottish Enterprise Grampian; 
� Transport Scotland; 
� NHS Grampian; 
� NESTRANS; and 
� Planning Gain. 
 
Since the period of submitting the Proposal of Application Notice, the applicants 
have continued to engage with the Planning Authority and other relevant bodies, 
including NHS, education and bus providers, throughout the development 
process prior to the submission of this planning application. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the the Planning Development Management 
Committee because it has attracted more than five letters of representation. 
Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of 
Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
ACC Roads Project Team - Request various transport related infrastructure 
improvements, including off site works and contribution to the Council’s Strategic  
 
 
 

Page 16



Transport Fund.  The Roads Project Team Memorandum is included with the 
Committee agenda papers. 
 
Transport Scotland Trunk Road Network Management - No objection subject to 
condition restricting the number of residential units to be occupied (182 units) 
prior to construction of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (AWPR), to 
prevent any adverse affect on the safe and efficient operation of the trunk road 
network. 
 
ACC Flooding Unit - No objection subject to conditions relating to proposed 
culverting measures and agreement of developer contribution; 
 
Scottish Water - No objection subject to separate application directly to Scottish 
Water by applicant for connection to existing infrastructure; 
 
SEPA - No objection subject to further consultation on individual detailed / 
Matters Specified in Conditions (MSC) application phases for the site; 
 
ACC Environmental Health - Request conditions regarding suppression of dust 
during construction, control of construction hours, noise nuisance, sewage 
systems, and refuse disposal; 
 
SNH - No objections subject to conditions relating to badger protection; 
 
Developer Contributions Team - The development must provide an appropriate 
level of affordable housing on site and/or financial contribution for the same 
purpose, along with contributions towards enhancement of primary education; 
community facilities; recreation facilities; libraries; health-care facilities and 
improvement works and links to the Core Path network in the vicinity.  These 
matters are to be delivered through legal agreement under the provision of S75 
of the planning acts; 
 
Education - Advise that the development can be accommodated within existing 
secondary school capacity but that enhancement of primary school capacity is 
required. 
 
Police Scotland - No objection subject to further consultation on individual 
detailed / MSC application phases for the site; and 
 
Community Council - Comments received, however these relate directly to the 
Planning System and are not related specifically to this application. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
A total of 11 No. letters of representations have been received to the application.  
10 No. of these were received in respect of the original application submission.  A 
further letter was received from Kingswells Community Council, however as 
noted above this contained comments relating to the planning system in general, 
and is not a formal objection to the proposal.  Following submission of additional 
information and supporting documents, neighbours were re-notified and the 
application re-advertised.  5 No. representations were subsequently received.  1  
 

Page 17



No. of these was a new representation; the remaining were copies of 
representations submitted to the original proposal.  The main issues contained 
within all representations can be summarised as follows: 
 
Landscape Impact - The proposal is unnecessary within the city.  It would result 
in a loss of green belt and rural lifestyle and would have an adverse impact on 
existing wildlife and natural habitats.  Furthermore a Tree Preservation Order 
(TPO) is shown on the plans which is inaccurate and should be removed before 
any approval is considered.  
 
Existing Amenity - The development would result in a loss of light and privacy of 
existing residences.  Furthermore the proximity of houses to the existing boarding 
kennels in the south of the site may result in complaints from residents over noise 
nuisance, subsequently impacting on the amenity and service currently provided 
by the business. 
 
Drainage - Existing drainage systems would not have the capacity to adequately 
cope with the new development, which could then have a detrimental impact on 
both existing and proposed houses, roads and fields.  The land shown for the 
SUDS basin to the south-east of the development is not capable of supporting 
the infrastructure required to construct the basin and should be moved to the 
west of the development. 
 
Traffic & Access - Existing road networks within the area are already congested.  
The proposed development will only lead to further congestion and safety 
concerns.  Access to existing houses within the site should remain unaltered as 
per existing title deeds, and permission will not be given to developers to cut 
across this.  Advanced Stop Lines should be provided for cyclists, whilst there is 
a lack of clarity regarding both cycle provision within the main bus route, and the 
potential conflict between pedestrians and road uses in the Safer Streets Design.  
The proposed access point at Uist Road is not welcomed by residents. 
 
Local Impact - Existing public transport links are inadequate, which will only be 
exasperated by the development.  Proposed bus links would cause disturbance 
to existing residents, whilst local schools will not be able to cope with additional 
numbers as a result of the development.  The development would also affect the 
value of existing residences in the area, and may have a detrimental impact on 
local services such as phone signal, TV and internet services. 
 
All of the above concerns are taken into full consideration in the evaluation 
section below. 
 
 PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) 66 ‘Housing’ - The key objective of the Scottish 
Government is sustainable economic growth.  The planning system should 
contribute to raising the rate of new house-building by identifying a generous 
supply of land for the provision of a range of housing in the right places. The  
 
 

Page 18



planning system should enable the development of well designed, energy 
efficient, good quality housing in sustainable locations and allocate a generous 
supply of land to meet identified housing requirements across all tenures. 
 
SPP 165 ‘Transport’ - Development should encourage greater use of sustainable 
transport modes.  Transport assessments and green travel plans should be a key 
part assessing development proposals. 
 
Designing Streets: A Policy Statement for Scotland - Provides guidance on street 
design and marks a change in the emphasis of guidance towards place-making 
and away from a system focused upon the dominance of motor vehicles. 
 
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan 
Economic Growth – The Structure plan sets a target to increase the population of 
the city region to 480,000 by 2030.  It identifies Aberdeen City as a key growth 
area and allocates a total of 16,500 housing units for the period 2007- 2016.  
Opportunities should be provided which encourage economic development, 
improving the essential strategic infrastructure necessary to allow the economy to 
grow over the long term.   
 
Accessibility – All new development should contribute towards reducing the need 
to travel and encourage people to walk, cycle or use public transport by making 
these attractive choices. 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP) 
Policy LR1 – Land Release – The site is zoned as Land Release within the ALDP 
and encompasses both Opportunity Sites OP43 Maidencraig South East and 
OP44 Maidencraig North East.  Both are identified as opportunities for 
development, and are allocated under the phase 1 release for housing 
development in the period from 2007-2016 for 450 and 300 homes respectively, 
with Policy LR1 stating that housing development within these areas will be 
approved in principle.  Both areas include sections zoned under Policy NE1 
Green Space Network, whilst there is risk of flooding to the south east site.  The 
site is identified within the Maidencraig Masterplan which was ratified as 
Supplementary Guidance by Scottish Government in April 2013. 
 
Policy NE1 – Green Space Network (GSN) – The City Council will protect, 
promote and enhance the wildlife, recreational, landscape and access value of 
the Green Space Network.  Masterplanning of new developments should 
determine the location and extent of the Green Space Network within these 
areas.  Development which has any impact on existing wildlife habitats, or 
connections between them, or other features of value to natural heritage, open 
space, landscape and recreation must be mitigated through enhancement of 
Green Space Network. 
 
Policy H3 – Density – The City Council will seek an appropriate density of 
development on all housing allocations and windfall sites. All residential 
developments of over one hectare must meet a minimum density of 30 dwellings 
per hectare (net).  
 
 
 

Page 19



Policy H4 – Housing Mix – Housing developments of larger than 50 units are 
required to achieve an appropriate mix of dwelling types and sizes, in line with a 
Masterplan. 
 
Policy H5 – Affordable Housing – Housing developments of 5 units or more are 
required to contribute no less than 25% of the total number of units as affordable 
housing, in line with Supplementary Guidance. 
 
Policy I1 – Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions – Development 
must be accompanied by the infrastructure, services and facilities required to 
support new or expanded communities and the scale and type of developments 
proposed. 
 
Policy CF2 – New Community Facilities – In significant greenfield developments, 
where a likely need is identified through the masterplanning process, sites shall 
be reserved for new community facilities. 
 
Policy NE4 – Open Space Provision in New Development – Communal or public 
open space should be provided in all residential developments, including those 
on brownfield sites. 
 
Policy NE8 – Natural Heritage – Development that, taking into account any 
proposed mitigation measures, has an adverse effect on a protected species or 
an area designated because of its natural heritage value will only be permitted 
where it satisfies the relevant criteria set out in Scottish Planning Policy.  
 
Policy T2 – Managing the Transport Impact of Development – New developments 
will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken to minimise 
the traffic generated. 
 
The following policies are also of relevance: 
 
� Policy D1:  Architecture and Placemaking; 
� Policy D3:   Sustainable & Active Travel; 
� Policy D6:   Landscape;  
� Policy NE5:   Trees & Woodlands; 
� Policy NE6:   Flooding & Drainage; 
� Policy NE9:   Access & Informal Recreation; 
� Policy NE10: Air Quality; 
� Policy R6: Waste Management Requirements for New Development; and 
� Policy R7: Low & Zero Carbon Buildings. 
 
Aberdeen City Council Supplementary Guidance (SG) 
 
The following SG documents are relevant material considerations: 
 
� Maidencraig Masterplan; 
� Transport & Accessibility; 
� Affordable Housing; 
� Landscape Strategy Part 2 – Landscape Guidelines; 
� Open Space; 
 
 Page 20



� Protecting Trees & Woodlands; 
� Trees & Woodland Strategy for Aberdeen; 
� Drainage Impact Assessments; 
� Infrastructure & Developer Contributions Manual; 
� Air Quality Supplementary Guidance; 
� Waste Management; and 
� Low & Zero Carbon Buildings. 
 
EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
For the purpose of this evaluation; the application is for planning permission in 
principle and accordingly, the consideration of each aspect of the proposal will 
deal primarily with the principle of the development rather than any specific 
details of design, materials etc.   
 
Principle of Development 
SPP sets out the Government’s core principles that underpin the modernised 
planning system. It states the system ‘should be genuinely plan-led’ and there 
should be ‘a clear focus on the quality of outcomes, with due attention given to 
the sustainable use of land, good design and the protection and enhancement of 
the built and natural environment’.  SPP also states that the planning system 
should proactively support development that will contribute to sustainable 
economic growth and to high quality sustainable places, whilst protecting and 
enhancing the quality of the natural and built environment as an asset for that 
growth. It states that planning authorities should take a positive approach to 
development.  It is in this context that the application requires to be assessed. 
 
The proposed mixed use development fully accords with the aspirations of SPP 
66 ‘Housing’ and the Aberdeen City & Shire Structure Plan 2009, in particular its 
targets for housing provision.  The allocation of the site was pursued through the 
ALDP preparation process with the site being identified for development by the 
Council, and subsequently ratified by the Reporter appointed by the Scottish 
Government and thereafter by the full Council.  The submitted plans show a 
scheme that fulfils the phased release housing allocations identified within Policy 
LR1 of the ALDP and the relevant Opportunity Sites.  The proposed development 
has been supported by a process of community and pre-application consultation 
by the applicant, incorporating the preparation of the Maidencraig Masterplan; 
now adopted as Supplementary Guidance, which has informed the overall 
development approach to the site.  
 
The allocation of the site in the ALDP includes a 70m wide belt of GSN running 
along the eastern edge of the site.  Areas of woodland to the north; and the Den 
of Maidencraig Local Nature Reserve to the south; offer valuable contributions to 
the GSN.  The Masterplan process identified the need to connect both areas 
along the eastern boundary of the site, providing a visual buffer between the site  
 
 

Page 21



and Sheddocksley / Summerhill, and avoiding fragmentation of the GSN.  
Through the Masterplan process it was also agreed to provide a second strip 
along the western edge of the site.  Whilst the eastern belt would be less than 
70m deep as indicated in the ALDP, the benefits of the additional belt are 
considered sufficient to mitigate the lesser depth: 
 
� Additional links between the woodlands to the north and the the Den of 

Maidencraig to the south;  
� Connection of 2 no. additional green corridors to the south of the site; 
� A combined depth in excess of the 70m depth that would be provided by 1 no. 

belt; 
� Adequate width in both belts to provide shelter and wildlife habitats; and 
� Better connection and permeability of the GSN within the site as a whole. 
 
The Planning Authority is satisfied that, notwithstanding the lesser depth of the 
eastern belt as previously indicated in the ALDP, the combined areas of GSN 
within the whole site are sufficient to protect and enhance the existing wildlife, 
recreational, landscape and access value of the GSN.  The final locations and 
extent of GSN within the site have been fully informed by the Masterplanning 
process for the development, complying with Policy NE1 of the ALDP. 
 
Maidencraig Masterplan 
The proposal accords with the general aspirations of this document, which is an 
important material consideration that weighs in favour of the development.  The 
proposed scale of development and general urban form are considered to accord 
with the Masterplan’s wider design objectives.   
 
The indicative development layout, form and scale are considered to respect the 
nature of the existing site; connecting to the established residential areas to the 
east whilst providing a soft transition between the urban realm and countryside to 
the west, and so according with the contextual requirements of Policy D1 of the 
ALDP.  The general scale and pattern of development proposed on the site and 
its urban form are considered to accord with the wider objectives of Designing 
Streets, and it has been demonstrated that adequate public open space would be 
provided within the site as per Policy NE4 of the ALDP.  An acceptable mix and 
variety of dwelling types and sizes are proposed throughout the site, in line with 
the approved Masterplan and Policy H4 of the ADLP.  Owing to the proposed 
nature and location of development, there would be no adverse impact on the 
privacy or amenity of existing residents resulting from the scale or proximity of 
housing proposed.  It is noted that such elements will be assessed in full detail 
through the detailed / MSC application process.  With regards the amenity of 
proposed residences, it is noted that there exists on the southern site a long 
established animal boarding establishment.  This not only caters for dogs and 
cats but also includes the Dog Action Working Group Scotland (DAWGS) which 
finds homes for unwanted pets.  There is therefore the potential for noise 
nuisance, such as dog barking, to any new housing nearby.  With this in mind, 
and also having considered the general environmental impact of the 
development, the Council’s Environmental Health Officer has requested the 
imposition of conditions in order to protect the amenity of nearby residents and  
 
 

Page 22



prevent risk of environmental pollution.  Again, the finer details such as house 
location / proximities etc will be dealt with through the detailed / MSC applications 
process. 
 
In establishing whether a proposed density of development is appropriate and 
may be considered acceptable for a specific site, the minimum levels sought 
through Policy H3 of the ALDP (ie 30 units per hectare) cannot be applied in 
isolation.  One should take a balanced approach and recognise that no two sites 
within the city are the same. 
 
It must be noted that the purpose of this policy is to fulfil the strategic targets of 
the Structure Plan.  This states that developments such as this should ‘generally 
have no less than 30 dwellings per hectare’ and should be ‘in line with approved 
supplementary guidance’.  From this it can be derived that the figure is a 
guideline that should be considered in tandem with all other material 
considerations.  In this instance there is a clear need for the level of proposed 
development on a site to be considered within the context of the surrounding 
area and its particular characteristics, and matters such as the relationship 
between existing residential areas, surrounding rural space, and the level of open 
space provision on site are also relevant considerations in establishing this.  So 
whilst it is acknowledged that the density of development proposed 
(approximately 18 units per hectare) is considerably below policy expectations, 
the proposed density would actually be considered appropriate in terms of the 
context of the site; given the suburban residential edge to the east, and the rural 
nature of the adjacent lands to the north, west and south.  Furthermore, it 
accords with the ALDP allocation (identified as minimum 16 units per hectare) 
and the approved Masterplan SG.  The Planning Authority is thereby satisfied 
that failure to meet the guidelines of Policy H3 would not justify refusal of the 
application, given that the density figures exceed those allocated for the site 
under Policy LR1 of the ALDP and the approved SG, and thereby comply with 
the strategic visions of the Structure Plan. 
 
Compliance with all remaining detailed guidance contained in policies of the 
ALDP and related SG is dependent on assessment of the detailed layout and 
form of each individual phase of the development, and these are issues which 
are to be addressed by detailed / MSC application process.  
 
Flood Risk  
The proposed site is bounded to the south by the Denburn while the site to the 
north has a part open/part culverted watercourse which joins with the Denburn 
within the boundary of the south site.  In support of the application, the applicant 
has provided full surface water drainage proposals for the development, outlining 
the proposed method of surface water discharge.  A full Drainage Impact 
Assessment has been submitted, indicating the proposed SUDS facilities in 
addition to a full investigation and report of all watercourses within the vicinity of 
the site and the impact which the development shall have on the existing 
drainage network.  Furthermore, a Flood Risk Assessment has also been 
submitted to indicate any potential risk of flooding which the development poses 
to the existing communities.  Formal consultation with SEPA during the 
application process has confirmed that flood risk is not so significant that the  
 
 

Page 23



development potential of the site is compromised or that refusal is warranted.  
Subject to further consultation on all future detailed / MSC applications, there are 
no objections.  The Council’s Flooding Engineers have evaluated the proposals, 
including all information provided in the supporting documents, and have 
confirmed that subject to a financial contribution towards the provision of a 
proposed flood prevention scheme downstream of the development, they are 
satisfied that the drainage proposals are adequate for the development and 
would not pose a risk to existing communities, in line with Policy NE6 of the 
ALDP.  The value of the contribution and schedule for payments shall be agreed 
through Legal Agreement.  Scottish Water has confirmed no objections subject to 
a separate application being made to Scottish Water for connection to the 
existing infrastructure. 
 
Landscape Setting and Wildlife 
It is noted that a development of this size will have an inevitable degree of impact 
upon existing landscape and wildlife, in particular on a site such as this which has 
had such limited farming or active uses over the years.  However, it must also be 
accepted that the site has been zoned and allocated, through the appropriate 
procedures, for housing development.  Therefore, the specific impact on 
landscape and wildlife is unfortunately not sufficient reason to justify refusal of 
the application.  Rather, such impact must be managed to the highest degree 
possible, to enable the housing development to be delivered with minimal impact, 
and where possible to protect and enhance remaining areas of habitat and 
landscape.  In this regard, a detailed Ecological Assessment has been provided 
in support of the application, which formed the basis for formal consultation with 
the Council’s Environmental Planner and S.N.H.  Neither has raised objections, 
subject to conditions requiring the following: 
 
� Submission of a Nature Conservation Management Plan that incorporates the 

Local Nature Reserve and the Green Space Network; and 
� Submission of a finalised Badger Protection Plan prior to any works 

commencing on site. 
  
Purification of the above conditions would thereby ensure compliance with Policy 
NE8 of the ALDP, and fulfil the Planning Authority’s duty with regard to ensuring 
adequate protection is afforded to a protected species.  Additional impacts on all 
other identified flora, habitat and species would be dealt with through the detailed 
/ MSC application process for each individual phase of the development.   
 
Pedestrian & Cycle Access 
The development will provide various pedestrian and cycle connectivity both 
within and outwith the application site.  The Council’s Roads Engineer has 
confirmed no objections subject to conditions requiring: 
 
� Precise details of identified pedestrian and cycle connections from the eastern 

side of the site, north of the A944, to the existing residential area to the east;  
� Precise details of the proposed pedestrian and cycle access link to the B9119 

to the south east of the development, including an investigation of the existing 
infrastructure that would form part of this route; 

� Full implementation of a Prohibition of Driving Order on Core Path 29; and 
 
 
 Page 24



� Details of additional pedestrian and cycle access to the Lang Stracht.   
 
It is agreed that appropriate conditions be attached in respect of all of the above. 

 
Public Transport 
The Masterplan process identified that the site would be served by an extension 
to the existing bus service serving Skye Road and Lewis Road, however it 
proved difficult to both reach agreement with the public transport operators over 
this proposal, and provide a route that does not present detriment to existing 
public transport users.  An alternative proposal has now been presented which 
shows that new bus stops can be installed on the A944.  The Council’s Roads 
Engineer is willing to accept this proposal, provided that acceptable pedestrian 
accessibility to the proposed new bus stops from the development site can be 
established through the detailed / MSC application process for each phase of the 
development.  
 
Vehicular Access 
An analysis of both the existing road network and the proposed infrastructure has 
identified various impacts/issues that require to be addressed by the developer to 
enable the development.  Sufficient detail has been provided at this stage to 
show that solutions are available, however the specifics of each need to be 
identified and agreed.  These issues can be identified as follows: 
 
� Relevant orders required to prevent vehicular access from the existing insert 

road set back to the south of the A944; 
� Relevant orders required to prevent vehicular access along the western part 

of the insert road (i.e. those to the west of the western access); 
� Primary access by means of three new junctions (as per ALDP Infrastructure 

Requirements for Masterplan Zones); 
� Various junction improvements along the A944 network; 
� Provision of a segregated cycle facilities at various junctions along the A944; 
� Safeguarding a corridor of land of sufficient size necessary to allow the future 

upgrade/dualling of the A944; 
� Financial contribution to provide a solution to the collective impact, from this 

and other developments in the area, on the A944 Lang Stracht/ B9119 Skene 
Road (Switchback) junction; 

� Restriction on maximum number of units to be occupied (182 units) prior to 
completion and opening of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route. 

 
Each of the above specifics can be addressed by either use of planning 
conditions or Legal Agreement under the provision of S75 of the planning acts. 
 
Travel Plan 
In line with the Transport and Accessibility Supplementary Guidance a residential 
Travel Plan and Residential Travel Packs will be required for this development.  
Provision of these prior to occupation can be secured by condition. 

 
Strategic Transport Fund 
The development is eligible for a contribution to the Strategic Transport Fund, 
which can be addressed through Legal Agreement.   
 
 
 Page 25



Transport Summary 
For the above reasons, and subject to appropriate conditions and legal 
agreement, the proposed roads, transport and aspects of the development would 
be seen to accord with the relevant provisions of Policies D3, T2 and NE9 of the 
ALDP, SPP Transport and the strategic Accessibility targets of the Structure 
Plan. 
 
Education & Medical Facilities 
The ALDP indicates a requirement for contribution for enhancement of secondary 
school capacity at Northfield and Hazlehead Academies.  However further 
consultation with the Council’s Education Service and the Developer 
Contributions Team has shown that this is not in fact required to accommodate 
the development.  A contribution is however required in relation to enhancement 
of primary education facilities off site.  Likewise and in line with ALDP 
recommendations, a contribution is required for health-care facilities within the 
development site.  Provision of such contributions will be delivered by Legal 
Agreement, in line with Policy I1 of the ALDP. 
 
Developer Contributions  
The applicants have agreed to a comprehensive developer contributions package 
for this site, to deliver an appropriate level of affordable housing on site along 
with contributions towards enhancement of primary education; community 
facilities; recreation facilities; libraries; health-care facilities; and improvement 
works and links to the Core Path network in the vicinity.  These matters will 
ensure compliance with Policies H5 and I1 of the ALDP, and are to be included in 
the Legal Agreement under the provision of S75 of the planning acts, in addition 
to the transfer of land ownership, required infrastructure mitigation measures, 
and Strategic Transport Fund contribution as identified under the relevant 
sections above.   
 
Matters Raised in Letters of Representation 
Issues relating to landscape and wildlife impact; existing and proposed amenity; 
drainage; traffic/access; public transport; and impact on education facilities, have 
been addressed in the relevant topic sections identified above and have been the 
subject of lengthy discussion with the relevant statutory consultees.  Further to 
these, the remaining points raised in representations can be addressed as 
follows: 
 
� The development would result in a loss of green belt: 

The site is zoned as Land Release for housing development.  Notwithstanding 
the rural nature of the site, there would be no loss of green belt. 

 
� A TPO is shown on the plans which is inaccurate and should be removed 

before any approval is considered:   
The TPO shown on the plan matches those on the Planning Authority’s 
records.  In any case, the impact of the development on individual trees would 
be considered through the detailed / MSC application process, and would not 
prevent determination of this application. 

 
 
 
 

Page 26



� The land shown for the SUDS basin to the south-east of the development is 
not capable of supporting the infrastructure required: 
The drainage plans have been fully evaluated through the relevant 
consultations.  Notwithstanding this, it is for the applicant to show through the 
detailed / MSC application process, by way of fully detailed plans, that the 
proposed basin can be constructed in this location. 

 
� Access to existing houses within the site should remain unaltered as per 

existing title deeds, and permission will not be given to developers to cut 
across this:   
Existing access arrangements, including rights of way, are private legal 
matters between the individual parties involved.  They are not material 
planning considerations and would not prevent determination of this 
application. 

 
� The proposed access point at Uist Road is not welcomed by residents:   

The Masterplan identified a need for connections outwith the site to existing 
residential areas.  The specific location and details for these connections will 
be dealt with and agreed through the detailed / MSC application process.  

 
� The development would decrease the value of existing residences:   

The value of properties is not a material planning consideration and cannot be 
taken into account when determining this application. 

 
� The development would have a detrimental impact on local services such as 

phone signal, TV and internet services:  There is no evidence to suggest this 
is the case.  Access to such services is not a material planning consideration. 

 
On the basis of the above, it is considered that there are no grounds for refusal of 
the application.  The low volume of objections received in relation to the size of 
the overall proposal is considered to be indicative of a successful community 
engagement process. 
 
Conclusion 
Subject to imposition of conditions and Legal Agreement to ensure infrastructure 
provision and appropriate development of the site, the principle of the proposed 
development would be considered to accord with all required policies and 
guidance, with the exception of proposed density across the site conflicting with 
Policy H3 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  However, balanced against 
this, such a density would be of appropriate scale for the nature of the site; 
complying with the relevant land release policies, the approved Masterplan 
supplementary guidance, and the strategic targets of the Structure Plan; and as 
such would be considered acceptable for this site.  Full consideration has been 
given to all concerns raised in representations, but neither do they outweigh the 
policy position as detailed above, nor do they justify further amendments to the 
plans or refusal of the application.  All other relevant material considerations have 
been fully considered and in line with these the Planning Authority recommends a 
willingness to approve, subject to conditions and Legal Agreement.  
 
 
 
 
 Page 27



RECOMMENDATION 
 
Willingness to approve conditionally, but to withhold the issue of the 
consent document until the applicant has entered into a Legal Agreement 
to deliver: 
 
5) Affordable Housing,  
6) Transfer of land ownership to allow potential improvements to the A944,  
7) Strategic Transport Fund contributions, and  
8) Developer contributions towards: 
 

� Primary Education; 
� Community Facilities; 
� Recreation Facilities;  
� Library Facilities; 
� Core Path Networks; 
� Healthcare Facilities;  
� Flood Prevention Scheme; and  
� Road improvements to mitigate the impact of development. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Subject to imposition of conditions and a Legal Agreement, the principle of the 
proposed development would be considered to accord with Scottish Planning 
Policy and Guidance; the Aberdeen City & Shire Structure Plan 2009; Policy LR1 
'Land Release Policy' of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan; and Aberdeen 
City Council's Supplementary Guidance including the Maidencraig Masterplan.  
Whilst it is noted that proposed density across the site conflicts with Policy H3 of 
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, it would be of appropriate scale for the 
nature of the site; complying with the relevant land release policies, the approved 
Masterplan supplementary guidance, and the strategic targets of the Structure 
Plan; and on balance would be considered acceptable.  Full consideration has 
been given to all concerns raised in representations, but neither do they outweigh 
the policy position as detailed above, nor do they justify further amendments to 
the plans or refusal of the application.  All other relevant material considerations 
have been fully considered in reaching this recommendation. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
(1)  that no individual phase of the development pursuant to the planning 
permission in principle hereby approved shall be carried out until such time as a 
further application for that individual phase has been made to the planning 
authority for approval of the matters specified in this condition and such approval 
has been granted; unless the planning authority has given written approval for a 
variation; these matters being details of the: 
 
(a) means of access and car parking, cycle parking and motorcycle parking; 
(b) siting, design and external appearance of the building(s); 
(c) hard and soft landscaping of the site; 
 
 Page 28



(d) tree survey to show details of all existing trees, and those to be removed, 
retained and planted, which a scheme for protection of those to be retained on 
site during construction works; 
(e) site and plot boundaries and enclosures; 
(f) arrangements for the segregation, storage, collection and management of 
residential, commercial and business waste arising from within that phase; and 
(g) low zero carbon equipment or carbon reduction measures to meet the 
requirements of the Council's SPG on reducing carbon emissions from new 
development. 
 
- in order to comply with Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) 
Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006. 
 
(2)  that this planning permission in principle shall lapse unless an application for 
approval of the matters specified in all condition(s) attached to this grant of 
planning permission in principle has been made before whichever is the latest of 
the following;  
(a) the expiration of 3 years from the date of this grant of planning permission in 
principle; 
(b) the expiration of 6 months from the date on which an earlier application for the 
requisite approval of matters specified in conditions was refused; 
(c) the expiration of 6 months from the date on which an appeal against such 
refusal was dismissed; 
 
- in order to comply with Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) 
Act 1997, as amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006, and to allow a 
reasonable time period for construction work to begin on all phases of the 
development. 
 
(3)  that this planning permission in principle shall lapse on the expiration of 2 
years from the approval of matters specified in conditions being obtained (or, in 
the case of approval of different matters on different dates, from the requisite 
approval for the last such matter being obtained) unless the development to 
which the permission relates is begun before that expiration - in order to comply 
with Section 59 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as 
amended by the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006, and to allow a reasonable 
period of time to enable the development to be completed. 
 
(4)  that, unless the planning authority has given written approval for a variation, 
the details and phasing of the development shall follow the general principles 
established in the Masterplan dated April 2013, stamped copies of which are 
attached to this planning permission.  In particular the areas identified as Phases 
3a and 4, as indicated on page 54, 'Section 5.1 Phasing' of this document, will 
show evidence that the location, design and construction of the new housing 
have taken account of the need to to protect residents from potential noise 
nuisance arising from the proximity to Albion Kennels - to ensure that the agreed 
design principles and phasing are followed through to the detailed stages of the 
development, and to protect the amenity of residents. 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



(5)  that all planting, seeding and turfing, comprised in any scheme of 
landscaping approved under Condition (1) attached to this grant of planning 
permission in principle, shall be carried out in the first planting season following 
the completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period 
of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be planted, or 
in accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and approved in 
writing for the purpose by the planning authority - in the interests of the amenity 
of the area. 
 
(6)  that, 
(a) no development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby 
approved shall take place unless a detailed scheme showing the precise location, 
layout, design and construction method of the most eastern primary access 
junction with the A944, including capacity, distribution, signalling, operational 
flow, has been submitted to, by means of a formal application for approval of 
matters specified in condition, and approved in writing by the planning Authority; 
(b) no individual residential property hereby approved shall be occupied unless 
the relevant scheme is fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans, 
unless the planning authority has given written approval for a variation. 
 
- in the interests of road safety. 
 
(7)  that, 
(a) no development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby 
approved shall take place unless a detailed scheme, showing the precise 
location, layout, design and construction method of both the central and most 
western primary access junctions with the A944, has been submitted to, by 
means of a formal application for approval of matters specified in condition, and 
approved in writing by the planning authority.  Such details shall include capacity; 
distribution; signalling;  operational flow, and a phasing plan which clearly 
identifies triggers and timescales for implementation in relation to the overall 
phasing of the site;  
(b) no building shall be occupied within any individual phase identified through 
the phasing plan under part (a) of this condition, unless the necessary roads 
infrastructure improvements required for that phase have been fully implemented 
in accordance with the approved plans, unless the planning authority has given 
written approval for a variation. 
 
- in the interests of road safety. 
 
(8)  that, 
 
(a) no development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby 
approved shall take place unless a detailed scheme, showing the precise 
location, layout, design and construction method of A944 junction improvements, 
including the A944 / Stronsay Drive junction, together with provision of 
segregated cycle facilities at each, has been submitted to, by means of a formal  
 
 
 

Page 30



application for approval of matters specified in condition, and approved in writing 
by the planning authority.  Such details shall include a phasing plan which clearly 
identifies triggers and timescales for implementation in relation to the overall 
phasing of the site; 
(b) no building shall be occupied within any individual phase identified through 
the phasing plan under part (a) of this condition, unless the necessary roads 
infrastructure improvements required for that phase have been fully implemented 
in accordance with the approved plans, unless the planning authority has given 
written approval for a variation. 
 
- in the interests of road safety. 
 
(9)  that, 
(a) no development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby 
approved shall take place unless a detailed scheme showing all elements 
required to implement and enforce a Prohibition of Driving Order on Core Path 
29, has been submitted to, by means of a formal application for approval of 
matters specified in condition, and approved in writing by the planning authority.  
Such details shall include all physical infrastructure alterations, and a phasing 
plan which clearly identifies triggers and timescales for implementation in relation 
to the overall phasing of the site;  
(b) no building shall be occupied within any individual phase identified through 
the phasing plan under part (a) of this condition, unless the Prohibition of Driving 
Order has been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans, unless 
the planning authority has given written approval for a variation. 
 
- in the interests of road safety. 
 
(10)  that, 
 
(a) no development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby 
approved shall take place unless a detailed scheme showing a proposed 
management plan to deal with all access issues through the entire length of the 
insert road set back to the south of A944, has been submitted to, by means of a 
formal application for approval of matters specified in condition, and approved in 
writing by  the planning authority.  Such details shall include provision for 
emergency access, prohibition orders, all physical infrastructure improvements, 
and a phasing plan which clearly identifies triggers and timescales for 
implementation in relation to the overall phasing of the site; 
(b) no building shall be occupied within any individual phase identified through 
the phasing plan under part (a) of this condition, unless the management plan 
has been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans, unless the 
planning authority has given written approval for a variation. 
 
- in the interests of road safety. 
 
(11)  that, unless the planning authority has given written approval for a variation, 
no more than Phase 1 comprising 182 residential units shall be occupied until the 
Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (AWPR) has been constructed - in the 
interests of road safety and the free flow of traffic. 
 
 
 Page 31



(12)  that, 
 
(a) no development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby 
approved shall take place unless a detailed scheme showing the design and 
construction of culverts linking the north and south developments beneath the 
A944 has been submitted to, by means of a formal application for approval of 
matters specified in condition, and approved in writing by the planning authority.  
Such details shall include a phasing plan which clearly identifies triggers and 
timescales for implementation in relation to the overall phasing of the site; 
(b) no building shall be occupied within any individual phase identified through 
the phasing plan under part (a) of this condition, unless the culvert scheme has 
been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans, unless the 
planning authority has given written approval for a variation. 
 
- to mitigate the potential risk of flooding which the development poses to the 
existing communities. 
 
(13)  that, 
(a) no development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby 
approved shall take place unless a detailed plan identifying appropriate exclusion 
zone boundaries for the main and subsidiary badger setts, as identified in the 
Badger Protection Plan, dated June 2013, has been submitted to, by means of a 
formal application for approval of matters specified in condition, and approved in 
writing by the planning authority;  
(b) unless the planning authority has given written approval for a variation 
through consultation with Scottish Natural Heritage, no construction works 
pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby approved shall take place 
within any exclusion zone as identified in the above plan. 
 
- to ensure protection of wildlife habitats within the site. 
 
(14)  That, notwithstanding the details contained within the Badger Protection 
Plan, dated June 2013, and unless the planning authority has given written 
approval for a variation through consultation with Scottish Natural Heritage, no 
development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby approved 
shall take place unless a Pre-construction Survey has been submitted to, by 
means of a formal application for approval of matters specified in condition, and 
approved in writing by the planning authority.  The survey will be undertaken a 
minimum of 12 months prior to construction commencing; within a radius of 1km 
around the whole development site, and shall include an up to date assessment 
of badger activity on the development site.  It shall also highlight whether any 
badgers setts exclusions are required, and if so, consider alternative sets and 
potential locations, having regard for restrictions arising from the breeding 
season - to ensure protection of wildlife habitats within the site. 
 
(15)  that no development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby 
approved shall take place unless a Nature Conservation Management Plan, that 
incorporates the Local Nature Reserve and the Green Space Network, has been 
submitted to, by means of a formal application for approval of matters specified in 
condition, and approved in writing by the planning authority - in the interests of 
retaining and increasing the wildlife of the remaining habitats. 
 
 Page 32



(16)  that, 
(a) unless the planning authority has given written approval for a variation, no 
individual phase of the development pursuant to the planning permission in 
principle hereby approved shall take place unless a full site waste management 
plan for the processing of construction and demolition waste for that individual 
phase has been submitted to, by means of a formal application for approval of 
matters specified in condition, and approved in writing by the planning authority; 
(b) no work shall be carried out within that individual phase unless the 
management plan is fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
- to ensure that waste on the site is managed in a sustainable manner. 
 
(17)  that, 
(a) no individual phase of the development pursuant to the planning permission in 
principle hereby approved shall take place unless a detailed scheme showing the 
precise location, layout and construction method of adequate pedestrian and 
cycle connectivity from that individual phase to the A944 has been submitted to, 
by means of a formal application for approval of matters specified in condition, 
and approved in writing by the planning authority; 
(b) no individual residential property hereby approved within that individual phase 
shall be occupied unless the relevant scheme under part (a) of this condition has 
been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
 - in the interests of promoting sustainable connections outwith the site. 
 
(18)  that, 
(a) no development within the area identified as Phase 1b, as indicated on page 
54, 'Section 5.1 Phasing' of the Masterplan dated April 2013, stamped copies of 
which are attached to this planning permission, pursuant to the planning 
permission in principle hereby approved, shall take place unless a detailed 
scheme showing the precise location, layout, design and construction method of 
pedestrian and cycle connectivity from the eastern side of the development, north 
of the A944, to the existing residential area to the east, has been submitted to, by 
means of a formal application for approval of matters specified in condition, and 
approved in writing by the planning authority; 
(b) no individual residential property hereby approved within that individual phase 
shall be occupied unless the relevant scheme under part (a) of this condition has 
been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
- in the interests of promoting sustainable connections outwith the site. 
 
(19)  that, 
(a) no development within the area identified as Phase 1a, as indicated on page 
54, 'Section 5.1 Phasing' of the Masterplan dated April 2013, stamped copies of 
which are attached to this planning permission, pursuant to the planning 
permission in principle hereby approved, unless a detailed scheme showing the 
precise location, layout, design and construction method of pedestrian and cycle 
connectivity from the south-eastern side of the development to the B9119, has 
been submitted to, by means of a formal application for approval of matters 
specified in condition, and approved in writing by the planning authority. This  
 
 

Page 33



scheme shall include an investigation of the existing infrastructure that would 
form part of this route, to establish the current status of the infrastructure and 
identify any infrastructure improvements that are required; 
(b) no individual residential property hereby approved within that individual phase 
shall be occupied unless the relevant scheme under part (a) of this condition has 
been fully implemented, including all identified infrastructure improvements, in 
accordance with the approved plans. 
 
- in the interests of promoting sustainable connections outwith the site. 
 
(20)  that, 
(a) no individual phase of the development pursuant to the planning permission in 
principle hereby approved shall take place unless a detailed scheme showing the 
precise location, layout, design and construction method of acceptable 
pedestrian access to the proposed bus stops within that phase; and upgrading of 
each identified bus stop as necessary to provide a minimum provision of shelter, 
seating, lighting, timetable information and raised kerbs, has been submitted to, 
by means of a formal application for approval of matters specified in condition, 
and approved in writing by the planning authority; 
(b) no individual residential property hereby approved within that individual phase 
shall be occupied unless the relevant scheme under part (a) of this condition has 
been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
 - in the interests of pedestrian connectivity and sustainable public transport 
facilities. 
 
(21)  that, 
(a) no individual phase of the development pursuant to the planning permission in 
principle hereby approved shall take place unless a fully detailed SUDS scheme, 
to comply with the Drainage Impact Assessment, reference B9204, dated 
05/09/2013, for that individual phase has been submitted to, by means of a 
formal application for approval of matters specified in condition, and approved in 
writing by the planning authority; 
(b) no individual residential property hereby approved within that individual phase 
shall be occupied unless the relevant scheme under part (a) of this condition has 
been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
- in the interests of protection of the water environment. 
 
(22)  that, 
(a) unless the planning authority has given written approval for a variation, no 
individual phase of the development pursuant to the planning permission in 
principle hereby approved shall take place unless the implementation of a 
programme of archaeological work (to include all necessary post-excavation and 
publication work) has been secured for that individual phase in accordance with a 
written scheme of investigation that has been submitted to, by means of a formal 
application for approval of matters specified in condition, and approved in writing 
by, the planning authority;  
 
 
 

Page 34



(b) no work shall be carried out within that individual phase unless the 
programme of archaeological work has been fully implemented in accordance 
with the approved plans. 
- in the interests of protecting the historic heritage of the City. 
 
(23)  that, 
(a) unless the planning authority has given written approval for a variation, no 
individual phase of the development pursuant to the planning permission in 
principle hereby approved shall take place unless a detailed scheme in respect of 
that individual phase, showing suitable dust suppression measures to be 
incorporated within the procedures for demolition and construction, has been 
submitted to, by means of a formal application for approval of matters specified in 
condition, and approved in writing by the planning authority.  Such details shall 
include the provision of dust suppression equipment during periods of dry 
weather, and measures to prevent the potential for mud and/or other debris from 
vehicular traffic being deposited on the A944 public highway adjacent to the site; 
(b) no work shall be carried out within that individual phase unless the relevant 
scheme under part (a) of this condition has been fully implemented in accordance 
with the approved. 
 
- in order to prevent dust arising on site giving rise to nuisance and to prevent the 
risk of environmental pollution. 
 
(24)  that no individual employment based development pursuant to the planning 
permission in principle hereby approved shall be occupied unless a detailed 
Green Transport Plan for that individual development, which outlines sustainable 
measures to deter the use of the private car, in particular single occupant trips 
and provides detailed monitoring arrangements, modal split targets and 
associated penalties for not meeting targets, has been submitted to, by means of 
a formal application for approval of matters specified in condition, and approved 
in writing by the planning authority - in order to encourage more sustainable 
forms of travel to the development. 
 
(25)  that no individual residential property on any individual phase of the 
development pursuant to the planning permission in principle hereby approved 
shall be occupied unless a comprehensive Residential Travel Pack for that 
individual phase has been:  
(a) submitted to, by means of a formal application for approval of matters 
specified in condition, and approved in writing by the planning authority; and  
(b)  subsequently provided to occupants of each residential property to be 
occupied.  The Pack will set out proposals for reducing dependency on the 
private car, including information on external connectivity to key facilities, and will 
provide, in consultation with local schools and the planning authority, information 
on safer routes to schools – in the interests of promoting sustainable 
transportation. 
 
INFORMATIVES 
 
that, unless the planning authority has given written approval for a variation, no 
work on any phase of development pursuant to the planning permission in 
principle hereby approved shall take place: 
 
 Page 35



(a) Outwith the hours of 0700-1900 hours Monday to Friday; 
(b) Outwith the hours of 0900-1600 hours on Saturdays; and 
(c) At any time on Sunday except for works inaudible outwith the application site. 
 
- in order to protect the residential amenity of domestic dwellings adjacent to the 
site from any potential noise nuisance arising from the proposed construction 
work and deliveries. 
 
 

 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

 

Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Gordon McIntosh 
Corporate Director 

 

MEMO 
 
To 
 

Gareth Allison 
Planning & Infrastructure 
 

Date 
 
Your Ref.

Our Ref. 

01/10/2013 
 
P130265 (ZLF) 
 
TR/IH/1/51/2 

From 
 
Email 
Dial 
Fax 

 
Roads Projects 
 
IHamilton@aberdeencity.gov.uk
01224 522752 

 

Roads Projects 
Enterprise, Planning & 
Infrastructure  
Aberdeen City Council 
Business Hub 4   
Ground Floor North 
Marischal College 
Broad Street 
Aberdeen AB10 1AB 

 

Planning application no.  P130265 
Site at Maidencraig, North and South of the A944   
Mixed use development incorporating residential, commercial uses, 
community facilities, open space, landscaping and associated infrastructure   
 
I have considered the above planning application and have the following 
observations: 
 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 I note that this application is the Planning Permission in Principle for the Den 
of Maidencraig masterplan.  A Transport Assessment (TA) has been submitted 
in support of this planning application and reference is made within these 
comments to this report. 

 
2.0 Pedestrian and Cycle Access 

2.1 The applicant has confirmed plans to provide pedestrian and cycle 
connectivity from the eastern side of the development north of the Lang 
Stracht to the existing residential area to the east.  A number of potential 
routes have been identified, and I agree that the precise location of the 
connections be agreed through detailed applications. 

 
2.2 I understand that proposals for pedestrian and cycle access to the B9119 to 

the south east of the development are still under discussion.  This link is 
essential as it will provide access to Hazlehead Academy and leisure facilities.  
Should this not be resolved prior to the application being determined, I would 
request that a condition be attached to any consent that a suitable combined 
use foot and cyclepath be provided.  This route should be a minimum of 3m in 
width, adequately drained and fully lit, and be provided prior to occupation of 
the development.  I would also request a condition be attached to any consent 
that an investigation be carried out of the existing infrastructure that would 
form part of this route.  This investigation should establish the current status of 
the infrastructure, identify and subsequently implement any infrastructure 
improvements that are required. 

Page 40



2.3 Core Path (CP) 29 will provide access to public transport facilities on Queens 
Road, as well as connecting the western parts of the development with the 
Kingswells to Westhill cycleway.  This route currently provides vehicular 
access to a number of properties within the development site, and these 
properties will remain.  The masterplan submitted shows that the road 
infrastructure within the development would connect with the carriageway of 
CP29.  I would object to this happening as this could provide an alternative 
access point to the development at an inappropriate and undesirable location.  
The existing properties within the development site would be able to gain 
access from the infrastructure that the development will create.  I understand 
that it would be possible to implement a Prohibition of Driving Order on CP29, 
from the north of the access to the houses fronting Skene Road.  This would 
be enforced by suitable means, likely bollards, and the infrastructure would be 
retained as pedestrian/ cycle access, including providing such access to the 
development.  The applicant will be liable for the full cost of the Prohibition of 
Driving Order, or other as determined necessary, and any infrastructure to 
support this.  This will include the construction of a footway on the section of 
CP29 where driving will remain possible.  I consider that due to the very light 
traffic volumes that will result there will be no requirement to provide additional 
cycle infrastructure, and that any narrowing in the carriageway will be able to 
be accommodated. 

 
2.4 Pedestrian and cycle access to the Lang Stracht should be provided in as 

many locations as possible, and these will be sought through the detailed 
application process for each phase of the development. 

 
3.0 Public Transport 

3.1 The masterplan process identified that the site would be served by an 
extension to the existing bus service serving Skye Road and Lewis Road.  
This would loop through both the northern and southern parts of the site.  I 
understand that it has been difficult to both reach agreement with the public 
transport operators over this proposal, and provide a route that does not 
present detriment to existing public transport users.  An alternative proposal 
has been presented which shows that new bus stops can be installed on the 
Lang Stracht.  The detail of acceptable pedestrian connectivity to these bus 
stops remains to be established.  The positioning of these bus stops is such, 
that with use of existing bus stops surrounding the site, public transport 
accessibility is achieved.  There are a small number of houses in the north 
west of the development site that fall outwith the 400m distance from a bus 
stop, however this is a small additional distance which I do not consider to be 
sufficient to dissuade residents from accessing public transport services.  In 
principle I am willing to accept the public transport measures identified, 
provided that acceptable pedestrian accessibility to the proposed new bus 
stops from the development site can be established.  Arrangements for this 
can be established through the detailed planning applications.  All identified 
bus stops, including the proposed new infrastructure, should be upgraded as 
necessary to provide a minimum provision of, shelter, seating, lighting, 
timetable information and raised kerbs.  I would request that appropriate 
conditions be attached to any consent that the new bus stops and any 

Page 41



upgrades provided as the development is built out, and as they are required 
by the different phases of the development. 

 
4.0 Vehicular Access 

4.1 The potential for vehicular access from CP 29 is discussed above, along with 
measures that I would request be conditioned to any consent to prevent this 
occurring.  In a similar vein, I have concerns that access to the development 
from the existing insert road set back to the south of the Lang Stracht could be 
delivered as a result of the development.  This would be undesirable, and I 
would object to this if it were to happen, as it could lead to vehicles accessing 
the network in inappropriate locations, including uncontrolled movements into 
signalised junctions, giving rise to road safety concerns.  In addition, the 
eastern access to the insert road will be in extremely close proximity of the 
proposed eastern access junctions, and it would be possible for vehicles to 
gain access to the insert road from the developments western access junction. 

 
4.2 It is proposed as part of the first phase of development that the emergency 

access be taken from the insert road.  Through discussion with the developer, 
it has been identified that this emergency access could be constructed to full 
road standards.  This would allow the current accesses to the insert road to be 
removed through use of the appropriate orders, while maintaining access to 
the existing houses.  On occupation of the first house, or commissioning of the 
signals (whichever occurs first), the eastern insert road access will require to 
close.  Residents on the insert road will be able to enter and exit from the 
western access point.  On completion of the fiftieth house in phase 1A of the 
development, the emergency access will require to be taken to the insert road.  
This must not permit general access without the western entrance to the insert 
road also being closed.  On completion of the central access junction to the 
development, the western access to the insert road must close, and the 
emergency access will convert to an all traffic road.  At this point residents of 
the eastern part of the insert road will be able only to gain access through the 
development and via the converted emergency access.  The developer would 
be responsible for the full cost of the necessary orders and infrastructure 
changes in order to achieve this.  Appropriate conditions should be attached to 
any consent to achieve this. 

 
4.3 Similar issues exist with the existing houses to the west of the western access 

to the insert road.  These houses can be provided with alternative access from 
within the development infrastructure.  The development spine road will cross 
the existing insert road where it gives access to the south-westernmost 
houses.  Appropriate orders can be used to prevent vehicular access along 
the western part of the insert road (i.e. those to the west of the western 
access), preventing an uncontrolled arm at the central junction and allowing 
inappropriate access for development traffic.  Again, the applicant would be 
liable for the full cost of the necessary orders and any infrastructure alterations 
that were deemed necessary.  I would request conditions be attached to any 
consent that will require the timing of this to be agreed, necessary 
infrastructure designed, stopping up and prohibition of driving orders 
promoted. 

 

Page 42



4.4 Access to the development will ultimately be by means of three new junctions.  
The eastern access junction will operate as left in/ left out, although will be 
traffic signalised initially until the centre junction is installed.  The eastern 
junction should be designed with its final layout in mind, and subsequently 
adapted for signals.  Although the western junction will potentially have a bus 
gate facility, it will otherwise operate as a left in/ left out junction for general 
traffic. 

 
4.5 Additional analysis has been carried out in respect of the central access 

junction, and this reflects a more realistic scenario.  This shows that the 
central access junction will operate within capacity.  I accept the new 
distribution and analysis.  The detailed design of this junction, as with the 
other two access junctions, will require to be carried out.  I am satisfied that 
this can be carried out in accordance with the detailed applications as they are 
brought forward.  All new junctions will require to undergo the Roads 
Construction Consent (RCC) process and I would suggest that the applicant 
contact Colin Burnet to discuss this further. 

 
4.6 The applicants transport consultant has conducted analysis of the Lang 

Stracht network, extending east from the development site.  This analysis has 
identified that a number of junction improvements are necessary in order to 
accommodate and mitigate the impact of the development.  The exact nature 
of these have yet to be finalised, however it is apparent from the analysis 
submitted that a resolution can be reached.  I would request appropriate 
conditions be attached to any consent that the detailed designs of each of 
these junctions improvements be prepared and that the applicant implement 
the improvements.  The implementation of the improvements should be 
phased in accordance with the development, and as agreed with the 
developer.  The mechanism by which this is to be done has been suggested 
as proportional by the total cost of the improvements to the progression of the 
development, with an element of appropriateness taken into account.  For 
example if a particular phase of the development progresses and is within 
10% of the trigger point for a further junction improvement then the 
improvement should be implemented.  In the interests of eliminating 
incremental improvement of junctions it has been agreed that one junction 
shall be taken at a time and the full improvement at that junction implemented.  
Effectively this will mean that as the development is built out there will be 
junctions that have had delivered a better than no net detriment solution, and 
others that will have had no improvement and are experiencing detriment.  
Both these situations will be temporary until the full development is completed.  
I would request a condition be attached to any consent that a scheme 
establishing the phased implementation of the junction improvements be 
established, based on the principals outlined above, and agreed with the 
Council, prior to work starting on site.  As part of these junction improvements 
there should be a move towards providing a segregated cycle facility along the 
entire length of the Lang Stracht. 

 
4.7 Included within the proposed infrastructure upgrades for the Lang Stracht is an 

improvement at the Lang Stracht/ Stronsay Drive junction.  A similar 
improvement has been identified as part of the Morrison�s development 
adjacent to this junction.  In the event that this improvement has been 
implemented by the time that the phasing agreement discussed above 

Page 43



requires the Maidencraig development to implement the scheme then there 
will be no further requirement for improvement.  However, if the Morrison�s 
development has not progressed the improvement, then the Maidencraig 
development will require to carry out the upgrade.  

 
4.7 In order to allow for future infrastructure upgrades of the Lang Stracht that 

may be necessary, the developer has agreed to safeguard a corridor of land of 
sufficient size necessary to allow the dualling of the Lang Stracht where their 
ownership/ control is adjacent to the existing corridor and/ or Council 
controlled land.  This has been agreed as being of sufficient width to 
safeguard a total coirridor, including the existing road infrastructure of 27.1m.  
This land should be transferred to the Councils ownership.  I would request a 
condition to any consent of this application that the boundary of this land be 
identified, through discussion with the Council, and a plan subsequently 
prepared.  It is likely that legal agreements will additionally be required. 

 
4.9 The development has additionally identified that there will be an impact on the 

A944 Lang Stracht/ B9119 Skene Road (Switchback) junction.  The developer 
is required to mitigate their impact at this junction, and has identified a solution 
that will achieve this. This junction will be impacted by a number of other 
developments in the area, and it is desirable to derive a �final� solution for this 
junction taking the impact of all developments into consideration rather than 
have this junction continuously upgraded by the different developments.  It 
would not be in the interests of the travelling public to subject the junction to 
repeated incremental improvements.  Instead of asking the developer to carry 
out the identified improvements at this junction, this service would seek that a 
financial contribution be sought of the value of constructing the identified 
improvement and that this money be used along with contributions from other 
developments to provide a solution that will accommodate all development 
traffic.  This will need to be the subject of a legal agreement, however I cannot 
at this time provide the amount that will need to be included in the legal 
agreement.  I would request a condition be attached to any consent for this 
application that the developer provide a detailed design of the required 
improvements, and that this be agreed by the Council.  This design must meet 
all relevant and current design standards.  The cost of this improvement will 
then be taken in the form of a financial contribution through the legal 
agreement and used towards the final solution at the A944/ B9119 junction, in 
whatever form that solution will be. 

 
4.10 All the new access junctions, internal road and pedestrian infrastructure and 

amendments to the existing infrastructure will require to undergo detailed 
design and the Roads Construction Consent (RCC) process at the appropriate 
stage.  The applicant would be advised to contact Colin Burnet to discuss this 
process in further detail. 

 
4.11 Analysis has been undertaken of the development, and this has included the 

impact of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (AWPR).  The analysis has 
identified that 182 units can be accommodated prior to the AWPR being fully 
opened and completed.  I would therefore request a condition be attached to 
any consent that this number of units not be exceeded prior to the AWPR 
opening. 

 

Page 44



4.12 In order for utilities to be connected and ultimately for residents to be able to 
occupy, street names and house numbers will be required.  This can be a 
lengthy process and I would advise the applicant to begin this at the earliest 
possible stage and to contact Stuart Allan for further information on this 
subject. 

 
5.0 Strategic Transport Fund 

5.1 The development will be eligible for a contribution to the Strategic Transport 
Fund.  I am satisfied that this can be made through the detailed applications 
pertaining to the individual phases over time.  This should be reflected in any 
final consent, and be conditioned appropriately. 

 
6.0 Travel Plan 

6.1 In line with the Transport and Accessibility Supplementary Guidance a 
residential Travel Plan and Residential Travel Packs will be required for this 
development.  I would ask that the provision of these prior to occupation be 
secured by condition to any consent.  As the development will be constructed 
in phases over a number of years, it will be necessary to update these 
documents on a regular basis and I would ask that provision for this is made 
within the conditions. 

 
7.0 Conclusion 
 
7.1 There remains an amount of work to be undertaken in order to determine 

exactly what requires to be implemented in order to mitigate the impact of the 
development, and the extent of contributions.  However, sufficient evidence 
has been submitted to suggest that it is likely that solutions can be derived 
that would allow the development to progress, and it has satisfactorily been 
shown that this is the case.  As a result, and subject to all of the conditions 
and legal agreement set out above, I have no objection to this development. 

 

Iain Hamilton 
Engineer (Developments and Traffic) 
 

Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2.2

Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



 

Planning Development Management Committee  
 

ARDENE HOUSE, SKENE ROAD, KINGSWELLS 
 
ERECTION OF CLASS 4 THREE-STOREY OFFICE 
DEVELOPMENT MEASURING 17,129 SQ M (EXCLUDING 
BASEMENT), 425 CAR PARKING SPACES, ASSOCIATED 
INFRASTRUCTURE, ACCESS, LANDSCAPING AND 
ANCILLARY WORKS.   
 
For: Kingswells Development Company Ltd 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P130400 
Application Date:       02/04/2013 
Officer :                     Tommy Hart 
Ward : Kingswells/Sheddocksley/Summerhill (L 
Ironside/S Delaney/D Cameron) 

Advert  : Can't notify neighbour(s) 
Advertised on: 10/04/2013 
Committee Date: 29 October 2013 
Community Council : Comments 
 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to 
withhold the issue of the consent documents until the applicant has 
entered into a Legal Agreement deliver: 
 
1) Strategic Transport Fund contributions, and  
2) Developer contributions towards: 

� Core Path Networks; and 
� Road improvements to mitigate the impact of development. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.3

Page 109



DESCRIPTION 
The application site forms part of Opportunity Site OP40 which is designated in 
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan for business use. The site is 
approximately 2.4ha in size and lies on the north side of the A944 Aberdeen to 
Westhill Road, around 2 miles to the east of Westhill and 4 miles west of 
Aberdeen City Centre. The application site lies around 1m below the level of the 
A944 and is predominantly flat. Along the north and east boundaries, the site 
benefits from good screening by virtue of the large mature trees in situ, which are 
part of the Green Space Network. Part of this tree belt returns along the southern 
boundary almost to the existing access point. To the western side of the access 
there are low-lying shrubs along the road side and along the western boundary. 
An overhead electricity cable bisects the site at the sound western corner. The 
Den Burn currently runs through the site from west to east at the northern end 
through an open ditch. There is also a ditch present along the south-eastern 
section of the site. 
 
The site is currently occupied by Ardene House Vetinary Practice. The site is 
fairly open towards the south and west whilst there is a 1-1 ½-storey building 
within the north eastern corner of the site. An area of car parking lies in the 
central part of the site. 
 
Immediately adjacent to the site at the south eastern corner, there is a 
dwellinghouse known as “The Lodge” as well as an access for Kingswells House. 
 
It is worth noting that an area of land along the southern and western boundaries 
of approximately 4500sqm is outwith the planning application boundary and is 
under the ownership of another party. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY – ADJACENT SITES 
To the east of the application site, work is currently under way (and almost 
complete) for a number of office buildings within Phase One of the Prime Four 
business park development. The land to the immediate north of the application 
site forms part of Phase Three of the Prime Four development which benefits 
from planning permission in principle (ref 120649), whilst the land to the east 
forms Phase Four of the Prime Four development which does not yet benefit 
from any planning permission. 
 
PROPOSAL 
Full planning permission is sought for the erection of a 3-storey office to be 
situated within the northern third of the site. The building would be around 17,130 
sqm in size (excluding the basement).  It is intended that the building would be 
designed to meet the British Research Establishment Environmental Assessment 
Method (BREEAM) “very good” rating and Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) 
rating of B+/A. 
 
Externally, the building would benefit from full-height glazing on the primary 
elevation with a granite rainscreen along the ridge level and edge to frame the 
building. A secondary horizontal masonry framing would be introduced at first 
and second floor levels. Horizontal granite elements are proposed at the end 
bays behind which sit the glazing. At roof level, the use of semi-transparent and 
PPC aluminium flat panels would screen the plant. 
 

Page 110



Access would be taken from the existing access into the site which would be 
upgraded and would be retained as a ‘left in-left out’. Also, there would be a 
basement car park with space for 293 cars, 64no cycles and would provide 
locker, toilet and shower facilities. A further 229 car parking spaces would be 
provided at ground level, some of which would be beneath a landscaped deck. 
 
Within the basement of the building, the waste and recycling store would be 
provided adjacent to the ramp access. 
 
The existing open ditch would remain virtually unchanged at the northern end of 
the site. Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) are proposed for the 
disposal of surface water drainage. 
 
Supporting Documents 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at –  
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?130400 
On accepting the disclaimer, enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
� Design and Access Statement; 
� Landscape Design Statement; 
� Ecology Report; 
� Drainage Impact Assessment; 
� Planning Supporting Statement; 
� Pre-Application Consultation Report; 
� Tree Report; and 
� Transport Assessment. 
 
PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION 
The proposed development was the subject to pre-application consultation on 
27th November 2012 between the applicant and the local community, as required 
for applications falling within the category of major developments as defined in 
the ‘Hierarchy of Development’ Regulations. The consultation involved a public 
exhibition/drop-in session between the hours of 3pm and 8pm and was 
advertised three weeks prior to the event taking place. 
 
The comments received can be summarised as follows: 
 
� The scale and visibility of the proposed building would be greater than the 

existing buildings; 
� The height of the building should not diminish/spoil the historic setting of 

Kingswells House; 
� Attention should be paid to the provision and quality of the landscape design, 

with the open space between the building and the A944 complementing the 
Green Space Network areas on either side of the site (to help provide 
biodiversity); 

� Consideration should be given to re-routing the as a surface feature along the 
front of the site; 

 
 
 

Page 111



� The cumulative impact of this development and others ongoing/imminent 
around Kingswells is a real concern; and 

� Current speeds of traffic on the A944 are also a real safety concern locally – 
too many accidents and fatalities. 

 
Feedback was provided in response to the points raised at the consultation 
event. 
 
Alterations made to the proposal as a result of consultation 
The alterations that have been made to the proposals since the consultation 
event relate to reducing the level of surface parking and increasing basement 
provision (to reduce visual impact), repositioning of the access further to the east 
along the frontage (due to ownership restrictions) and consequential removal of a 
number of trees along the east end of the main frontage and increase in 
compensatory planting. These amendments were made as a consequence of 
required design changes and not consultation feedback. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Committee because nine objections 
have been received and there are adverse comments from Kingswells 
Community Council.  Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the 
Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Projects Team – object to the proposal for road safety concerns 
regarding road users seeking to enter/exit the site, which could potentially lead to 
road safety issues.  These concerns are fully detailed in the relevant evaluation 
section, and the Roads Memorandum is attached to this report for reference.  
Additional comments received can be summarised as follows: 
 
� Current pedestrian accessibility is not ideal but is within a 1600m walking 

distance from the nearest residential property in Kingswells but future 
pedestrian connectivity may be improved with the later phases of completion 
within the Prime Four development; 

� Cycle access is acceptable having the Aberdeen to Westhill cycle path along 
the southern edge of the site and the inclusion of cycle parking, lockers and 
changing facilities is acceptable; 

� Access to public transport is limited at present but may be improved as the 
later stages of the Prime Four development are completed; 

� The updated access is acceptable; 
� The provision of connections to the Prime Four development is acceptable 

and welcomed; 
� The development would have a detrimental impact on the Kingswells 

roundabout and as such the applicant is required to submit a scheme of 
junction improvements to be agreed with Aberdeen City Council and a 
monetary contribution made to cover the costs of the work, which needs to be 
included in the s75 Legal Agreement; 

� There is a requirement to make a financial contribution to the Strategic 
Transport Fund; 

 
 
 Page 112



� A condition is requested that the development is not occupied unless a travel 
plan has been submitted to and agreed by Aberdeen City Council; and 

� A condition is required to ensure that, prior to occupation, a regime be 
implemented to prevent indiscriminate parking within the Prime Four 
development and the Park & Ride site given the lack of access to public 
transport. 

 
Environmental Health – no comments received. 
 
Developer Contributions Team – a Developer Contributions package is 
applicable in this instance with contributions being taken to upgrade the core 
paths network. 
 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) – no objections as all 
comments raised have been dealt with by the updated Drainage Impact 
Assessment (DIA). 
 
Education, Culture & Sport (Archaeology) – request a condition to be applied 
to any grant of permission requiring the application to agree a scheme of works 
to be undertaken prior to any development commencing on site. 
 
Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) – no objection to the 
application so long as conditions are attached to any grant of permission 
requiring a construction environmental management plan (CEMP) to be 
submitted for approval;  
 
Scottish Natural Heritage – comments received suggesting a pre-construction 
check for badgers would be appropriate. 
 
Community Council – a number of issues have been raised, which can be 
summarised as: 
 
1. The building architecture is uninspiring; 
2. The access is too close to “The Lodge” 
3. The removal of trees along the A944 is unacceptable; 
4. The diversion of the watercourse to the rear of the building is unimaginative; 
5. The development is isolated from Prime Four, giving a lack of continuity and 

poor access to the park and ride; 
6. The access and no right turns will have major traffic impacts on the A944; 
7. The Transport Assessment (TA) severely under-estimates the journeys by car 

and over-estimates journeys by other means; 
8. The TA assumes spare capacity in the provision of local road improvements 

which is unlikely to be the case; 
9. The access for the site should be through Prime Four. 
 
Aberdeen International Airport – no objections. 
 
North East Scotland Biological Records Centre (NESBREC) – provided 
feedback on species found in and around the application site. 
 
 
 
 Page 113



Transport Scotland – no objections subject to condition requiring Travel Plan. 
 
Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (AWPR) Team – no objections to the 
application 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
Nine letters of objection have been received, four of which are from the same 
person.  One is from the Aberdeen Cycle forum, and the last four are in standard 
template form from a planning consultant on behalf of adjacent 
landowners/interested parties. The objections raised can be summarised as: 
 
1. Concerns about the re-routing of the  and the impact on adjacent property; 
2. The proposed access would impact on the current access to “The Lodge”; 
3. The development would not meet the requirements of the Local Development 

Plan or SPP in relation to encouraging sustainable modes of transport; 
4. The cycle provision to the development is poor at present and will not 

encourage access by cycle; 
5. The scale of development on the site is too large; 
6. The amount of parking proposed is too low; 
7. The traffic/junction/post-AWPR modelling is flawed; 
8. The development does not relate to the wider OP40 site in respect to 

connectivity, public transport and travel options; 
9. The drainage calculations do not predict downstream development 

appropriately; 
10. The loss of trees is not acceptable; and 
11. Access options have not been properly assessed. 
 
PLANNING POLICY  
 
National Policy and Guidance 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) is the statement of Government policy on land 
use planning and includes the Government’s core principles for the operation of 
the planning system and concise subject planning policies. The general policy on 
sustainable economic growth and the subject planning policies relating to 
economic development and transport are relevant material considerations. 
 
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan 
 
The Structure Plan sets out the following key objectives for the growth of the City 
and Aberdeenshire. 
 
Economic growth: to provide opportunities which encourage economic 
development and create new employment in a range of areas that are both 
appropriate for and attractive to the needs of different industries, while at the 
same time improving the essential strategic infrastructure necessary to allow the 
economy to grow over the long term. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 114



Sustainable development and climate change: to be a city region which takes 
the lead in reducing the amount of carbon dioxide released into the air, adapts to 
the effects of climate change and limits the amount of non-renewable resources it 
uses. 
 
Accessibility: to make sure that all new developments contribute towards 
reducing the need to travel and encourage people to walk, cycle or use public 
transport by making these attractive choices.  
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
 
Policy LR1: Land Release Policy – Part A – Phase 1 release development: 
Employment 2007 – 2023; development on sites allocated in Phase one will be 
approved in principle within areas designated for employment.  
 
Policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development – New development 
will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken to minimise 
the traffic generated. 
 
Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking – To ensure high standards of design, 
new development must be designed with due consideration to its context and 
make a positive contribution to its setting. 
 
Policy D3: Sustainable and Active Travel – New developments will be designed 
in order to minimise travel by private car, improve access to services and 
promote healthy lifestyles by encouraging active travel. Developments will 
maintain and enhance permeability, ensuring that opportunities for sustainable 
and active travel are both protected and improved. Access to, and movement 
within and between, new and existing development will prioritise transport modes 
in the following order; walking, cycling, public transport, car and other motorised 
vehicles. 
 
Policy NE1: Green Space Network – The City Council will protect, promote and 
enhance the wildlife, recreational, landscape and access value of the Green 
Space Network. 
 
Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands – There is a presumption against all activities 
and development that will result in the loss of, or damage to, established trees 
and woodlands that contribute significantly to nature conservation. 
 
Policy NE6: Flooding and Drainage – Applications will be required to provide an 
assessment of flood risk in order to show that there would be no risk from 
flooding. 
 
Policy R7: Low and Zero carbon buildings – New buildings reduce the amount of 
predicted carbon dioxide emissions by at least 15% below the 2007 building 
standards in order to help meet the expectations of the Climate Change 
(Scotland) Act 2009. 
 
 
 
 
 Page 115



Supplementary Guidance 
The following Aberdeen City Council supplementary guidance are relevant 
material considerations: 
 
� OP40 – Kingswells Development Framework; 
� Transport and Accessibility; 
� Buffer Strips; and  
� Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
 
EVALUATION 
 Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 
(as amended) require that where, in making any determination under the 
planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and 
that determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material 
to the application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Principle of Development 
The application site lies within land designated as an Opportunity Site (OP40), 
whilst the Development Framework suggests business purposes as the most 
appropriate use for the land. Additional office developments have recently been 
approved on adjacent land (Prime Four), and in that respect, the principle of 
office development on the site is considered to be acceptable. In terms of the 
land allocation, the site lies is part of the Land Release Policy and is allocated for 
release between 2007 and 2023 and so in that respect there is no conflict with 
Policy LR1. 
 
Economic Development 
The proposed office development would create new employment opportunities, 
located in an area allocated for business use under Opportunity Site OP40 of the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan.  As such, the application is considered to 
conform to Scottish Planning Policy in respect to the general policy on economic 
development, as well as the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan objectives 
for economic growth. 
 
Design, Scale and Form of Development 
In terms of building height, the application site is within the ‘central zone’ as 
shown on page 42 of the Development Framework which indicates that three 
storeys (around 12m in height) of accommodation would be acceptable, and is 
comparable to the ‘Nexen’ building (located to the east of the application site) 
which is in a more prominent position at the southern end of the Prime Four 
development.  The scale would therefore be seen to accord with the principles of 
the Development Framework.  
 
Policy D1 (Architecture and Placemaking) seeks to ensure a high standard of 
design in new development. It states that new development must be designed 
with due consideration to its context and make a positive contribution to its 
setting.  The building would be predominantly glazed on the south elevation with 
elements of granite gladding.  The northern elevation is almost identical in design 
and finish whilst the east and west elevations would have a large granite cladding 
section at the central core area as well as the large glazed sections.  The choice  
 
 

Page 116



of materials and general form of the building are considered appropriate for the 
setting when taking into account what is currently being built within the Prime 
Four development nearby. The ‘Nexen’ and ‘Apache’ buildings are of a similar 
design with significant glazing, along with granite feature panels and framing. A 
similar palette of materials has also been agreed for the buildings within Phase 
One and Two of the Prime Four development which benefit from planning 
permission.  Although the proposed building is almost the full width of the 
application site, the large expanse of glazing on the southern elevation helps to 
visually lighten the elevation and reduce the bulk of the façade.  
 
Visual Impact of the Development 
For drivers approaching Aberdeen, the development would only become 
apparent on arrival to the application site due to the existing screening along the 
cycle/footpath on the northern side of the A944 between the application site and 
the ‘Five Mile Garage’.  A similar situation would occur driving westbound 
towards Westhill, with a large number of mature trees located along the road 
frontage between the application site and the Prime Four development.  On 
viewing the building from directly in front of the site, it is fair to say that the 
building would be much larger than what currently exists on site.  However 
balanced against this it is noted firstly that the proposed scale accords with the 
approved Development Framework.  Furthermore, the landscape proposals 
submitted with the application indicate that three rows of semi-mature trees 
would be planted between the new building and the A944.  When considered 
collectively with the context of the land surrounding the site, the Planning 
Authority is satisfied that the visual impact on the surrounding area would be 
minimal, with any impact being lessened over time as the proposed tree planting 
progresses through to maturity. 
 
Traffic Impacts, Access Arrangements and Car Parking 
Cycle Access 
It is acknowledged that the application site is not ideal when it comes to 
prioritising walking, cycling or public transport usage, being located some four 
miles from Aberdeen City Centre.  Notwithstanding this, a cycle path abuts the 
southern boundary of the site which, whilst ideally needing upgrading, would still 
provide sufficient accessibility for cyclists.  The submitted plans also show short 
and long-term cycle storage within the basement of the building, along with locker 
and shower facilities, all of which are likely to encourage the use of cycles. 
 
Pedestrian Access 
A pedestrian isochrone has been submitted showing the extent to which the site 
is accessible by pedestrians, indicating that the houses in the southern part of 
Kingswells (south of the playing field and broad dyke at Kingswood Drive) are 
within a 1600m walking distance of the proposed development.  Pedestrian 
accessibility to the site would be reliant on the footway on the north side of the 
A944, which is likely to dissuade pedestrians due to the high volume of traffic on 
the A944.  It is however a complete route.  Furthermore, the potential exists for 
more attractive routes to be delivered through the Prime Four site on completion 
of the latter phases, and the plans submitted for this application has shown that 
links will be constructed within their site to allow future potential connectivity into 
the Prime Four development.   
 
 
 Page 117



Public Transport 
There are 2no bus stops on the east side of the Kingswells roundabout (around 
900m away). Similarly, the Park & Ride facility would be around 900m away from 
the entrance to the application site. These are outwith the 400m distance 
specified in national transport planning policy for access to bus stops.  The only 
option that this developer would have to improve accessibility by bus would be to 
install bus stops on the A944 closer to the development.  This would require the 
installation of a controlled pedestrian crossing facility on the A944 which Roads 
officers have confirmed could not be accommodated within such close proximity 
of the Prime Four access and the AWPR junction.  It is therefore not possible for 
the developer to provide public transport that meets the requirement of the policy.  
The latter phases of Prime Four may include a bus service through the site that 
could result in public transport services operating closer to the development than 
those at present. 
 
In terms of accessibility, by virtue of being on the main road between Aberdeen 
and Westhill, and having a cycle route along the same route, the site is 
considered to be accessible in terms of SPP subject policy and Structure Plan 
objective relating to Transport.  However, it is clear that the development is 
unlikely minimise travel by car by virtue of its location. The location does not 
prioritise walking, cycling or public transport.  There are reasonable connections 
to active travel (cycling) as well as public transport which can be improved, 
however at present there are failings and for these reasons it is considered that 
the development fails to meet the requirements of Aberdeen Local Development 
Plan Policy D3. 
 
Car Parking 
The original plan showed car parking for a total of 425 car parking spaces which 
was 116 (or 21%) below the maximum standards.  Serious concerns were raised 
at that time, and through discussions with the Roads Projects Team, the number 
of car parking spaces has been sufficiently increased to reflect the upper limit of 
the Council’s car parking standards.  A condition is attached which seeks a 
scheme to be agreed with the Council which will limit/stop indiscriminate parking 
within the Prime Four development and the Park & Ride site. A similar condition 
was attached to the grant of permission for the Prime Four development which is 
considered to meet the 6 tests as set out in Circular 4/1998 – the use of 
conditions in planning permissions. It is considered that the application is 
acceptable in terms of the Council’s Supplementary Guidance – Transport and 
Accessibility in terms of parking requirement. 
 
Vehicular Access & Traffic Impact 
Consideration has been given to the impact of the A944 junction on the existing 
external network, which has revealed a detriment to the operation of the 
Kingswells roundabout.  Having regard for the extent of not only this but also 
neighbouring developments, it is agreed that a collective solution is required to 
mitigate such impacts through the provision of physical improvements to the 
junction.  The precise details of such improvements will be dealt with through the 
s75 Legal Agreement and thereafter a monetary contribution will be made to the 
Council. 
 
 
 

Page 118



Vehicular access to the site would be provided through a substantial upgrade of 
the existing access point from the A944.  However it is noted it is unlikely that a 
priority junction, allowing right turning vehicles in and out of the site, would 
operate within capacity.  With current high traffic flows on the A944, entering the 
site from the east or exiting to the west would be virtually impossible at peak 
times.  Furthermore, the introduction of a signalised junction in this location is not 
feasible due to the proximity of the Prime Four access and the Aberdeen 
Western Peripheral Route (AWPR) junction.  In this instance, use of an upgraded 
priority access would only be acceptable with the access operating a left in/left 
out operation.  The applicant’s have recognised this and agreed to undertake the 
necessary works on the A944 to allow implementation.   
 
However, and notwithstanding such an arrangement, it will remain extremely 
difficult for vehicles to exit the site during peak periods.  A left in/left out only 
junction will increase the number of drivers having to carry out change of 
direction diversion manoeuvres in order to gain access to or leave the 
development.  Queuing or rolling queuing traffic is anticipated to extend 
westwards from the Prime Four access junction in the peak periods, past the 
application site access.  In peak periods it is likely that drivers exiting the 
development will be reliant on the goodwill of those queuing on the A944 to allow 
them to enter the carriageway.  For exiting drivers intending to head westwards, 
a change in direction can be achieved using the Kingswells roundabout.   
 
It is however noted that for drivers attempting to enter the site from an easterly 
direction; with the removal of the Arnhall roundabout near Westhill, the closest 
facility by which to change direction would be the roundabout on the A944 near 
Tesco in Westhill; a substantial diversion of approximately 3.2 miles.  The 
Council’s Roads Engineer has concerns that this would significantly increase the 
likelihood of drivers attempting to turn right into the C93C, also at capacity, to 
then turn back towards the site.  Earlier discussions with the Planning Authority 
evaluated the possibility of attaching a condition to restrict occupancy of the 
building until the opening of the AWPR and subsequent completion of a grade 
separated roundabout in close proximity to the west of the development, however 
such a condition may not be legally competent and would not have been 
appropriate.  In this regard, and in the absence of any such condition, the 
Council’s Roads Engineer objects to the granting of planning permission on the 
basis of road safety concerns. 
 
In light of such concerns, one must take a fully balanced approach in evaluating 
the proposal.  It is noted that the above concerns are based on speculation, in 
that drivers may attempt to perform a dangerous and illegal manoeuvre to 
access/leave the development.  However, when identifying and assessing the 
planning merits of a proposal, one must be careful not to allow speculation of a 
potential scenario to inform judgement of planning matters.  Whilst the Roads 
Engineer is of mind that such circumstances may arise, countered against this 
there is no evidence to suggest that this may realistically be the case.   
 
Furthermore, given the nature of this section of the A944, it could indeed be 
argued that the existing levels of traffic flow would discourage or even prevent 
such a scenario from taking place, in particular at peak times when the ratio of  
 
 

Page 119



drivers entering/exiting the site would be higher.  Indeed, the Council’s Roads 
Engineer has applied the same understanding to justify the agreed left in/left out 
priority junction; in that existing traffic flows are of sufficient level to prevent 
drivers entering from the east or exiting to the west.  For reasons of consistency, 
the same approach should therefore be applied to this scenario, which would 
indicate that the potential for illegal entering / exiting of the site is significantly 
reduced in light of existing traffic flow.  Whilst the diversions required may be 
inconvenient, there is no evidence to suggest that drivers would not follow them 
to gain access or to exit the site, and with no evidence to show that such 
manoeuvres would take place, one is thereby unable to realistically measure any 
impact on the capacity of the existing infrastructure.   
 
In addition to the above, it is also acknowledged that the ongoing construction of 
neighbouring developments will in time provide opportunity for potential access to 
the application site being taken via Prime Four from the north, enabling the A944 
junction to close.  Such a situation would hold clear benefits for the eventual 
occupier of the site, removing the need for detours and u-turn manoeuvres to 
access the left in/left out junction.  It is noted however that such a link would only 
be desirable on the basis that the A944 junction was closed. 
 
Notwithstanding the nature of the concerns from the Roads Engineer, with a lack 
of evidence to support them, it is concluded that basing such concerns on 
speculation alone would not be sufficient to justify refusal of the application. 
 
Trees & Woodland  
A tree survey has been undertaken and ratified by the Council’s Arboricultural 
Planner. The survey and accompanying plan show that of the 54no trees 
surveyed, 2no need to be felled for health and safety reasons, whilst 8no are 
required to be felled in order to permit development.   
 
The trees to be felled are located at the access point (2no ‘A’ class beech trees 
and 1no sycamore) and at the north-western corner of the site (1no ‘A’ class holly 
tree, 2no ‘C’ class sycamore trees, 1no ‘C’ class horse chestnut tree and 2no ‘C’ 
class holly trees) to allow the internal road to be constructed.  It is worth noting 
that the updated tree survey and plan are a significant improvement on the 
original situation, which sought to remove more trees along the A944 boundary to 
the south.  On the basis that the amount of trees to be removed being minimal, 
and with  the retention of the majority of boundary screening together with 
proposed compensatory planting, the proposal is considered to accord with 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan Policy NE5. 
 
Green Space Network 
The removal of ten trees is not considered to have a negative visual impact on 
the wider Green Space Network, given that the remaining trees along the north 
and east boundaries are to be retained.  In terms of wildlife impact, an ecological 
survey has been submitted which highlights that there were no bat roosts, badger 
or red squirrel activity within the application site.  Lastly, no birds were observed 
nesting in any of the trees proposed to be felled.   
 
 
 
 

Page 120



It is also worth noting that the applicant is seeking to retain the open ditch along 
the northern boundary of the application site, and has provided landscaping 
proposals in this regard, which also shows that no part of the building would be 
located within 20m of the watercourse, which is around 5m in width.  Whilst it is 
acknowledged that a section of car-parking would abut the watercourse, with 
permeable paving it would still be in line with the Council’s Supplementary 
Guidance on Buffer Strips. 
 
For the above reasons the proposal would not have be seen to have any 
negative impact on local wildlife, landscape or the access value of the Green 
Space Network, and therefore does not conflict with Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan Policy NE1. 
 
Drainage 
The historical route of the Den Burn is via culvert, running west to east through 
the site. Due to the culvert collapsing in the mid 1990’s a diversion was put in 
place whereby the Den Burn was piped south to north from around the mid-way 
point of the western side of the site up to the northernmost point of the site. As 
the Den Burn enters the site, it is within an open ditch to the eastern boundary 
where it moves south until it reaches the mid-point of the eastern boundary 
where it joins back into the piped section leading towards the Prime Four 
development. The intention is to have minimal impact on the existing drainage 
pattern. The only changes required would be a small section of ‘local bridge 
structure’ where the road abuts the north-western boundary, and within the north-
eastern corner of the site. Another small change is the slight re-alignment of the 
northern section to ensure a 6m buffer strip.  
 
In terms of SUDS provision, two levels of treatment are required, which will take 
the form of water draining into the porous paving forming the parking bays, and a 
filter drainage trench. The road surface water run-off will be collected by road-
side gulley and transported to a filter trench adjacent to the back of the footpath, 
which will then be passed through a secondary filter trench with an alternative 
filter medium to provide the second level of treatment. 
 
Both the Council’s ‘Flooding’ Officer and Roads Projects Team have confirmed 
no objections to the proposed drainage plans, as they fully satisfy the 
requirements of Aberdeen Local Development Plan Policy NE6. 
 
Sustainable Buildings 
The Council’s Policy (R7) and Supplementary Guidance (Low and Zero Carbon 
Buildings) seek to ensure that new buildings reduce the amount of predicted 
carbon dioxide emissions by at least 15% below the 2007 building standards in 
order to help meet the expectations of the Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009. 
The preferred option for the guidance and policy is for the installation of low and 
zero carbon emitting equipment (biomass, solar panels, air source heat pumps 
for example). However, the guidance suggests that there are instances where 
policy can be relaxed, namely; if it can be demonstrated that the building will 
achieve a CO2 saving greater than required by the current building standards, or, 
a financial contribution of £200 per 140sqm is made towards the improvement of  
 
 
 

Page 121



the energy performance of the existing housing stock. Although the applicant has 
intimated that their wish is to make a monetary contribution, in the absence of 
any detailed plans relating to carbon reductions, it is necessary to include a 
condition on the grant of permission. Once the necessary information is received, 
discussions can take place as to how this issue is progressed.  It is also worth 
noting that the intention of the developer is to achieve a BREEAM ‘Very Good’ 
rating which further shows a commitment to providing a sustainable building. 
 
Relevant planning matters raised by the Community Council 
Issues relating to architecture; design; tree removal; traffic impact; access; 
parking; and connectivity have been addressed in the relevant topic sections 
identified above. 
 
Further to these, the remaining points raised the Community Council can be 
addressed as follows: 
 
� The access is too close to “The Lodge” – the access point into the site is 

almost identical to the existing situation. The access cannot move any further 
west due to land ownership issues. 

� The diversion of the Den Burn to the rear of the building is unimaginative – 
the Den Burn is already diverted along the northern boundary through an 
open ditch and so the proposal does not change this to any material degree. 

� The access for the site should be through Prime Four – whilst this would be 
desirable, the Prime Four development is not at such an advanced stage that 
an access point can yet realistically be achieved or delivered, and therefore it 
has been agreed with the Planning Authority that the only way forward is to 
agree the left-in left-out arrangement as shown. 

 
Relevant planning matters raised in written representations 
Issues relating to proximity of access to “The Lodge”; architecture; design; scale; 
tree removal; drainage; sustainable transportation; traffic impact; access; parking 
and connectivity have been fully addressed in the various relevant topic sections 
identified above.  Further to these, the remaining points raised in representations 
can be addressed as follows: 
 
� Concerns about the re-routing of the Den Burn and the impact on adjacent 

property – as mentioned above, the Den Burn would only be marginally re-
routed to accommodate the development and it is not considered that this 
would have a detrimental impact on the adjacent property. 

� The traffic/junction/post-AWPR modelling is flawed – the modelling has been 
updated in line with recommendations from the Roads Projects Team and is 
now acceptable 

 
On the basis of the above, it is considered that there are no grounds for refusal of 
the application or further amendments to the plans. 
 
Proposed Legal Agreement for Developer Contributions 
The applicants have agreed to a developer contributions package for this site to 
deliver contributions towards enhancement of core path facilities and roads  
 
 
 

Page 122



infrastructure improvements, in addition to securing Strategic Transport Fund 
contribution as identified under the Roads Project Team consultation response 
above.  These matters will ensure compliance with Policy I1 of the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan, and are to be included in the Legal Agreement under 
the provision of S75 of the planning acts.   
 
Conclusion 
Subject to imposition of conditions and Legal Agreement, the proposed 
development would be considered to accord with Scottish Planning Policy and 
Guidance; the Aberdeen City & Shire Structure Plan 2009; Policy LR1 ‘Land 
Release Policy’ of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan; and Aberdeen City 
Council’s Supplementary Guidance, including the approved Development 
Framework for Opportunity Site (OP40).  All issues relating to design; scale; 
form; visual impact; traffic impact; access arrangements; car-parking; sustainable 
travel; impact on trees, landscaping and the Green Space Network; drainage; 
and building sustainability, have been fully evaluated in accordance with relevant 
consultations, and found to accord with all provisions of both national and local 
policy and guidance.  Notwithstanding the nature of the concerns from the Roads 
Engineer, basing such concerns on speculation alone, with a lack of supporting 
evidence, would not be sufficient to justify refusal of the application.  Full 
consideration has been given to all concerns raised in representations, but 
neither do they outweigh the policy position as detailed above, nor do they justify 
further amendments to the plans or refusal of the application.  All other relevant 
material considerations have been fully considered and in line with these the 
Planning Authority recommends a willingness to approve, subject to conditions 
and Legal Agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Willingness to approve, subject to conditions, but to 
withhold the issue of the consent documents until the applicant has 
entered into a Legal Agreement deliver: 
 
1) Strategic Transport Fund contributions, and  
2) Developer contributions towards: 
 
 

� Core Path Networks; and 
� Road improvements to mitigate the impact of development. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
Subject to imposition of conditions and Legal Agreement, the proposed 
development would be considered to accord with Scottish Planning Policy and 
Guidance; the Aberdeen City & Shire Structure Plan 2009; Policy LR1 'Land 
Release Policy' of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan; and Aberdeen City 
Council's Supplementary Guidance, including the approved Development 
Framework for Opportunity Site (OP40).  All issues relating to design; scale; 
form; visual impact; traffic impact; access arrangements; car-parking; sustainable 
travel; impact on trees, landscaping and the Green Space Network; drainage; 
and building sustainability, have been fully evaluated in accordance with relevant 
consultations, and found to accord with all provisions of both national and local  
 
 
 

Page 123



policy and guidance.  Notwithstanding the concerns from the Roads Engineer, 
basing such concerns on speculation alone, with a lack of supporting evidence, 
would not be sufficient to justify refusal of the application.  Full consideration has 
been given to all concerns raised in representations, but neither do they outweigh 
the policy position as detailed above, nor do they justify further amendments to 
the plans or refusal of the application.  All other relevant material considerations 
have been fully considered in reaching this recommendation. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
(1)  that no development shall take place within the application site until the 
applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work 
which shall include post-excavation and publication work in accordance with a 
written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and 
approved by the planning authority - in the interests of protecting items of 
historical importance as may exist within the application site. 
 
(2)  that no development shall take place unless a scheme detailing all external 
finishing materials to the roof and walls of the development hereby approved has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the planning authority and 
thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details so 
agreed - in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
(3)  that the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the car 
parking areas hereby granted planning permission have been constructed, 
drained, laid-out and demarcated in accordance with drawing Nos. 'AL(90)001 
revision R' and ‘AL(00)104 revision D' of the plans hereby approved or such other 
drawing as may  subsequently be submitted and approved in writing by the 
planning authority. Such areas shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose 
other than the purpose of the parking of cars ancillary to the development and 
use thereby granted approval - in the interests of public safety and the free flow 
of traffic. 
 
(4)  that no development shall take place unless a scheme of all drainage works 
designed to meet the requirements of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and 
thereafter no part of the development shall be occupied unless the drainage has 
been installed in complete accordance with the said scheme - in order to 
safeguard water qualities in adjacent watercourses and to ensure that the 
development can be adequately drained. 
 
(5)  that the development hereby approved shall be occupied unless a scheme 
detailing cycle storage provision has been submitted to, and approved in writing 
by the planning authority, and thereafter implemented in full accordance with said 
scheme - in the interests of encouraging more sustainable modes of travel. 
 
 
 
 
 Page 124



(6)  that no part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied unless a 
plan and report illustrating appropriate management proposals for the care and 
maintenance of all trees to be retained and any new areas of planting (to include 
timing of works and inspections) has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Planning Authority. The proposals shall be carried out in complete 
accordance with such plan and report as may be so approved, unless the 
planning authority has given prior written approval for a variation - in order to 
preserve the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 
(7)  that no materials, supplies, plant, machinery, spoil, changes in ground levels 
or construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas specified in 
the aforementioned scheme of tree protection without the written consent of the 
Planning Authority and no fire shall be lit in a position where the flames could 
extend to within 5 metres of foliage, branches or trunks - in order to ensure. 
adequate protection for the trees on site during the construction of the 
development. 
 
(8)  that the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the 
landscaping scheme as shown on drawing no. 'AD-13001-100 Rev H', or such 
other drawing as may subsequently be submitted and approved in writing by the 
planning authority, has been implemented in full accordance with the approved 
plans - in the interests of the amenity of the area. 
 
(9)  that all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 
completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be planted, or 
in accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and approved in 
writing for the purpose by the planning authority - in the interests of the amenity 
of the area. 
 
(10)  that the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless there 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority; through 
consultation with Transport Scotland and the Trunk Roads Authority where 
deemed necessary; a detailed Green Transport Plan, which outlines sustainable 
measures to deter the use of the private car, in particular single occupant trips 
and provides detailed monitoring arrangements, modal split targets and 
associated penalties for not meeting targets - in order to encourage more 
sustainable forms of travel to the development. 
 
(11)  that: 
(a) a minimum of two months prior to the commencement of any works 
associated with the development hereby approved, a site specific construction 
environmental management plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the planning authority, in conjunction with SEPA and any other 
agencies as deemed appropriate by the planning authority; 
(b) no development shall take place unless it is in full accordance with the 
relevant plan approved under part (a) of this condition. 
 
 
 Page 125



(12)  that no development shall take place unless the mitigation measures as 
identified in the Ecological report (dated 19.08.2013 version 5.0) by Direct 
Ecology have been implemented in their entirety - in the interests of safeguarding 
the fauna and habitats on-site. 
 
(13)  that: 
(a) the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a detailed 
scheme for the monitoring of car parking, and potential rat-running in and through 
the Prime Four development and Park & Ride site, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority; 
(b) thereafter, the scheme approved under part (a) of this condition shall be 
updated by the applicant, through consultation with the planning authority, to 
adequately reflect the ongoing progress of the Prime Four development. 
 
- in the interests of road safety and the free flow of traffic, sustainability and to 
ensure that public transport has suitable access to the site. 
 
(14)  that the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the 
asphalt path has been fully implemented along the southern boundary, between 
the access point and the eastern boundary, using a 'no dig' construction 
methodology in accordance with drawing nos. 'D1858.l.405' and 'AD-13001-100 
Rev H' hereby approved, or such other drawing as may subsequently be 
submitted and approved in writing by the planning authority - in the interests of 
protection of natural environment. 
 
(15)  that; 
(a) no development shall take place unless a detailed scheme showing the 
precise location, layout, design and construction method of a connection link, 
through the application site to the site boundary with the Prime Four 
development, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 
authority.  Such a scheme shall show the physical extent of the link stopping 1 
metre short of the boundary with Prime Four and include a 2 metre verge 
extending beyond the road boundary; 
(b) the development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless the 
connection link has been fully implemented in accordance with the approved plan 
under part (a) of this condition, unless the planning authority has given written 
approval for a variation. 
 
- in the interests of sustainable connections. 
 
(16) that, as per the Key Mitigation Recommendations detailed within the 
'Ecology Report' - Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey and Protected Species 
Assessment, by Direct Ecology and dated 19.08.2013 (version 5.0), no 
development shall take place unless a Pre-construction Survey has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the planning authority in consultation with 
Scottish Natural Heritage - to ensure protection of wildlife habitats within the site. 
 
(17) that the building hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a scheme 
detailing compliance with the Council's 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings'  
 
 
 

Page 126



supplementary guidance has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
planning authority, and any recommended measures specified within that 
scheme for the reduction of carbon emissions have been implemented in full - to 
ensure that this development complies with requirements for reductions in carbon 
emissions pecified in the City Council's relevant published Supplementary 
Guidance document, 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings'. 
 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Planning Development Management Committee 
EDGEHILL HOUSE, NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, 
MILLTIMBER 
 
REPLACE EXISTING HOUSE AND 
CONSTRUCT FIVE ADDITIONAL DWELLINGS 
WITH ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE, 
IMPROVED ACCESSES AND TREE 
PROTECTION WORKS    
 
For: Truedeal Securities Ltd 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P130211 
Application Date:       19/02/2013 
Officer :                     Gavin Evans 
Ward : Lower Deeside (M Boulton/A Malone/M 
Malik) 

Advert  : Can't notify neighbour(s) 
Advertised on: 06/03/2013 
Committee Date: 22 August 2013 
Community Council : No response 
received 
 

 

 RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Willingness to approve subject to conditions, with consent being withheld 
pending satisfactory conclusion of a planning agreement relating to the 
payment of monies in connection with developer contributions and 
affordable housing provision 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.4

Page 171



DESCRIPTION 
The application site, which extends to some 1.7ha/17,000sqm, is located on the 
edge of the Milltimber settlement, to the west of Aberdeen in the Deeside valley. 
The site  lies between Culter House Road, to the north, and North Deeside Road, 
to the south, and currently comprises a single detached dwellinghouse and 
associated detached garage, set within extensive grounds. The site can presently 
be accessed via a winding driveway which links the house to both Culter House 
Road and North Deeside Road. The majority of the site does not benefit from any 
direct road frontage, being set back behind other residential plots. To the north of 
the site lie 45 Culterhouse Road (Edgehill Cottage) and 47 Culterhouse Road 
(Gardenside), both detached residential properties set within generous plots. To 
the south, there are four detached dwellinghouses set between the application 
site and North Deeside Road, three of which are on the western side of the 
access driveway (250, 250A & 252) and one on the eastern side (248). To the 
east of the site, beyond the winding driveway, lies a further area of undeveloped 
woodland, which does not form part of the application site but is in the applicants’ 
ownership. Beyond that woodland lies Bellenden Walk, a roughly surfaced 
road/track which runs between Culter House Road and North Deeside Road. 
Bollards at a central point prevent through access, with the properties arranged 
along Bellenden walk being accessed by one or other of North Deeside Road 
and Culter House Road. To the west of the application site lies land allocated as 
Green Belt in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan, including ‘Fairgarth’, the 
former home of the Aberdeen International School, which was subject to 
compulsary purchase in connection with the construction of the Aberdeen 
Western Peripheral Route, the path of which takes in land adjacent to the 
western site boundary. 
 
The building within the application site itself is a large 1 ½ storey detached 
dwellinghouse, constructed in granite and cement and featuring a hipped roof 
with projecting pitched roof gables the upper sections of which are clad in 
hanging tiles. The existing dwellinghouse is understood to have been constructed 
in the late 1960s, occupying part of the footprint of the Victorian granite mansion 
that had previously been present. An area of the grounds immediately adjacent to 
the existing dwelling forms its principal garden grounds, and is distinct from the 
remainder of the site, being free of trees and more traditionally landscaped and 
laid to grass. Beyond a retaining wall, the wider site is less formally landscaped 
and features a number of established trees, particularly along the western and 
northern boundaries. Of the four dwellings to the south, the three on the western 
side of the access driveway were developed in the 1970s, the land having 
previously been part of the Edgehill House plot. The house on the eastern side of 
that driveway is Edgehill Lodge, a traditional granite cottage which was formerly 
part of the original Edgehill House site. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
Application P110038, submitted in January 2011, proposed the demolition of the 
existing lodge, which lies to the south of the application site, adjacent to North 
Deeside Road, and the erection of a replacement dwelling. Planning permission 
was granted under the Council’s scheme of delegation in March 2011. The 
replacement dwellilng approved at that time is similar in its design and styling to 
that currently proposed. 
 
 
 Page 172



PROPOSAL 
This application proposes the demolition of the existing Woodbank House and 
the construction of 6 houses within the wider site. The proposed dwellings would 
be arranged around an extended part of the existing driveway, each inclined to 
face the turning circle which forms the centre of the space.  
 
The dwellings themselves would be substantial 2-storey houses, set within 
generous plots ranging from 0.403 acres/1630sqm to 0.796 acres/3221sqm. 
Each of the houses would be predominantly finished in traditional wet-dash 
render, with smooth cement render also used alongside synthetic granite margins 
and entabliture. Coursed granite stonework would be used in the construction of 
a central projecting feature of each house, which would sit proud of the face of 
the dwelling and incorporate the main doorway and an upper floor bedroom 
window. Windows would feature stained timber frames with lead astragals 
fprming a cross-hatched fenestration pattern. Each of the dwellings would be 
constructed with a hipped  natural slate roof, with painted timber fascias and 
soffits. Adjoining each dwelling would be a double garage, each of which would 
feature a hipped, slated roof. 
 
Access to the site would be taken primarily from the south via North Deeside 
Road, with a new vehicular access constructed. The existing vehicular access 
from North Deeside Road would become a pedestrian only access, while the 
existing access from Culter House Road, to the north, would have bollards 
installed to close off vehicular access, thereby preventing a through route. A 
footway would be incorporated adjacent to the access point from North Deeside 
Road, but discontinued thereafter, giving way to a shared surface area. The 
access road would be single track, with passing places provided. 
 
Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?130211 

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO SUB-COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Sub-committee because a total of 6 
letters of objection have been received. Accordingly, the application falls outwith 
the scope of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Project Team – Accept parking provision in accordance with Council 
standards. Note and accept the proposals for access to the development site, 
provided that delivery of the visbility splay demonstrated at the access onto North 
Deeside Road be secured via a condition to attached to any consent. Also 
require that the relocation of an existing bus stop on the northern side of North 
Deeside Road be required by condition, in order that the visibility splay may be 
free of any obstruction. Highlight necessary contributions to the Council’s  
 
 

Page 173



Sustainable Transport Fund (STF), which may be obtained through use of an 
appropriate legal agreement. The submitted Drainage Impact Assessment is 
noted, and it is requested that a condition be attached to prohibit development 
until such time as the drainage approach proposed has been agreed with 
Scottish Water and SEPA. 
Environmental Health – No response received. 
Developer Contributions Team – The development is required to make 
developer contributions commensurate with the scale and impact of the 
development proposed, and as set out in the Council’s Infrastructure and 
Developer Contributions Manual. Contributions are required in relation to 
Affordable Housing, community facilities, sports and recreation, libraries, and 
core paths network. 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) -  Require full details of 
surface water drainage proposals. This can be obtained through use of an 
appropriate condition attached to any consent. 
Education, Culture & Sport (Archaeology) – No response received. 
Community Council – No response received. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
6 letters of representation have been received. The objections raised relate to the 
following matters – 
 

1. The site is formerly green belt, and this green wedge between Milltimber 
and Peterculter would be compromised by development, increasing overall 
housing density. 

2. The site makes an important contributon to the landscape setting of this 
part of the city by virtue of its woodland character. 

3. The proposal to create a third access point, onto North Deeside Road, 
would create an increased public safety hazard. The existing access is 
hazardous due to inadequate sight lines at the junction with Bellenden 
Walk. Suggests that access be restricted to a single point, via Culter 
House Road. Bollards across the single-track access road could restrict 
through traffic. 

4. The proposal represents overdevelopment of the site, as it exceeds the 
allocation specified in the ALDP. 

5. Construction traffic should be restricted to the northern access, via 
Culterhouse Road, on safety and amenity grounds. 

6. The site is partially covered by a Tree Protection Order. This should be 
extended across the entire site to allow statutory protection to the existing 
trees and woodland. 

7. Members are urged to undertake a site visit. 
8. Objection is stated in relation to the submitted tree report, as it fails to take 

into account the annoyance, loss of light and property damage caused by 
these trees. The removal of certain trees is requested, based on their 
impact on Bellenden walk. 

9. The proposed development would contravene the City Council’s 
presumption against feu splitting. 

10. The trees to be retained should be protected by planning conditions and 
by clauses in the deeds for the properties or by Tree Protection Orders. 

 
 
 Page 174



PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance 
 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) 
 Paragraph 82 of SPP highlights the important contribution that infill sites within 
existing settlements can make to the supply of housing land. It further states that 
infill sites should respect the scale, form and density of the surroundings and 
enhance the character and amenity of the community.  
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP) 
 
Policy LR1: Land Release Policy 
Housing and employment development on sites allocated in Phase 1 will be 
approved in principle within areas designated for housing or employment. 
Development on an allocated site or in close proximity to an allocation that 
jeopardises the full provision of that allocation will be refused. 
 
Policy I1: Infrastructure Delivery and Developer Contributions 
Sets out that development must be accompanied by the infrastructure, services 
and facilities required to support new or expanded communities and the scale 
and type of developments proposed. Where development either individually or 
cumulatively will place additional demands on community facilities or 
infrastructure that would necessitate new facilities or exacerbate deficiencies in 
existing provision, the Council will require the developer to meet or contribute to 
the cost of providing or improving such infrastructure or services. 
 
Policy T2: Managing the Transport Impact of Development 
New developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been 
taken to minimise the traffic generated. 
 
Maximum car parking standards are set out in Supplementary Guidance on 
Transport and Accessibility and detail the standards that different types of 
development should provide. 
 
Policy D1: Architecture and Placemaking 
To ensure high standards of design, new development must be designed with 
due consideration for its context and make a positive contribution to its setting. 
Factors such as siting, scale, massing, colour, materials, orientation, details, the 
proportions of building elements, together with the spaces around buildings, 
including streets, squares, open space, landscaping and boundary treatments, 
will be considered in assessing that contribution. 
 
Policy D2: Design and Amenity 
Policy D2 sets out a series of criteria for new development, intended to ensure 
that an appropriate level of amenity can be secured for residents of both that new 
development and neighbouring land and buildings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 175



Policy H3: Density 
States that the City Council will seek an appropriate density of development on 
all housing allocations. It is further stated that all residential developments of over 
one hectare shall meet a minimum density of 30 homes per hectare; have 
consideration of the site’s characteristics and those of the surrounding area; and 
create and attractive reidential environment and safeguard living conditions within 
the development. 
 
Policy H5: Affordable Housing 
States that developments of five units or more are required to contribute no less 
than 25% of the total number of units as affordable housing.  
 
Policy NE1: Green Space Network 
The City Council will protect, promote and enhance the wildlife, recreational, 
landscape and access value of the Green Space Network. Proposals for 
development that are likely to destroy or erode the character or function of the 
Green Space Network will not be permitted. 
 
Policy NE5: Trees and Woodlands 
There is a presumption against all activities and development that would result in 
the loss of or damage to established trees and woodlands that contribute 
significantly to nature conservation, landscape character or local amenity. 
Appropriate measures should be taken for the protection and long-term 
management of existing trees and new planting, both during and after 
construction. Buildings and services should be sited so as to minimise adverse 
impacts on existing and future trees and tree cover. 
 
Policy NE8: Natural Heritage 
Sets out the policy position as regards protected species and designated sites. 
Development that, taking into account any proposed mitigation measures, has an 
adverse effect on a protected species will only be permitted where it satisfies the 
relevant criteria in Scottish Planning Policy. This policy also sets out the 
requirement for surveys to be provided where development may have an adverse 
effect on a protected species. 
 
Policy R7: Low and Zero Carbon Buildings 
All new buildings, in meeting building regulations energy requirements, must 
install low and zero carbon generating technologies to reduce the predicted 
carbon dioxide emissions by at least 15% below the 2007 building standards. 
This percentage requirement will be increased as specified in Supplementary 
Guidance. 
 
Supplementary Guidance 
‘Low and Zero Carbon Buildings’; ‘Trees and Woodlands’; ‘Transport and 
Accessibility’ and ‘Sub-division and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages’ 
documents are of relevance. 
 
Other Relevant Material Considerations 
The matters raised in representations are material to the assessment of this 
application, only so far as they relate to legitimate planning considerations. 
 
 
 Page 176



EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Zoning / Land Release & Principle of Development 
The application site is allocated for residential development in the Aberdeen 
Local Development Plan, having been identified through the plan preparation 
process as being capable of accommodating a notional allocation of 5no 
dwellings. It is noted that the allocation figures are notional, based a broad 
estimate of the development potential of a site based on its area, and the stated 
allocation should not be taken to preclude a development for a greater number of 
units where it can be demonstrated that such development is otherwise accords 
with the provisions of the development plan. Policy LR1 sets out that Phase 1 
housing allocations such as this will be approved in principle within areas 
designated for housing, and that development on or near an allocated site that 
would prejudice the full delivery of that allocation will not be permitted. In this 
instance, the application proposes delivery of the full allocation, and so there is 
no conflict with policy land release policy as expressed in policy LR1 of the 
ALDP. 
 
Housing and employment development on sites allocated in Phase 1 will be 
approved in principle within areas designated for housing or employment. 
Development on an allocated site or in close proximity to an allocation that 
jeopardises the full provision of that allocation will be refused. Having been 
allocated for residential development, the principle of development of this type is 
established, and this application should be considered on the basis of the form in 
which that residential development is proposed.  
 
Existing Trees and Green Space Network Designation 
It is noted that the application site features a significant number of established 
trees, and that the proposed development will require the removal of some of 
those trees. A total of 232 trees were surveyed and recorded within the 
supporting tree report, of which 29 trees are identified for removal. None of those 
29 trees is identified for removal directly as a result of the development proposal, 
with all 29 being identified for removal due to their existing condition and for 
woodland management reasons. This has been accepted by the Council’s 
Arboricultural Planner, who is confident that the removals proposed would not 
adversely affect the wooded character of this part of the site. On visiting the site, 
the Council’s Aboricultural Planner noted that there appeared to have been a 
number of trees recently removed. On this basis, the replacement planting 
proposed is not considered to be sufficient, and should be enhanced to reflect 
those trees removed prior to submission of the planning application. An 
appropriate scheme of replacement planting, to the satisfaction of the planning 
authority, can be secured via an appropriate condition in the event of approval. 
 
Parts of the woodland around the edges of the application site are included within 
the Council’s designated Green Space Network. It is noted, however, that the  
 
 

Page 177



existing house and its formal garden, along with much of the space to the south, 
are not included in that designation. As noted above, there are no existing trees 
to be lost as a direct result of the proposed development. With the proposed 
development being centred on the footprint of the existing house and garden, any 
overlap with the Green Space Network would be minimal, and would be restricted 
to its subdivision for the formation of individual residential plots. On this basis, it 
is concluded that the proposed development would not represent any material 
threat to the character or function of the Green Space Network. 
 
Protected Species 
Given the woodland nature of the site, which provides good habitat for bats, a 
European Protected Species, it was necessary for the applicant to provide a bat 
survey in order to ascertain whether bats or their roosts were present on the site. 
The submitted survey demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Council’s 
Environmental Planner that there was no evidence of bats using the building. In 
this regard, the proposal is not considered to result in any adverse impact on a 
protected species, and therefore accords with policy NE8 (Natural Heritage) of 
the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 
 
Roads & Access 
The proposed access arrangements have been arrived at following liaison with 
the Council’s Roads Projects Team, who have stated their satisfaction with the 
arrangements proposed, provided that appropriate visibility can be maintained at 
the access onto North Deeside Road. A design showing an acceptable access 
has been provided, and it will be necessary to ensure that the access is provided 
prior to any occupation of the dwellinghouses proposed, in order to ensure that a 
safe access is in place to serve the development. Appropriate levels of car 
parking have been provided to serve the development, in accordance with policy 
T2 (Managing the Transport Impact of Development) of the ALDP and the 
associated ‘Transport and Accessibility’ supplementary guidance. 
 
Planning Gain & Affordable Housing 
The proposed development has been subject to assessment by the Aberdeen 
City and Aberdeenshire Developer Contributions Team, with contributions 
payable as noted in the ‘Consultations’ section of this report, above. The 
applicants are aware of this requirement, and have intimated their agreement to 
enter into an appropriate agreement under section 75 of the planning act to 
regulate payment of those monies. 
 
Design, Density & Quality of Environment 
The proposed new dwellings are large, detached houses, set within generous 
plots in a semi-woodland setting. In this regard, the proposal relflects the 
character of the surrounding community, which is characterised by large 
detached dwellings of this nature. The application site is located towards the 
western periphery of the Milltimber settlement, with the land immediately to the 
west, between Milltimber and Peterculter, zoned as green belt. It is noted that 
there is considerable variety in the wider area in terms of architectural style, 
including both traditional granite properties such as those seen along North 
Deeside Road and at Edgehill Cottage, to the north, along with more modern  
 
 
 
 Page 178



house types such as those seen immediately to the south and west of the 
application site. The use of vernacular material such as natural slate, timber 
windows and natural granite help to establish the relationship between the 
development and its surroundings. The proportions and styling are consistent 
across the six houses, and it is noted that the approach taken and materials used 
closely match those used in planning application P110038, which was granted 
planning permission for the construction of a new house in place of the existing 
Edgehill Lodge, to the south-east of the application site, adjacent to the access 
onto North Deeside Road. This consistent approach is welcomed, and helps to 
establish a distinct identity for this small pocket of Milltimber. The hipped-roof 
design of the dwellings is commonly seen in the surrounding area, while the 
principal elevations present a regular form and symmetry in detailing which is 
considered to make a positive contribution to the setting of these new buildings. 
In an area with no direct street frontage, and where dwellings are commonly set 
within large, well screened plots, there is no necessity to slavishly replicate the 
styling of an adjacent dwelling. As a standalone development site which will not 
be readily perceived from North Deeside Road, the proposed dwellings are 
considered to demonstrate due regard for their context and make a positive 
contribution to their setting, as required by policy D1 (Architecture and 
Placemaking) of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. The proposal also 
demonstrates due accordance with the general principles set out in the Council’s 
published supplementary guidance entitled ‘The Sub-division and redevelopment 
of Residential Curtilages’. 
 
The density of the development is broadly consistent with the allocation of the 
OP61 site for a development of 5 homes, involving the replacement of one 
existing house and the construction of 5 additional dwellings. The low-density 
character of the development reflect the character of the area, which is 
characterised by large detached dwellings in large plots, and is in part driven by 
requirements to retain existing trees so far as is possible on the site, which is 
heavily wooded in parts, particularly along its boundaries. This density of 
development is considered to be appropriate to this site, in accordance with 
policy H3 of the ALDP. The minimum density target of 30 dwellings per hectare 
specified in policy H3 cannot readily be achieved on a site such as this, as it 
would risk threatening the woodland character of the site and fundamentally 
altering the character of the area by introducing a high density form of 
development in an area where it would appear incongruous. It is therefore 
concluded that the proposal demonstrates due regard for the terms of policy H3.  
 
The generous plots, distance between the new dwellings and those present on 
adjacent site, and screening provided by existing tree cover are such that the 
proposed development would not raise any material concerns regarding direct 
impact on privacy and amenity afforded to residents of adjacent dwellings. The 
new dwellings would not have a direct street frontage onto North Deeside Road, 
however it is acknowledged that this is not possible on this particular site. In any 
case, the newly created shared access road, taken off the existing drveway at the 
centre of the site, would form the focal point of the development and each of the 
new dwellings would front onto this in the same manner as a street frontage. 
Each of the dwellings would benefit from extensive garden grounds, and would  
 
 
 

Page 179



be afforded ample outdoor amenity space within a pleasant woodland setting. 
Car parking associated with the development would not serve to dominate the 
site, and its woodland setting would be retained, creating a desirable residential 
environment for prospective residents. 
 
Policy R7 (Low and Zero Carbon Buildings) and Associated Supplementary 
Guidance 
The application does not include any details to demonstrate how Low and Zero 
Carbon Generating Technologies will be incorporated into the dwellings, or 
alternatively how the buildings could achieve deemed compliance with the 
Council’s published ‘Low and Zero Carbon Buildings’ supplementary guidance. 
On this basis, it will be necessary to attach an appropriate condition to secure 
such information in the event that the application is to be approved. 
 
Matters raised in representations 
It should be highlighted that the site’s former designation as green belt is of no 
relevance to determination of this application, which should focus on how the 
development proposal relates to the current development plan, in which the site 
is allocated for residential development. Any increase to overall housing density 
in the area would be minimal, with the generous plots of the new dwellings 
appropriately reflecting their surroundings and the densities commonly seen on 
comparable sites in the surrounding area. The site’s contribution to the landscape 
setting of this part of Aberdeen is acknowledged in this report, and it is concluded 
that the woodland character of the site and its landscape setting value would not 
be compromised by the development, which is sited in such a way as to avoid 
any material tree removals. 
 
It should be noted that, while a new access is to be created, this would act as the 
only vehicular access to the development, with other existing accesses being 
closed to vehicular traffic. This has been agreed with the Council’s Road Projects 
Team, with acceptable visibility being demonstrated at the new junction. An 
existing bus stop on the north side of North Deeside Road would require to be re-
sited in order to allow the necessary visibility, but this can be readily achieved 
through use of a condition attached to any grant of planning permission. 
 
As noted earlier in this report, that the site is allocated for 5 dwellings in the 
ALDP should be seen as notional and indicative, and it is entirely appropriate to 
consider any proposal on its own merits based on what a given site can readily 
accommodate. In this instance, the proposal maintains the character of the 
surrounding area, with large detached houses set within generous plots in a 
semi-woodland environment. That the number of dwellings proposed exceeds 
that which the site is allocated for should not in isolation be seen as grounds for 
refusal of the application. Members may wish to consider also that making 
efficient use of the available land within and immediately adjacent to our existing 
settlements assists in maintaning a sustainable settlement pattern and avoiding 
urban sprawl. It is not considered necessary to restrict the means by which 
construction traffic may access the site, and it is questionable if this is a 
legitimate course of action, given that the site can presently be accessed by any 
vehicular traffic via North Deeside Road using the public road. 
 
 
 

Page 180



The statement made regarding the presence of a Tree Protection Order (sic) is 
not correct. There is no formal protection for the existing trees on this site, 
however the planning authority has a duty to ensure, whenever appropriate, that 
in graniting planning for any development adequate provision is made, by the 
imposition of conditions, for the preservation or planting of trees. Appropriate 
conditions can require tree protection measures to be implemented during the 
construction phase, require replacement planting in mitigation for any trees 
removed, and to ensure that the developer is obliged to inform the authority of 
any additional tree works which may appear to become necessary during the 
construction phase. The making of any new Tree Preservation Order (TPO) is not 
a matter to be considered in assessment of this planning application, and utilises 
separate powers afforded to the planning authority. It is for members to decide if 
they wish to undertake a site visit if they deem it necessary. 
 
Objection is stated to a number of trees being retained, based on their existing 
impact on adjacent properties and the amenity of those residing there. This is not 
relevant to the planning authority’s consideration of the impact of the current 
development proposal, and will not be addressed further in this report. Culter 
Community Council, whose area does not include the application site, make 
reference to the development contravening the City Council’s presumption 
against feu splitting, however there is no such presumption. The City Council has 
published supplementary guidance on this topic, entitled ‘The Sub-division and 
Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages’, which sets out a series of principles to 
guide development of that nature. It is by no means accurate to say that there is 
a general presumption against such development, but rather than any such 
proposals must demonstrate accordance with the guidance contained in the 
aforementioned document.  
 
Summary  
In summary, the proposed development relates to a site allocated in the current 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan for a residential development of 5 houses 
within the first phase of the plan. The proposal is therefore consistent with the 
zoning of the site in the ALDP. The density of the development is consistent with 
the surrounding area, and is guided by the presence of existing trees within the 
site. Appropriate access has been agreed with the Council’s Roads Projects 
Team, with conditions required to ensure that the new access to serve the 
development is implemented in advance of occupation of any new dwelling. The 
design and form of the development, and its relationship with its surroundings, 
are considered to accord with the general principles set out in the Council’s 
supplementary guidance relating to the splitting of residential curtilages. The 
impact of the development on existing infrastructure and services can be 
appropriately mitigated through developer contributions in accordance with the 
Council’s published supplementary guidance on the topic, the payment of which 
can be controlled via a section 75 planning agreement. Compliance with the 
Council’s Affordable Housing policy can be secured via the same means, with a 
commuted sum having been agreed in consultation with the Council’s Developer 
Contributions Team. A bat survey has established that there is no evidence of bat 
activity on the site, as required by policy NE8 of the ALDP. Similarly, a tree 
survey has established the level of tree removal involved, which has been 
accepted by the Council’s Arboricultural Planner. The extent of replacement  
 
 

Page 181



planting is currently insufficient, however additional planting can be secured via 
the use of an appropriate condition attached to any consent granted. The 
proposal is not considered to have any adverse impact on the character or 
function of the Green Space Network. Taking these matters into account, it is 
concluded that the proposal demonstrates accordance with the relevant 
provisions of the development plan, and that no material considerations have 
have been identified that are of sufficient weight to warrant determination other 
than in accordance with that plan. It is therefore recommended that members 
express a willingness to approve this application subject to the following 
conditions, and subject also to the satisfactory conclusion of a legal agreement 
controlling the payment of developer contributions and a commuted sum in 
relation to affordable housing provision, as determined following consultation with 
the Council’s Developer Contributions team. The consent document shall not be 
issued until such time as an agreement to that effect has been concluded and 
appropriately registered against the land. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Willingness to approve subject to conditions, with consent being withheld 
pending satisfactory conclusion of a planning agreement relating to the 
payment of monies in connection with developer contributions and 
affordable housing provision 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed development is consistent with its residential zoning and its 
opportunity site designation in the Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP), 
and provides an appropriate design, scale and form of development, in 
accordance with policies H1 (Residential Areas) and D2 (Design and Amenity) of 
the ALDP and the associates supplementary guidance document in relation to 
the Sub-division and Redevelopment of Residential Curtilages. The Green Space 
Network designation which applies to the site would not be adversely affected by 
the proposed development, and the development has been proposed in such a 
way as to avoid any significant impact on the existing trees and woodlands, in 
compliance with policies NE1 (Green Space Network) and NE5 (Trees and 
Woodlands) of the ALDP. An appropriate form of development is proposed, and 
supporting surveys indicate that there would be no resultant adverse impact on 
bats, a European Protected Species, in accordance with polices H3 (Density) and 
NE8 (Natural Heritage). The individual and cumulative impacts of the 
development identified through consultation with the Council’s developer 
contributions team can may be adequately mitigated through the payment of 
contributions calculated in accordance with the Council’s published Infrastructure 
and Developer Contributions Manual.  
 
CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
(1)  That no development shall be undertaken until such time as the existing bus 
stop on North Deeside Road has been relocated in accordance with drawing  
 
 

Page 182



96035/1001, or any other such drawing as submitted to and approved in writing 
by the planning authority for this purpose - in the interests of safeguarding road 
safety by making provision for appropriate visibility at the main site access 
to/from North Deeside Road. 
 
(2)  that no development shall take place unless a scheme of all drainage works 
designed to meet the requirements of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and 
thereafter no part of the development shall be occupied unless the drainage has 
been installed in complete accordance with the said scheme - in order to 
safeguard water qualities in adjacent watercourses and to ensure that the 
development can be adequately drained. 
 
(3)  that no development pursuant to this planning permission shall take place, 
nor shall any part of the development hereby approved be occupied, unless there 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority, a 
detailed scheme of site and plot boundary enclosures for the entire development 
hereby granted planning permission. None of the buildings hereby granted 
planning permission shall be occupied unless the said scheme has been 
implemented in its entirety - in order to preserve the amenity of the 
neighbourhood. 
 
(4)  that no development shall take place unless a scheme detailing all external 
finishing materials to the roof and walls of the development hereby approved has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the planning authority and 
thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the details so 
agreed - in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
(5)  that no development pursuant to the planning permission hereby approved 
shall be carried out unless there has been submitted to and approved in writing 
for the purpose by the planning authority a further detailed scheme of 
landscaping for the site, which scheme shall include indications of all existing 
trees and landscaped areas on the land, and details of any to be retained, 
together with measures for their protection in the course of development, and the 
proposed areas of tree/shrub planting including details of numbers, densities, 
locations,  species, sizes and stage of maturity at planting - in the interests of the 
amenity of the area. 
 
(6)  that all planting, seeding and turfing comprised in the approved scheme of 
landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting season following the 
completion of the development and any trees or plants which within a period of 5 
years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a size and species similar to those originally required to be planted, or 
in accordance with such other scheme as may be submitted to and approved in 
writing for the purpose by the planning authority - in the interests of the amenity 
of the area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 183



(7)  that no development shall take place unless a plan showing those trees to be 
removed and those to be retained and a scheme for the protection of all trees to 
be retained on the site during construction works has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Planning Authority and any such scheme as may have 
been approved has been implemented - in order to ensure adequate protection 
for the trees on site during the construction of the development. 
 
(8)  that any tree work which appears to become necessary during the 
implementation of the development shall not be undertaken without the prior 
written consent of the Planning Authority; any damage caused to trees growing 
on the site shall be remedied in accordance with British Standard 3998: 2010 
"Recommendations for Tree Work" before the building hereby approved is first 
occupied - in order to preserve the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 
(9)  that no materials, supplies, plant, machinery, spoil, changes in ground levels 
or construction activities shall be permitted within the protected areas specified in 
the aforementioned scheme of tree protection without the written consent of the 
Planning Authority and no fire shall be lit in a position where the flames could 
extend to within 5 metres of foliage, branches or trunks - in order to ensure 
adequate protection for the trees on site during the construction of the 
development. 
 
(10)  that the dwellinghouse hereby approved shall not be occupied unless 
provision has been made within the site for the off-street parking of motor 
vehicles in complete accordance with Plan No. 1796-EHD-P03 or such other 
scheme as may be subsequently approved in writing by the planning authority - 
in the interests of road safety, the free flow of traffic and visual amenity. 
 
(11)  That the dwellings hereby granted planning permission shall be occupied 
unless provision has been made within the application site for refuse storage and 
disposal in accordance with a scheme which has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the planning authority - in order to preserve the amenity of 
the neighbourhood and in the interests of public health. 
 
(12)  that the dwellings hereby approved shall not be occupied unless a scheme 
detailing compliance with the Council's 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings' 
supplementary guidance has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
planning authority, and any recommended measures specified within that 
scheme for the reduction of carbon emissions have been implemented in full - to 
ensure that this development complies with requirements for reductions in carbon 
emissions pecified in the City Council's relevant published Supplementary 
Guidance document, 'Low and Zero Carbon Buildings'. 
 
  

Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206

This page is intentionally left blank



50-52 COLLEGE BOUNDS, OLD ABERDEEN 
 
PROPOSED ENTRANCE LIGHT     
 
For: The University of Aberdeen 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P130908 
Application Date:       20/06/2013 
Officer :                     Jennifer Chalmers 
Ward : Tillydrone/Seaton/Old Aberdeen (J 
Noble/R Milne/R Grant) 

Advert  :  
Advertised on:  
Committee Date: 29th October 2013 
Community Council : Comments 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approve subject to conditions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.5

Page 207



DESCRIPTION 
The site extends to 0.0305 hectare and is located at the junction of College 
Bounds and University Road in Old Aberdeen Conservation Area and on 
Aberdeen University campus. Two semi-detached granite buildings occupy the 
north-west corner of the site, set back 3.5 metres from the heel of the pavement 
and the low granite boundary wall. The north gable of No.52 overlooks the front 
lawn of Kings’ College. The buildings are predominantly 3½ storeys in height with 
a rear wing reducing in height from 2½ to 2 storeys. There is a single storey 
granite wing on the south gable of No. 50 College Bounds. The buildings are 
listed Category B and are University administrative offices, currently vacant 
pending their refurbishment for the same use. The remainder of the site is 
enclosed by a high granite wall and timber gates that screen a turning area and a 
lawn planted with semi-mature trees. There are University tennis courts to the 
east of the site and Crombie Halls of Residence to the west. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
P102014 – Conditional listed building consent granted on 20th May 2011 for 
‘Alterations and Refurbishment’  
 
P102021 – Conditional approval granted on 20th May 2011 for ‘Proposed 
entrance ramp and replacement of certain windows’ 
 
P120830 – Unconditional listed building consent granted on 27th February 2013 
to ‘Restore glazing to sash and case window, formerly glazed with plywood, open 
up to interior and form linings’ 
 
P130907 – Listed building consent application submitted, yet to be decided.  
 
PROPOSAL 
Detailed planning permission is sought to install an entrance light above the main 
entrance doors on the western elevation.   
 
This would be positioned midway between the 2 inner most first floor windows at 
a height of approximately 4m above ground level.   
 
The light would be an antique style pendant lantern with an aluminium base unit 
and cap.  The height of the lamp would be 750mm with an overall diameter of 
600mm.  The light would be 50W Son with a circular louvre that surrounds the 
lamp.   
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the Planning Development Management 
Committee because there is an objection from the Old Aberdeen Community 
Council. Accordingly, the application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s 
Scheme of Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Roads Projects Team – No observations 
Environmental Health – No observations 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) – No observations  
 
 Page 208



Community Council –  
Object on the basis that the specification of the proposed light unit is 
inappropriate for the location.  The planning application does not adequately 
define the proposed unit by specifying the proposed bulb or wattage, but the light 
will do little to illuminate the doorway, but at just 4m above pavement level will 
serve to dazzle pedestrians waling along the road.  There is adequate street 
lighting within a few metres.  Would suggest a light unit that will focus lighting 
more appropriately / sensitively for a conservation area.   
Street Lighting Team –  
Originally advised that a 70W SON/E lamp would be excessive and that there 
could be a risk of glare both of a discomforting and more importantly a disabling 
nature, if the light output is not adequately controlled.  As a result of a revised 
lamp being proposed, the Street Lighting Team are now satisfied with the revised 
proposal.   
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
No letters of representation/objection/support have been received.  
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
National Policy and Guidance 
Scottish Planning Policy – this states that the layout, design, materials, scale, 
siting and use of any development which will affect a listed building or its setting 
should be appropriate to the character and appearance of the building and its 
setting. 
 
Scottish Historic Environment Policy (SHEP) July 2009 - states that the planning 
authority must pay special attention to the desirability of preserving the building, 
or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it 
possesses. 
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
Policy D5 (Built Heritage) – the relevance of the local development plan policy is 
limited in this instance as the application is for listed building consent, however 
this policy states that proposals affecting Conservation Areas or Listed Buildings 
will only be permitted if they comply with Scottish Planning Policy. 
 
EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) 
Act 1997 places a duty on planning authorities to preserve and enhance the 
character or appearance of conservation areas 

The proposal to install an entrance light above the main entrance doors on the 
western elevation is considered acceptable. The proposed light is of an 
acceptable size, position on the building, design and material for a listed building 
within a conservation area.   
 

Page 209



In relation to the luminaire data, the Old Aberdeen Community Council objected 
to the original submission which was for a 70W SON/E light and that the light unit 
should focus lighting more appropriately and sensitively for a conservation area.  
As a result of these comments the applicant has agreed to reduce the proposed 
light to 50W SON/E which would reduce the light output and glare from the fitting.  
Furtherstill there is a circular louvre that surrounds the lamp which is intended to 
reduce sidewards glare thereby further reducing any impact on the listed building 
or on the surrounding conservation area.  The Street Lighting Team are now 
satisfied with the revised proposal. 
 
It is considered that the proposal complies with Policy D5 of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan and also Scottish Planning Policy and SHEP as the proposal 
would not have a detrimental impact on any special architectural or historic 
interests.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve subject to conditions 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
That the proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the character or 
amenity of the listed buidling or surrounding Conservation Area.  The reduced 
wattage of the light fitting would result in a light output that would not be 
detrimental to the listed building or surrounding conservation area.  Furtherstill 
there is a circular louvre that surrounds the lamp which is intended to reduce 
sidewards glare thereby further reducing any impact on the listed building or on 
the surrounding conservation area.   
 
It is considered that the proposal complies with Policy D5 of the Aberdeen Local 
Development Plan and also Scottish Planning Policy and Scottish Historic 
Environment Policy.   
 
CONDITIONS 
 
it is recommended that approval is granted subject to the following 
conditions:- 
 
(1)  That the fitting and means of fixing should be non-ferrous to prevent damage 
and staining and should use existing fixing holes or joints. 
 
Reason: To preserve the historic fabric of the building. 
 
(2)  That the light fitting shall be restricted to no greater than a 50W SON/E 
wattage. 
 
Reason: To reduce glare to the surrounding area. 
 
  
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



FORMER BUCKSBURN PETROL STATION, 
CHAPEL OF STONEYWOOD TO, FAIRLEY 
ROAD 
 
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATE 
ALTERNATIVE DEVELOPMENT (CAAD) FOR 
PETROL FILLING STATION WITH 
ASSOCIATED CLASS 1 RETAIL SHOP UP TO 
103.5SQM; SALE OF AGRICULTURAL 
VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT; AND GARDEN 
CENTRE AND NURSERY.  
 
For: A J Gray 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Certificate of Appropriate 
Alternative Development 
Application Ref.   :  P120374 
Application Date:       14/03/2012 
Officer :                     Matthew Easton 
Ward : Dyce/Bucksburn/Danestone(B Crockett/G 
Lawrence/N MacGregor/G Samarai) 

Advert  :  
Advertised on: 
Committee Date: 29th October 2013  
Community Council: No consultation 
required. 
 

 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That a certificate of appropriate alternative development is issued stating –  
 
1. that in respect of the land which is subject of the application, on the 

relevant date of 25th September 2007 or at a future time, planning 
permission would have been granted for –  

Agenda Item 2.6

Page 217



 
a. a petrol filling station with ancillary retail up to 103.5sqm 
 
b. for horticulture and nursery with a small-scale ancillary retail 

element (such as a farm-shop); 
 

c. for non-residential agricultural or forestry buildings; 
 

d. for telecommunications masts and ancillary equipment. 
 

but would not have been granted for any other use. 
 

2. that any planning permission described in (1) would have been granted 
subject to suitable conditions addressing the following matters – 

 
a. layout, design and external appearance of buildings or structures; 
 
b. mitigation of any contaminated land; 

 
c. surface water and foul drainage; 

 
d. access to the site; 

 
e. landscaping of the site. 

 
3. that because Scottish Ministers through Transport Scotland, made 

orders  under the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 promoting the Aberdeen 
Western Peripheral Route, which is the scheme for which the 
application land is to be acquired, it would not be appropriate to include 
planning permission for the scheme in the certificate as would normally 
be the case. 

 
 
BACKGROUND TO CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATE ALTERNATIVE 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
Where land is to be acquired using compulsory purchase powers the owner of 
the land or other person with an interest may apply to the planning authority for a 
certificate of appropriate alternative development (“CAAD”), which sets out the 
uses of the land for which planning permission would have been granted if the 
land was not been compulsorily acquired.  This is in order to assist in establishing 
the value of the land and thereafter an appropriate amount of compensation to be 
awarded to the landowner by the acquiring authority. 
 
A CAAD is not a planning application and must be assessed on a hypothetical 
basis and with reference to the planning policy and circumstances on the date 
which the compulsory purchase orders and notices were served (“the relevant 
date”). 
 

Page 218



The relevant legislation is the Land Compensation (Scotland) Act 1963 (“the 
1963 Act”) and the Planning and Compensation Act (Scotland) Orders 1991. 
 
When submitting a CAAD application, the applicant must state whether or not 
there are in the applicant’s opinion, any classes of development which either 
immediately or at a future time, would be appropriate for the land in question, if it 
were not proposed to be compulsorily acquired. The applicant must also state 
their grounds for holding that opinion. 
 
In determining a CAAD application, the planning authority are required to issue a 
certificate stating that –  
 
a. planning permission would have been granted for development of one or 

more classes specified in the certificate (whether specified in the application 
or not) and for any development for which the land is being acquired, but 
would not have been granted for any other development; or 

 
b. that planning permission would have been granted for any development for 

which the land is to be acquired, but would not have been granted for any 
other development. 

 
Section 25(5) of the 1963 Act allows where it is the opinion of the planning 
authority that planning permission would have only have been granted subject to 
certain conditions, or only at a future time, or both, to specify this in the certificate 
issued. 
 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
The application site comprises an area of ground located immediately adjacent to 
the A96 trunk road, approximately 1km west of the Dyce Drive / A96 junction and 
300m east of the Marshall Trailers site at Chapel of Stoneywood.  
 
The site was previously occupied by a petrol station, which was closed in 1997 
and subsequently demolished in 1999. Little visual evidence of the former petrol 
station remains. 
 
The site comprises 4500m2, is triangular in shape and has two access points 
onto the A96. A concrete area of approximately 950m2 covers the western end of 
the site whilst the remainder comprises overgrown ground with grass and self 
seeded small shrubs. A tree belt, which the Greenburn passes through, encloses 
the site on its southern boundary. To the north is the A96 which at this point is 
dual-carriageway. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
 
� Planning permission (1955/21/--/11) (“the original 1955 permission”) was 

granted for a petrol filling station at the site in 1955. The petrol station was 
built and the use continued until 1997 when it was closed.  

 

Page 219



� Planning permission (85/0654) to erect a garage workshop was refused in 
August 1985.  

 
The reasons for refusal were that the proposal, if implemented, would be (1) 
detrimental to the amenity of the neighbourhood in general by reason of the 
sporadic type of development in the open countryside; (2) prejudicial to public 
safety by reason of (a) its location adjacent to a heavily trafficked length of 
Trunk Road, and (b) the shortage of parking and manoeuvring space which 
will remain when the Trunk Road is widened; and (3) contrary both to the 
Structure Plan and the City North Local Plan in so far as the establishment of 
new developments within the Green Belt is concerned. 
 

� Planning permission (85/2125) to erect a filling station, garage workshop, 
small showroom, retail shop and managers dwelling house was refused in 
January 1986. 

 
The reasons for refusal were that the that the proposal, if implemented, would 
be (1) detrimental to the amenity of the neighbourhood by reason of being a 
sporadic development in an area of open countryside; (2) prejudicial to public 
safety by reason of the development's location on a heavily-trafficked length 
on Trunk Road; and (3) contrary both to the Structure Plan and to the City 
North Local Plan in so far as the establishment of new developments within 
the Green Belt was concerned. 
 

� Planning permission (93/2458) for the redevelopment of the petrol filling 
station and for the erection of a restaurant with a seating capacity of 60 was 
refused in March 1994. 

 
The reasons for refusal were that the proposal would be (1) contrary to the 
Green Belt policy (GB1) as contained in the City District-Wide Local Plan by 
reason of (a) the introduction within the redevelopment scheme of a 
restaurant, a use which does not need to be located in the countryside; and 
(b) the unacceptable intensification of buildings and use which the proposal 
would represent; (2) be visually obtrusive, to the detriment of the visual 
amenity of the Green Belt; and, (3) set an undesirable precedent for 
applications of a similar nature, the cumulative effect of which would lead to 
an erosion of the Green Belt policy. 
 
An appeal to the Secretary of State against the decision was lodged by the 
applicant, which was subsequently dismissed. The reporter stated that the 
main issue was not the redevelopment of the petrol filing station in itself, but 
that the introduction of the restaurant would be contrary to Green Belt Policy 
GB1 of the Aberdeen City District-Wide Local Plan in terms of the adverse 
effect on visual amenity and that the need for the development at this location 
was not proven. 
 

� A planning application (95/1332) (“the 1995 permission”) solely for the 
refurbishment of the petrol filling station and associated shop (103.5m2) was 
approved subject to conditions by the Planning Committee in October 1995. 

Page 220



Although the description stated ‘refurbishment’ the application did in fact 
involve the demolition and rebuilding of the petrol station.  

 
It was considered at the time that the refurbishment alone would be an 
intensification of an existing use and therefore acceptable under Part (xii) 
Existing Activities, of Policy GB1 of the Aberdeen City District-Wide Local 
Plan, which stated “where existing activities… are located within the Green 
Belt, proposals for expansion or intensification of such activities will be 
considered on their merits in the context of Green Belt policy taking account 
of the suitability of the use of the site and character of enlargement or 
intensification that is proposed…”.   
 
The planning permission was never implemented. 
 

� The petrol filling station was closed in 1997. The applicant states that the 
reason for the closure in 1997 was due to the growing uncertainty over the 
compulsory purchase of the site for an upgrade to the A96.   

 
� A building warrant (B99/0727) was granted in 1999 and the petrol filling 

station was subsequently demolished and site cleared in the same year. 
 
� A planning application (A0/1655) for the renewal of the 1995 planning 

permission (95/1332) to rebuild the petrol station was refused by the Planning 
Committee in September 2001. 

 
In evaluating the proposal the case officer’s report stated that the proposal 
“could no longer be considered to be the intensification of an existing use.  
The use is not only no longer in operation... the physical structures have been 
removed from the site, leaving only the base slabs.  The proposal therefore 
essentially consists of the introduction of a new use onto the site”.   

 
The reasons stated in the refusal document were (1) that the application 
proposal is contrary to green belt policy in the adopted Grampian Structure 
Plan, the Aberdeen City District-Wide Local Plan and the finalised Aberdeen 
and Aberdeenshire Structure Plan and to green belt and transportation policy 
in the finalised draft Aberdeen Local Plan, as it does not relate to an existing 
or established use, nor to a use which cannot be accommodated other than 
within the green belt, nor does it fall within any other  category of use listed as 
exceptions to the general presumption against development in the green belt; 
and (2) that the proposed filling station would be highly prominent and 
detrimental to visual amenity within the green belt and on this trunk road 
which is a major arterial route into the city. The proposal is, thereby, 
unacceptable and contrary to policy 10.2.21 ‘Approaches to the City’ in the 
adopted local plan.” 

 
PROPOSAL 
 
An application for a CAAD has been submitted by GVA on behalf of AJ Gray, 
who have been served a compulsory purchase order relating to land described 
above. 

Page 221



 
The land is being acquired by Transport Scotland on behalf of Scottish Ministers, 
to allow for the construction of the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route (“the 
AWPR”) scheme.  
 
In this instance the draft compulsory purchase order was published on the 25th 
September 2007 and therefore for the purpose of assessing the CAAD, this is the 
relevant date. It must also be assumed that that at the relevant date and at any 
future date, that the AWPR scheme did not exist. 
 
It is the opinion of the applicant that on the relevant date, had the site not been 
subject of compulsory purchase, the following land uses would have been 
appropriate –  
 
� Petrol filling station with ancillary retail up to 103.5sqm; (herein known as the 

“petrol station”; 
� Sale of agricultural vehicles and equipment 
� Garden centre and nursery 
 
The main grounds which the applicant has for this opinion is that the original 
1955 planning permission for the petrol station was implemented and has not 
been abandoned. It is contested that there is no provision in planning law which 
prevents the original 1955 permission from continuing to have effect. Therefore 
although now almost 60 years has past since the original planning permission 
was implemented and petrol station constructed, the planning permission could 
be utilised again and a new petrol station constructed. 
 
Whilst the applicant is principally relying on the above to support the CAAD 
application, they are also of the view that the 1995 planning permission (95/1332) 
was implemented through the demolition which took place in 1999 and is thus is 
still a live planning permission.  
 
However as there was a failure to discharge a suspensive condition relating to 
submission of a landscaping scheme prior to the commencement of work, there 
is doubt over whether the 1995 planning permission was implemented lawfully 
and therefore capable of implementation. 
 

Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at –   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?120374. On accepting 
the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first page of this 
report. A number of supporting statements have been received from GVA in 
support of their applicant’s case. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 222



REASON FOR REFERRAL TO SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
The application has been referred to the Sub-committee because the 
determination of certificates of appropriate alternative development are not 
included within the scope of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
No consultation is required for a CAAD application. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
It is Transport Scotland’s view, as the acquiring authority with compulsory 
purchase powers, that planning permission would not have been granted for the 
erection of a petrol station and associated retail on the relevant date or any future 
date, predominately because it would be contrary to the development plans 
policies on the green belt, retailing and the location of petrol filling stations. The 
planning history of the site is also relevant and indicates that the introduction of 
new uses in the green belt would not to be acceptable. 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
For the purposes of assessing the CAAD application, the relevant planning 
policies are those which were in place on the relevant date (25th September 
2007) –  
 
Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan (North East Scotland Together) 
(2001) 
 
Policy 28 (Development Within the Green Belt) – No development will be 
permitted in the green belt for purposes other than those essential for agriculture, 
forestry, recreation, mineral extraction or restoration or landscape renewal. 
 
Aberdeen City Wide District Local Plan (1991) 
 
Policy GB1 (Green Belt) – in these areas there will be an embargo against all 
development, unless it concerns uses which must be located in the countryside, 
those directly related to nature conservation or to uses already existing in the 
green belt.  It should be noted that existing non-conforming uses, or valid 
planning permissions, within the green belt are not affected by the adoption of 
this green belt Policy. 
 
The policy then goes on to list acceptable development in the green belt –  non-
residential agricultural or forestry buildings, new houses for established local 
needs, certain recreational uses, institutional uses, rehabilitation or conversion of 
historic or architectural important buildings, replacement of existing houses, 
mineral workings, provision of utilities, land infill and reclamation, mineral 
workings, provision of utilities, landfill and reclamation, burial grounds, 
horticultural and nurseries, existing activities and nature conservation. 
 

Page 223



Part xi specifically deals with horticulture and nurseries and states that “where 
the prime function is the production of foodstuffs or flowers for sale, or the raising 
of plants for sale or replanting, are legitimate uses within the green belt. In 
association with such use a small-scale retail element, such as a farm shop, is 
also acceptable, but a garden centre will not normally be permitted within the 
green belt because of the level of traffic generation and the concentration of 
buildings, car parking and other activities necessary for the successful operation 
of a garden centre. Such a use is more appropriately located in the built –up 
area, or if attached to a nursery, in the immediate rural fringe surrounding the 
rural area”. 
 
10.2.21 (Approaches to the City) – The City Council will expect high visual 
standards in the treatment or development of the main traffic corridors or 
approaches to the City. 
 
Finalised Aberdeen City Local Plan (Green Spaces | New Places) – Modified 
Written Statement) (August 2004) 
 
Due to it’s advanced stage, the Finalised Aberdeen City Local Plan (as modified) 
would have been a significant material consideration in the determination of any 
planning applications in 2007 as it represented the Council’s most up-to-date 
statement of planning policy. 
 
Policy 27 (Green Belt) – In the Green Belt there will be an embargo against all 
development unless uses for which a countryside location is essential;  
� Agriculture, forestry, outdoor recreation, mineral extraction or restoration and 

landscape renewal 
� Expansion of existing activities within existing site boundaries, which will be 

treated on their merits and in the context of green belt policy; 
� Indoor sports and institutional uses on specific identified sites; 
� Infrastructure development that cannot be accommodated other than in the 

green belt and is wholly compatible with the development plan. 
 
Policy 28 (Green Space Network) – Development that destroys or erodes the 
character and function of the Green Space Network will not be permitted. 
 
EVALUATION 
 
Each of the three groups of uses proposed in the CAAD application will be 
assessed in turn. Thereafter any other potential uses and material considerations 
which have not been included by the applicant within the application will be 
considered. 
 
Petrol filling station with ancillary retail up to 103.5sqm 
 
It is first necessary to determine whether a valid planning permission for a petrol 
existed at the site on the relevant date. 
 
The applicant claims that both the original 1955 planning permission and the 
1995 permission for rebuilding the petrol station were valid permissions which 

Page 224



they could have benefited from on the relevant date. There are three questions 
which must be asked in order to determine if this is the case. 
 
1. Was the original 1955 permission still capable of being implemented in 

September 2007 or any subsequent date? 
 

The original 1955 permission was implemented when the petrol station was 
originally built. It is understood to have operated for 42 years until 1997 when 
it was closed and thereafter it was demolished in 1999.  

 
The applicant contests that the original 1955 permission was in September 
2007, and still is, capable of being implemented again, in order to construct a 
new petrol station. Whilst it is the case that a valid permission capable on it’s 
own terms of being implemented cannot be abandoned (Pioneer Aggregates 
(UK) Ltd. v Secretary of State for the Environment (1985)), this is in contrast 
to existing use rights which are being discussed in this instance. 
 
In Cynon Valley Borough Council v Secretary of State for Wales (1986) 280 
EG 159, it was ruled that once a material change of use is implemented, the 
permission which granted that change becomes spent. The permission only 
authorises a single change of use and cannot have continuing effect in 
allowing a recommencement of the original use at a later date. Although that 
particular case was in relation to change of use, it follows that the same 
principle would apply to operational development. This is the principle which 
is commonly applied throughout the planning system and is what will be 
applied in this case. 
 
During the demolition in 1999 the building, supporting structures and pumps 
were removed with no apparent intention to resume the use, resulting in what 
could be described as nil-use of the land.  It therefore follows that as the site 
was no longer being used as a petrol station, any new use or 
recommencement of the petrol station use would be operational development 
and therefore would require planning permission. If this were not the case 
then a single planning permission could in theory be used repeatedly to build, 
demolish and rebuild the same development in perpetuity. 
 
Taking the foregoing into account, it is considered that the argument that the 
original 1955 permission is still capable of being implemented is a flawed. Any 
potential development which took place based on that permission would at 
the relevant date or at any time in the future be unlawful and constitutes a 
breach of planning control. 

 
2. Did the demolition of the petrol station in 1999 constitute the initiation of 

development and therefore implementation of the 1995 permission to rebuild 
the petrol station? 

 
In order to determine whether the demolition of the petrol station in 1999 
constitute the initiation of development and therefore implementation of the 
1995 permission to rebuild the petrol station, it is necessary to look at the 
definition of the initiation of development. 

Page 225



 
Section 27 (Time when development begun) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) explains what constitutes an 
initiation of development in terms of implementation of a planning permission 
and explains that if the development consists of the carrying out of operations, 
then development is initiated at the time when those operations are begun. 
The 1997 act goes onto explicitly confirm in s.27(4)(b) that a material 
operation includes “any work of demolition of a building.”  

 
As previously mentioned the petrol station was demolished in 1999. Whilst it 
is debatable whether the applicant’s intention at the time was to ever continue 
with the construction of the petrol station, following the judgement in the case 
of East Dunbartonshire Council v Secretary of State for Scotland and 
MacTaggart & Mickel Ltd. [1999] 1 PLT 53, it is clear that the test which must 
be applied is an objective one and not a subjective assessment of the 
applicant’s intentions. The Court held that Parliament had laid down precisely 
what was required to be done on a site to keep a planning permission alive, 
and that was all that was required, no more and no less. 
 
There is no dispute that the demolition took place in 1999, which was within 
the 5 year (at the time) period within which a planning permission must be 
commenced.  
 
With no requirement for the applicant to demonstrate any particular intention, 
it is apparent that the simple act of the demolition constituted a 
commencement of the development of the 1995 permission. 

 
3. Did the failure to discharge a suspensive condition attached to the 1995 

permission render the commencement of development unlawful? 
 

Although the 1995 permission was implemented, it has come to light that 
there was a failure by the applicant to discharge a suspensive condition which 
required a landscaping scheme to be submitted and agreed with the planning 
authority before development commenced.  
 
The general principle (known as the Whitley Principle after the case of FG 
Whitley & Sons Co Ltd. v Secretary of State of Wales [1990][ JPL 678) is that 
works which commence without addressing a suspensive condition cannot be 
taken as lawfully commencing development.  
 
However the courts have ruled more recently in the case of R (on the 
application of Hart Aggregates Ltd) v Hartlepool Borough Council [2005] 
EWHC 840 (Admin), that this principle does not apply to all conditions, but 
only to those which 'go to the heart of the permission'. It is therefore 
necessary to consider the scope and nature of the condition and the reasons 
why it was attached to the permission. If the condition is not central to the 
development, or relates only to minor aspects or one particular aspect of the 
development, then any breach of the condition would not result in the 
development having commenced unlawfully and the permission would remain 
live. 

Page 226



 
The condition in this instance states “that no development pursuant to this 
planning permission shall take place unless there has been submitted to and 
approved in writing for  the purpose by the planning authority a scheme of 
landscaping for the site, which scheme shall include indications of all existing 
trees and hedgerows on the land, and details of any to be retained, together 
with measures for their protection in the course of development, and the 
proposed areas of tree / shrub planting including details of numbers, 
densities, locations, species, sizes and stage of maturity a planting - in the 
interests of the amenity of the area.”     

 
Other than in the specific condition, the evaluation within the committee report 
for the 1995 permission provides very little discussion on the matter of the 
landscaping of the site. The report explains that “the visual impact that the 
refurbishment scheme would on the landscape setting of the green belt” 
would be the main consideration in assessing the application. After describing 
the differences between the existing petrol station and the one proposed, the 
reports states that although it would be marginally more visually intrusive and  
despite the intensification of the use, that on balance the new petrol station 
would be acceptable in terms of visual amenity. No specific mention is made 
of a landscaping scheme or the landscaping of the site. 
 
Given that a petrol station existed on the site already, its integration into the 
landscape would have been of less significance than if the application were to 
establish a completely new use within the green belt. From the photos 
supplied by the applicant of the petrol station when it was open prior to 1997, 
it is apparent that there the landscaping around the building and forecourt was 
sparse and was comprised of little more than a few small shrubs and bushes 
spread sparingly  throughout the site. 
 
Therefore taking the foregoing into account, it is difficult to see how the 
landscaping condition could be considered to ‘go to the heart’ of the planning 
permission, especially given that it is not mentioned in the assessment of the 
application. 
 
Therefore, despite the breach of condition, the implementation of the 1995 
permission through the demolition of the petrol station is considered to have 
been lawful.  
 
There is no time limit within which a development must be completed, 
therefore on the relevant date and at any time in the future, work could have 
recommenced to complete the petrol station approved under the 1995 
permission. 

 
� It is now apparent that the submission by the applicant and the assessment 

by the planning authority of the refused planning application for rebuilding the 
petrol station in 2000 overlooked the potential for the 1995 permission to still 
be live and capable of implementation. Had the true situation been 
appreciated, the planning authority would have had to accept that a live 
permission existed for the site and that it was capable of being implemented. 

Page 227



Therefore it is likely that application A0/1655 would have been recommended 
for approval by planning officers. The benefit of hindsight must be used in the 
assessment of the CAAD application and the fact that the 2000 application 
was refused should not be taken into account. 

 
In summary, with respect to whether planning permission would have been 
granted for a petrol filling station with ancillary retail up to 103.5sqm on the 
relevant date, it is concluded that the original 1955 permission is not capable of 
implementation.  
 
However, the 1995 planning permission was implemented lawfully in 1999 when 
the original petrol station was demolished, despite the fact that the suspensive 
condition relating to submission of a landscaping scheme was not discharged.  
 
With the existence of a live planning permission on the site for a petrol station 
and ancillary retail, it is concluded that on the relevant date in 2007 if the 
planning authority were presented with a planning application for petrol station 
and ancillary retail it would have found itself in the position whereby there would 
be no option other than to accept the principle of a petrol station use at the site. 
 
Sale of agricultural vehicles and equipment 
 
The site was located in the green belt the Aberdeen City Wide District Local Plan 
(1991). Whilst one might naturally expect a use for the sale of agricultural 
vehicles and equipment to be found in the green belt, the use does not fall within 
any of the categories of development permitted by Policy GB1. Although there 
are examples of such uses being located within the green belt (e.g. Marshall 
Trailers are short distance away), there appears to be no fundamental 
requirement for the use to be located within the green belt. The sale of 
agricultural vehicles and equipment could equally take place from an industrial 
estate on the edge of the city but within the urban area or beyond the green belt 
within a smaller settlement. It is considered that in principle neither location would 
have significant impact on the ability of someone in that business to successfully 
operate. 
 
In summary, on the relevant date in 2007 if the planning authority were presented 
with a planning application for the sale of agricultural vehicles and equipment at 
the application site, planning permission would not have been granted.  
 
Garden centre and nursery 
 
Part xi of Policy GB1 (Green Belt) specifically states that garden centre use will 
not normally be permitted within the green belt because of the level of traffic 
generated and the concentration of buildings, car parking and other activities 
necessary. Such uses are more appropriate in built up areas or if accompanied 
by a nursery, in the immediate rural fringe around an urban area.  
 
A garden centre would not have been supported at this location in principle and 
the site is not located adjacent to the urban fringe. Therefore, on the relevant 

Page 228



date, the planning authority would not have granted planning permission for a 
garden centre and nursery. 
 
Notwithstanding this, Part xi of Policy GB1 (Green Belt) does allow horticulture 
and nursery use where the prime function is the production of foodstuffs or 
flowers for sale, or the raising of plants for sale or replanting. A small-scale retail 
element, such as a farm shop, is also acceptable. 
 
Therefore although a garden centre and nursery would not have been supported, 
horticulture or nursery use accompanied small scale ancillary retail on its own 
would have been granted planning permission. 
 
Other Proposed Uses 
 
It is appropriate to consider other types of development which may have been 
acceptable at the application site on the relevant date. To make this assessment 
it is considered appropriate to take each of the uses mentioned in Policy GB1 
(Green Belt Areas) in turn – 
 
� (i) Non-Residential Agricultural or Forestry Building – In principle the use 

of the land for agricultural or forestry buildings would be acceptable within the 
green belt. However, permitted development rights for such buildings would 
not have applied because the site is located within 25m of a trunk road. 

 
� (ii) New Houses for Established Local Needs – Planning permission for a 

new house required for an essential agricultural or forestry worker would not 
have been granted at this site. The policy permits such housing only where a 
worker must be located immediately adjacent to their place of employment 
and where there is a proven economic need. The site is not associated with 
any agricultural or forestry land and therefore it appears that it would have 
been difficult to justify such a proposal. 

 
� (iii) Certain Recreation Uses – Open air recreational uses which are 

normally located outwith urban areas and require large amounts of open 
space were permitted by part (iii) of the policy. Given the small size of the site 
it would not be possible to meet the criteria set out in this part of the policy. 
Furthermore the site’s prominent position on the trunk road, would not allow it 
to be utilised for such uses without detriment to visual impact. Therefore 
planning permission would not have been granted 

 
� (iv) Institutional Uses, (v) Rehabilitation or Conversion of Historic or 

Architecturally Important Buildings (vi) Replacement of Existing 
Houses, (vii) Mineral Workings 

 
The site would not be capable of benefiting from any of the above categories 
of development in terms set out in the policy. 
 

� (viii) Provision of Utilities – Green belt policy allowed for the provision of 
utilities if as part of their normal operation they could not be located anywhere 

Page 229



other than the green belt. Most utilities benefit from permitted development 
rights and therefore would not have required planning permission.  

 
However telecommunications masts and equipment would have required 
planning permission. National and local policy supported the expansion of 
telecommunications networks and therefore subject to siting and design the 
principle of new telecommunications equipment within the green belt would be 
acceptable. 
 

� (ix) Landfill and Reclamation, (x) Burial Grounds – Given the small size of 
the site and its prominent position on the trunk road, planning permission 
would not have been granted for landfill, reclamation or waste disposal use or 
as a burial ground. 

 
� (xiii) Nature Conservation – The establishment of nature reserves and 

provision of appropriate facilities for interpretation, enjoyment and study are 
permitted by green belt policy. Given the small scale of site, lack of any 
natural heritage designation, such a use would seem unlikely. 

 
The Finalised Aberdeen City Local Plan (Green Spaces | New Places) – Modified 
Written Statement) (August 2004) was at an advanced stage in September 2007 
and therefore would have been a significant material consideration in the 
determination of any planning application. However the green belt policy included 
within this plan was more restrictive than Policy GB1 of the 1991 plan. 
Furthermore the site was included within the green space network, which 
provided an additional layer of protection to open and green spaces.  
 
For these reasons, there is nothing within the 2004 Finalised Plan which would 
suggest that any of the above or any other uses would have been granted 
planning permission. 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
� As the acquiring authority, Transport Scotland has an interest in the outcome 

of the CAAD application. The arguments offered in the representation from 
Transport Scotland as to why a new petrol filling station would not have been 
acceptable are generally accepted, had it not been for the existence of the 
live planning permission from 1995. The construction of the petrol station 
would not have been a new use in the green belt and therefore the 
assessment is rendered largely irrelevant. 

 
� Section 25(4) of the 1963 Act requires the planning authority to state that 

planning permission would be granted for any development for which the land 
is being acquired. However, Scottish Ministers through Transport Scotland 
made orders under the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984, promoting the AWPR, 
which is the scheme for which the application land is to be acquired. 
Therefore no planning permission is required for the AWPR and consequently 
it would not be appropriate to include planning permission for the scheme in 
any certificate issued as would normally be the case. 

 

Page 230



Conclusion 
 
In conclusion, planning permission was granted in 1995 for the redevelopment of 
the site to rebuild the petrol filling station and ancillary retail. The planning 
permission was implemented in 1999 when the original petrol filling station was 
demolished. Although the development was never completed the permission was 
still live on the relevant date and to this day is capable of being completed.  
 
Therefore on the relevant date of 25th September 2007, because a live planning 
permission existed on the site, if the planning authority received a planning 
application for a petrol station and ancillary retail at the site, then the principle of 
petrol station use at the site would have been accepted and planning permission 
granted. 
 
Planning permission would also have been granted for – 
 
� horticulture and nursery with a small scale ancillary retail element (such as a 

farm-shop); 
 
� non-residential agricultural or forestry buildings; 
 
� telecommunications masts and ancillary equipment; 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That a certificate of appropriate alternative development is issued stating –  
 
1. that in respect of the land which is subject of the application, on the 

relevant date of 25th September 2007 or at a future time, planning 
permission would have been granted for –  

 
a. a petrol filling station with ancillary retail up to 103.5sqm 
 
b. for horticulture and nursery with a small-scale ancillary retail 

element (such as a farm-shop); 
 

c. for non-residential agricultural or forestry buildings; 
 

d. for telecommunications masts and ancillary equipment. 
 

but would not have been granted for any other use. 
 

2. that any planning permission described in (1) would have been granted 
subject to suitable conditions addressing the following matters – 

 
a. layout, design and external appearance of buildings or structures; 
 
b. mitigation of any contaminated land; 

 

Page 231



c. surface water and foul drainage; 
 

d. access to the site; 
 

e. landscaping of the site. 
 
3. that because Scottish Ministers through Transport Scotland, made 

orders  under the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984 promoting the Aberdeen 
Western Peripheral Route, which is the scheme for which the 
application land is to be acquired, it would not be appropriate to include 
planning permission for the scheme in the certificate as would normally 
be the case. 

 
 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning Development Management Committee  
 

122 BROOMHILL ROAD, ABERDEEN 
 
CHANGE OF USE OF VACANT CAR 
SHOWROOM TO CLASS 1 (SHOP), 
SHOPFRONT ALTERATIONS AND OTHER 
EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS, ERECTION OF 
GATE/FENCE TO REAR AND OTHER 
ASSOCIATED WORKS, INCLUDING 
FOOTPATH AND PARKING IMPROVEMENTS  
 
For: Executors of Mrs P Ross 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Application Type : Detailed Planning Permission 
Application Ref.   :  P130910 
Application Date:       25/06/2013 
Officer :                     Jennifer Chalmers 
Ward : Airyhall/Broomhill/Garthdee (I Yuill/A 
Taylor/G Townson) 

Advert  :  
Advertised on:  
Committee Date: 29th October 2013 
Community Council : Comments 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Refuse 
 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 245



DESCRIPTION 
The site is located on the north west side of Broomhill Road and across from the 
junction with Abergeldie Road and covers an area of approximately 640sqm.  
There is space to the front (south elevation) of the property for 4 cars, whilst to 
the rear there is a large car parking area that leads out onto Pitstruan Terrace.  
The area is characterised by terraced flats and houses and to the rear of the 
property there is an amenity area with tennis courts and pitch and putt. 
 
RELEVANT HISTORY 
P130285 – Application was withdrawn on 24th June 2013.  Application was for the 
‘Sub-division and part change of use to Class 1 (Shops)’. 
 
PROPOSAL 
Detailed planning permission is sought to change the use of a vacant car 
showroom to a Class 1 (shop) use, as well as shopfront alterations, external 
alterations, the erection of a gate / fence to the rear and other associated works, 
including footpath and parking improvements.   
 
Although the most recent use was as a childrens play centre, that particular use 
did not have the benefit of planning permission and therefore the premises  
reverts to the previous authorised use as a car showroom. 
 
To the front it is proposed to replace the existing entrance door and car entrance 
with new curtain walling.  Whilst the existing window at the eastern end of the 
front elevation would become a new glazed entrance door with glass canopy 
above.    
 
Two roller shutter doors are proposed, one for the front door and one for the rear.   
 
The erection of a gate / fence to the rear.  It is proposed to erect a 7ft close 
boarded timber fence along the eastern and western boundaries.  This would be 
finished in forest green.  Along the north elevation it is proposed to have a 7ft 
high galvanised pallisade fence with 2x (4.0m) wide gates.  These would be flush 
with the boundary wall to the east.   
 
It is proposed to remove the existing 4 parking spaces to the front of the property 
off Broomhill Road and lay new flagstone paving slabs at the entrance to the 
premises as well as erect 7 S/S bollards along the front boundary adjacent to the 
pavement.  Also within this area it is proposed to install 3 Sheffield style bicycle 
stands. 
 
Within the rear section of the building, it is proposed to install 6no 3m x 1m GRP 
rooflights.   
 
Supporting Documents 
 
All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this 
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -   
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?130910 

 
 
 

Page 246



On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first 
page of this report. 
 

• Parking Survey Report 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE 
The application has been referred to the the Planning Development Management 
Committee because there are more than 6 letters of objection and there is an 
objection from the Ashley & Broomhill Community Council.  Accordingly, the 
application falls outwith the scope of the Council’s Scheme of Delegation. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
Roads Projects Team - Object to the proposal on the grounds that Broomhill 
Road, Pitstruan Terrace and Pitstruan Place are unsuitable for deliveries and that 
this could have a detrimental impact on the local residents, road network and 
road surface.   

1. Walking & Cycling – Note that it is proposed to install cycle parking at the 
front of the building.  This is acceptable, however, still require secure cycle 
parking consisting of a minimum of 2 long stay cycle parking spaces 
comprising Sheffield style stands within a secure compound or within the 
building itself.   

2. Parking – Proposed to remove two existing build outs and provide 
additional on street parking.  The applicant is already aware of the traffic 
orders required for this work.   

3. Trip Rates – Trip rates were worked out using the TRICS database for a 
convenience store.  The results were generated using a gross floorspace 
of 334sqm. 

•••• The peak hours for a development of this type and size are 09:00–
10:00 and 18:00–19:00. 

•••• The AM peak arrival and departure trip rates are 7.696 and 7.967 
respectively. 

•••• The PM peak arrival and departure trip rates are 10.210 and 10.629 
respectively. 

•••• The AM peak hour results in trip rates of 25.7 arriving and 26.6 
departing. 

•••• Over a full hour this results in an average of 0.43 vehicles arriving 
per minute and 0.44 vehicles departing per minute. 

•••• The PM peak hour results in trip rates of 34.1 arriving and 35.5 
departing. 

•••• Over a full hour this results in an average of 0.57 vehicles arriving 
per minute and 0.59 vehicles departing per minute. 

4. Development Vehicle Access – Through the previous application it 
became apparent that the servicing of a frequently used retail unit at this 
location had a strong potential to cause disruption to the local road 
network both on Broomhill Road and to the local residents on Pitstruan 
Terrace and surrounding areas.  After further discussion it was agreed that 
we could not accept that deliveries be made using Broomhill Road as they 
would cause disruption to the vehicles, pedestrians and public transport 
using the road and users exiting Abergeldie Road.   

 
 

Page 247



The Swept Path Analysis has been submitted showing a 10m vehicle 
accessing the site.  This swept path is slightly better than the 12m delivery 
vehicle which had previously been submitted, however, it still shows the 
vehicle and the overhang of the vehicle coming within the Roads 
Construction Consent allowable tolerance of 500mm of vehicles or 
infrastructure at two points on the entrance from Pitstruan Place to 
Pitstruan Terrace.  This has been a thorough study which the Roads 
Projects Team are satisfied has been fully  investigated, however, it still 
shows that both Broomhill Road, Pitstruan Terrace and Pitstruan Place are 
unsuitable for deliveries and this could have a detrimental impact on the 
local residents, road network and road surface.  The Roads Projects Team 
object to this application on these grounds.  
It is not possible to condition a development to using a specific size of 
delivery vehicle.  As the Roads Projects Team have to consider the worst 
when looking at the traffic impact analysis of a development it is clear that 
large delivery vehicles would not be able to access this site in an 
acceptable manner.  

Environmental Health – No observations 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) - No observations received  
Community Council - Object on the following grounds: 

1. Access / Safety – at the front, any large vehicles parked to the front could 
cause severe disruption to traffic and public bus transport in both 
directions of what is an arterial route into Aberdeen and to the RGU 
complex.  The Community Council have for a number of years been 
receiving numerous complaints about the number of HGV’s using 
Broomhill Road, and this would seriously exacerbate the problem.  
Recently the post box at the Broomhill Road end of Salisbury Terrace was 
knocked down by a B&Q vehicle.  At the back, access would be required 
from Salisbury Terrace.  This is zoned as a Conservation Area.  The street 
is narrow, and the corners sharp to gain access to the rear of the building.  
Residents of Pitstruan Terrace have rooms close to the street, and so 
large diesel engine powered trucks regularly servicing the site would 
cause the families inside noise and irritation.  Large vehicles attempting to 
enter or exit these roads would severely affect the traffic flow onto, or from 
Broomhill Road.  Customers with cars would find difficulty parking, and 
may park to the annoyance of local residents.  Clearly, in order to access 
Salisbury Terrace, these vehicles would need to swing out into the arterial 
traffic flow, then they would occupy most of the lane space so stopping 
traffic in the opposite direction.  (who would need to reverse until a space 
could be made).  

2. Parking – The premises currently have off-road parking at the rear which 
will be removed to create a secure delivery yard and also removing the off 
street car parking to the front (4 spaces) which would put considerable 
pressure on existing residents parking.  The streets around the back are 
so heavily parked day and night, an articulated truck would have a major 
challenge to deliver to the store by Salisbury Terrace / Pitstruan Terrace / 
Pitstruan Place. 

3. Licencing Issues – There are already known issues concerning youth 
misbehaviour in and around ‘The Woodies’ and Broomhill School.  The 
availablility of alcohol in close proximity to these sites is an issue of worry  

 
 

Page 248



to the residents and could lead to an increase in youth disorder.  This may 
lead to policing issues and increase demand on police resources.  There 
is an assumption that the proposed premises would be automatically 
licenced.   

4. Location – Young children from Broomhill School would also be attracted 
to it, in the morning before school, possibly at lunchtimes and after school.  
If these times coincide with deliveries, then it raises safety fears as they 
would need to cross Salisbury Terrace to reach the site.  Also, the back 
area has the Ruthrieston Sports area and Scout Hut.  The lanes may offer 
an attractive meeting / drinking spot for youths.  Residents fear a change 
in the current, peaceful situation.   

5. Over Provision – There are no lack of facilities in the area with various 
independent retailers who serve the community well.  These include 
grocery, newsagent, pharmacy, florist outlets.  These businesses are sure 
to suffer.  Already in close proximity and walking distance of the proposed 
outlet there are a number of supermarkets including, 2 Sainsbury’s, 2 
Tescos, 1 Coop, 1 Spar, 1 Iceland as well as Asda and Sainsbury’s at 
Bridge of Dee and shops at Mannofield.   

6. Over Development – The site is in a residential area, sandwiched 
between terraced flatted properties.  The increase in volume of traffic, 
vehicular and pedestrian noise issues and restricted parking would impact 
adversely on their quality of life.    

7. Recent Parking Survey 
Issues in relation to: 

- the existing demand for parking is to be very high at all times, 
residents are sure to be inconvenienced by staff and customers 
cars 

- that only one route is passable for delivery vehicles at all times 
- that access for vehicles is extremely tight at all times, blocking the 

road to oncoming traffic 
- delivery vehicles would have to be restricted to a certain size 

 
REPRESENTATIONS 
1 letter of support has been received from the applicants agent.  The points 
raised relate to the following – 
 

1. How proposal relates to its existing use 
2. Significance of Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (Scotland) Order 1992 
3. Reference to Policy RT4 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
4. Relevance of Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the Aberdeen Local 

Development Plan 
5. Length of time property has been marketed 

 
81 letters of objection have been received. The objections raised relate to the 
following matters – 
 

1. Restricted parking spaces for residents 
 
 
 
 

Page 249



2. Broomhill Road is already congested as it has on street parking, it is a bus 
route, there is a school crossing, there are a large number of commercial 
trucks and it is too narrow. 

3. It would change the balance and harmony of the community and lives.   
4. Both Salisbury Terrace and Pitstruan Terrace are too narrow and are 

already congested with residents car parking 
5. The plans would affect the character and appearance of the building 
6. No reference to recycling facilities within the appliction 
7. The proposal would impact fully on privacy, quality of life within the 

community and create a range of issues in terms of noise nuisance and 
traffic risks. 

8. There would be a rise in noise levels and privacy due to the increased 
use. 

9. Safety issues with nearby school. The proximity of the premises to primary 
school and danger to children playing on their bikes, scooters and playing 
football. 

10.   Access routes proposed – negotiation of narrow road in relation to 
parked cars and impact on curbs 

11. The air conditioning vents would be 8-10 steps from a neighbouring 
bedroom window. 9.8m from main building and app 6.5 from conservatory 

12. How much light pollution would there be from the lights at the rear. 
13. The wider pavement on the north side of Pistruan Terrace is there to 

protect the underground services (gas & electric). 
14. Overuse of Broomhill Road by heavy vehicles 
15. No detail given on proposed use of building 
16. Danger of damage to property 
17. Proposes to undermine existing shops thereby impacting local businesses 
18. Delivery times 
19. Anti social behaviour and vandalism from selling alcohol 
20. Icy and snowy roads could be dangerous due to small back roads 
21. There are already plenty supermarkets in the area (14 within a 1 mile 

radius) 
22. Salisbury Terrace is already a rat run 
23. Concerned that restrictions would be put in place in certain areas. 
24. Increase in littering / hygiene 
25. What would be the size of the recycling trucks and how often would they 

be there 
26. Why is the existing oil tank being left – does it comply with OFTEC / fire 

regulations? 
27. Neighouring properties will be devalued 

 
PLANNING POLICY 
National Policy and Guidance 
Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) February 2010 – The planning system should 
promote development that supports the move towards a more economically, 
socially and environmentally sustainable society (35). 
 
The planning system has an important role in supporting the achievement of 
sustainable development through its influence on the location, layout and design 
of new development.   
 
 
 Page 250



Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan 
This provides a spatial strategy for development, to ensure the right development 
in the right place to achieve sustainable economic growth which is of high quality 
and protects valued resources and assets, including built and natural 
environment, which is easily accessible.   
 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan 
Policy H1 (Residential Areas) – within existing residential areas, proposals for 
non-residential uses will be refused unless: 

1. they are considered complementary to residential use; or 
2. it can be demonstrated that the use would cause no conflict with, or any 

nuisance to, the enjoyment of existing residential amenity.   
 
Policy RT2 (Out of Centre Proposals) – retail, commercial, leisure and other 
development appropriate to town centres, when proposed on a site that is out-of-
centre, will be refused planning permission if it does not satisfy all of the following 
requirements: 

1. no other suitable site in a location that is acceptable in terms of policy RT1 
is available or is likely to become available in a reasonable time. 

2. there will be no significant adverse effect on the vitality or viability of any 
retail location listed in Supplementary Guidance: Hierarchy of Retail 
Centres. 

3. There is, in qualitative or quantitative terms, a proven deficiency in 
provision of the kind of development that is proposed. 

4. The proposed development would be easily and safely accessible by a 
choice of means of transport using a network of walking, cycle and public 
transport routes which link with the catchment population.  In particular, 
the proposed development would be easily accessible by regular, frequent 
and convenient public transport services and would not be dependent 
solely on access by private car. 

5. The proposed development would have no significantly adverse effect on 
travel patterns and air pollution.  

 
EVALUATION 
Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning 
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that 
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the 
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Background 
Pre-application discussions were carried out prior to the submission of the initial 
planning application.  It was determined at this stage that planning permission 
would be required due to the total floor area of the building exceeding 235sqm.  
The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) 
Order 1992 allows for a change of use from a car showroom to a Class 1 use 
where the total floor area of the building does not exceed 235sqm.  It is 
recognised that anything larger than this needs to be addressed and assessed, 
taking into consideration individual circumstances such as possible impact on the 
immediate area and that it should not be an assumed use.     
 
 
 Page 251



Principle of Development 
In general, the proposal for a change of use to a Class 1 Shop would be a 
favoured use within this residential area.  However, although it would be 
recognised as a use that would be complementary to the surrounding residential 
area there are concerns in relation to the impact on residential amenity from the 
everyday operations of the premises.    
 
Therefore, consideration needs to be given as to whether the proposed use can 
demonstrate that there would be no conflict with, or any nuisance to, the 
enjoyment of existing residential amenity.  The application will be addressed in 
relation to current policy and not based on the previous use of the building. 
There are two areas that need to be addressed in relation to this application, 
issues relating to access and also issues relating to residential amenity.   
 
When considering a property for a change of use, generally a property needs to 
be marketed for at least 6 months before consideration will be given to a change 
of use.  This property has been marketed since April 2012.  The Planning 
Authority recognise the importance of trying to bring buildings back into use, 
however it is important to ensure that any proposed use would not be to the 
detriment of the amenity of the area.   
 
Points 13-27 within the letters of representation are not material planning 
considerations and will therefore not be discussed within this report. 
 
Retail Impact 
As set out in Technical Advice Note: Retail Impact Assessments, a Retail Impact 
Assessment (RIA) is not considered necessary as the proposed gross retail 
floorspace is less than 2500 square metres.  It is however necessary to address 
the criteria that are listed in Policy RT2 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan. 
 
In relation to Point 1, no detailed analysis of other potential locations has been 
carried out.  This is not considered necessary or appropriate in this case given 
that there is no need for a Retail Impact Assessment and the small size of the 
premises and that its use would be primarily to meet local needs.  Local shops 
outwith defined centres play an important role in providing a local service and 
help to sustain viable communities.  It is a desirable goal to provide support to 
local shops that meets the needs of the local community.   
 
Given the size of the proposed retail unit, it is clearly to serve local needs and as 
such would not be categorised as a supermarket which is defined in the glossary 
in the Local Development Plan as having trading floorspace of between 500 – 
2500 square metres and as such a Retail Impact Assessment was not 
necessary.   
 
In relation to Point 2, it is likely that the impact would be small and would 
therefore have no significant adverse effect on the vitality or viability of the 
nearest neighbourhood centre, which is located at the junction of Holburn Street 
and Broomhill Road.  
 
 
 
 
 Page 252



It has been acknowledged that there has been no proven deficiency in the 
provision of the kind of development that has been applied for in relation to Point 
3.  However, a small retail store is likely to cater for local needs rather than a 
citywide customer base.   
 
The proposed development would be easily and safely accessible by foot, cycle 
and public transport as the premises are on a bus route and would therefore not 
have a significant adverse effect on travel patterns and air pollution and therefore 
complies with both Points 4 and 5.  As stated the premises are small and would 
serve a local community, therefore reducing the need to travel by car.   
 
Physical Alterations to Building 
It is considered that both the proposed 7ft high close boarded timber fence and 
galvanised palisade fence and gates would not have a detrimental impact on the 
character of the surrounding area.  Although the general nature of palisade 
fencing is industrial in nature and visually may not be particularly pleasing to the 
eye, this would only be on the north elevation and would only cover 
approximatley 12m of rear elevation.     
 
There is currently a 1.5m high boundary wall along the eastern boundary.  A 7ft 
high timber fence would increase the height of this boundary treatment by 
approximately 0.63m which is considered an acceptable height in relation to 
residential properties.   
 
Also to the rear it is proposed to reduce the width of the current opening into the 
building.  This would create an overall opening of approximately 2m.  It is not 
considered that this would impact on any of the neighbouring properties.  Another 
opening would be created on the rear elevation between the existing opening 
and the western boundary which would be designed to supply air to the internal 
plant. This would be approximately 9.8m from the main building and 
approximately 6.5m from a rear conservatory.  Due to the proximity of the 
neighbouring property, there were concerns that this might cause noise 
disruption to the neighbouring property immediately to the west.  Although 
Environmental Health have made no reference to this, there is the possibility that 
this could cause an element of noise as a result of the creation of this opening.   
 
The 6no rooflights proposed for the rear section of building would not cause any 
overlooking as this section of building has no first floor level and the height of the 
lowest part would be at least 3.5m above ground level.  
 
To the front it is proposed to create a doorway where there is currently a fixed 
window and to fit thermally blocked curtain walling where there is currently 
entrances.  This will change the appearance of the existing frontage, however 
this proposal is considered acceptable as it would not change the overall 
character of the building.   
 
It is considered that the majority of the physical alterations to the building would 
all accord with Policy H1, however, there are concerns that there may be an 
element of indirect noise nuisance generated from the proposed PPC Louvre that 
would supply air to the internal plant.   
 
 
 Page 253



Access 
The Roads Projects Team have requested that the current 4 off street car parking 
spaces within the front of the property be removed and replaced with 5 on street 
car parking spaces.  This would enable both customers and residents to park 
within the immediate area.   The Roads Projects Team are satisfied with there 
being no on site car parking, however they would like to see 2 long stay cycle 
parking spaces comprising Sheffield style stands within a secure compound or 
within the building itself as well as the 3 short stay Sheffield style stands which 
have been shown on Drawing No SK-003. 
 
It has been noted that there is no capacity for offloading of service vehicles to the 
front of the site (Broomhill Road) due mainly to road safety issues and disruption 
to vehicles, pedestrians and public transport using the road and users exiting 
Abergeldie Road.  As a result it was proposed that all service vehicles would 
have to access the premises from the rear, off Pitstruan Terrace, where there is a 
yard measuring approximately 213sqm.  This in itself opens up a number of new 
issues relating predominantly to road safety.  
 
A ‘Swept Path Analysis’ was submitted as part of the planning application, 
however the Roads Projects Team have concerns over the accuracy of this.  It 
was then suggested that a detailed ‘Parking Survey’ should be carried out in 
order to prove the accuracy of the ‘Swept Path Analysis’ which was duly 
submitted.  However, this did not meet the relevant criteria required by the Roads 
Projects Team and therefore they object to the proposal on the grounds that it 
would have a detrimental impact on the local residents, road network and road 
surface.  The Car Parking Survey used a 12m long rigid HGV to provide an 
element of robustness to the assessment.  The applicant has advised that the 
size of vehicle chosen was best-suited to reliably access the proposed store and 
that it would not be in the retailers interests to service the proposed store using 
vehicles too large to successfully access it.  As it is not possible to apply a 
condition requiring the operator of the shop to use a specific size of delivery 
vehicle, the Roads Projects Team consider a worst case scenario when looking 
at the traffic impact of a development.  The Car Parking Survey clearly shows 
that large delivery vehicles would not be able to access the site in an acceptable 
manner.  On that basis, the applicant has not demonstrated that appropriate 
servicing and delivery arrangements can be put in place.  This could therefore 
result in delivery vehicles stopping on the public road, which would cause a road 
safety hazard. 
 
Residential Amenity 
The area is zoned as residential and as such will be assessed in relation to 
Policy H1.  It is recognised that the proposal complies with a part of Policy H1 as 
the proposed use would be complementary to residential use.  However, one 
needs to be satisfied that there is no conflict with, or any nuisance to, the 
enjoyment of existing residential amenity.   
 
In terms of the proposed use, there are a number of factors that need to be 
considered such as delivery vehicles and the noise generated during the loading 
and offloading of metal cages.  The area to the rear of the premises is a quiet  
 
 
 

Page 254



narrow road which backs onto an Aberdeen City Council public outdoor sports 
area, containing tennis courts, bowling green and putting green.  It is considered 
that the character of the area would be impacted on, as a result of the proposed 
change of use.  The proximity of the rear access to neighbouring houses would 
be immediately adjacent to the off loading area, which would create additional 
noise in what is currently a quiet street and it is considered that this would have a 
detrimental impact on the character and amenity of the surrounding residential 
amenity.  It is therefore considered that the use could cause conflict with the 
enjoyment of existing residential amenity.   
 
The most recent use of the premises was as a soft play centre, however this did 
not receive planning consent for this type of use, therefore from the planning 
perspective the premises are recognised as a car showroom which as noted 
above is the authorised use of the premises.  Whilst it is not considered 
necessary to compare this use to the proposed use it should be recognised that 
noise disturbance could potentially arise from operating the premises as a car 
showroom. 
 
Relevant Planning Matters Raised by the Community Council 
 
‘As these stores are automatically licenced, drink culture would add to the youth 
problems in the area’  – licensing is not part of the planning process and is 
therefore not relevant. 
 
No parking customer wise – this matter has been commented on earlier on in the 
report within the section ‘Access’. 
 
What is the exact nature of the retail business to be adopted there?’ – The 
application was for a Change of use to Class 1 (Shop) which is all that is 
necessary in order to determine this application.   
 
How many deliveries are projected to be made daily / weekly, and what happens 
where deliveries coincide? – this information has not been provided and whilst it 
would be beneficial to have such details, it is not essential to the assessment of 
the application.  Deliveries would inevitably be made to suit the operational 
requirements of the occupant.  If deliveries did coincide, this could result in 
vehicles stopping on the public road causing a road safety hazard. 
 
At what time would the deliveries be made? – A condition could be attached to 
ensure deliveries are only carried out between set times.   
 
Will it have a large air conditioning / refridgeration plant in close proximity to 
existing resident’s gardens on Broomhill Road? – this matter has been 
commented on earlier on in the report within the section ‘Residential Amenity’. 
 
Will extra refuse collections be required to deal with packaging etc? – this is not a 
material consideration. 
 
What would be the opening hours? – if its deemed essential in order to protect 
residential amenity, a condition could be applied restricting opening hours. 
 

Page 255



What is the expected number of customers who will need to park on 
neighbouring streets? – the trip rate data can be seen within the Roads Projects 
Team Consultations section.   
 
Relevant Planning Matters Raised in Written Representations (objections)  
Restricted parking spaces for residents – the car parking within the application 
site is private ground and as such should not be used by neighbouring residents.  
However, the Roads Projects Team have requested the creation of 5 on street 
parking spaces to the front of the premises on Broomhill Road, which would 
compensate for the 4 spaces lost at the front of the property.   
 
‘Broomhill Road already congested as it has on street parking, it is a bus route, 
there is a school crossing, there are a large number of commercial trucks and it is 
too narrow’ – this matter has been commented on earlier in the report within the 
section ‘Access’. 
 
It would change the balance and harmony of the community and lives and the 
character and appearance of the building’ – it is acknowledged that there would 
be an element of impact on the immediate neighbouhood. 
 
Both Salisbury Terrace and Pitstruan Terrace are too narrow and are already 
congested with residents car parking’ – this matter has been commented on 
earlier in the report within the section ‘Access’. 
 
‘There would be a rise in noise levels and privacy due to the increase use’ – it is 
acknowledged that there are noise related issues with retail units in relation to 
loading / off loading of vehicles.  This matter has been commented on earlier in 
the report within the section ‘Residential Amenity’.  
 
‘The air conditioning vents would be 8-10 steps from a neighbouring bedroom 
window’ – this matter has been commented on earlier in the report within the 
section ‘Residential Amenity’. 
 
‘The impact on existing retailers and the requirement to carry out a Retail Impact 
Assessment’ – this has been addressed within the ‘Retail Impact’ section. 
 
‘The location of new retail premises in a residential area and reference to the 
Council’s Supplementary Guidance on City Centre and Retailing – Hierarchy of 
Centres’ – this has been addressed within the ‘Retail Impact’ section. 
 
‘Recycling Facilities within a residential area could have a significant impact in 
particular in relation to noise’ – in relation to Policy R6, this does encourage the 
presence of recycling facilities in such premises and it is recognised that this 
could cause a noise nuisance to neighbouring properties.  
 
Relevant Planning Matters Raised in Supporting Letter (Agent) 
‘Policy RT4 of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan supports the retention of 
Local Shops.  The subject site is located in a residential area that is poorly 
served by local shops and we are of the opinion that granting permission here will 
allow that balance to be redressed, in line with the terms and spirit of Policy RT4’.   
 
 

Page 256



This Policy is not relevant for this application as the proposed use is for a shop 
and not for the retention of one.  Furtherstill, within a 1 mile radius of the 
application site there are 2 Tesco’s, 2 Sainsbury’s, 2 Co-ops,  a Spar, an Iceland 
and an Asda Walmart as well as chemists and 2 local corner shops, one of which 
is within 200m of the application site and other small shops. 
 
Community Council’s Matters Raised in Response to Car Parking Survey 
 ‘That the car parking survey did not take into account cars parked within the 
application site’ – a car parking survey only looks at cars parked on the public 
road and not on private ground.  However, it is recognised that should the 
development open as a shop, these cars will be dispersed onto the local road 
network to park leaving even less room on the surrounding roads.  Further 
information can be found in the ‘Access’ section. 
 
‘There is no certainty that the retailer would have a range of vehicles to select 
from and how could this be enforceable’ – this is correct, the Roads Projects 
Team, have considered a worst case scenario when looking at the traffic impact 
analysis of a development. 
 
‘When there are two vehicles parked opposite to each other this can lead to long 
tailbacks as one stream of traffic waits for the other.  It has been known for 
vehicles to have to reverse back out dangerously onto Broomhill Road’ – it has 
been noted that two way traffic when cars are parked opposite each other is not 
possible.   
 
‘Diagrams may suggest that the streets are wider than they are and that there will 
be more car parking in it once the flats at the former Ashley Lodge have been 
complete.  The roads are not wide enough to accommodate these types of 
vehicles on a regular basis’’ – this matter has been addressed within the ‘Access’ 
section. 
 
‘It may be feasible on the drawings but the reality is that it would cause severe 
disruption to traffic flow’ – As mentioned in the ‘Access’ section, the Roads 
Projects Team  
 
‘The majority of customers will be drivers who will drive to the store, park on the 
street / pavement across from the shop frontage on double yellow lines causing a 
traffic issue’ – potential illegal parking is not a relevant planning consideration.    
 
’Noise and air pollution from the trucks and further damage to the road surface 
from heavy vehicles’ – noise has been recognised and addressed within the 
section ‘Residential Amenity’.  In terms of air pollution, this is not considered an 
issue in relation to the amount of deliveries that would be taking place given the 
size of the premises.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Refuse 
 
 
 
 
 Page 257



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
The proposal does not comply with Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the 
Aberdeen Local Development Plan as there would be conflict with neighbouring 
properties which would  act as a nuisance to and impinge on the enjoyment of 
the existing residential amenity arising from the proposed servicing and delivery 
arrangements for the premises, in particular the noise disturbance therefrom in 
relation to loading / offloading, the movement of metal cages and also in relation 
to vehicular movements.   
 
That the applicant has not demonstrated that suitable and appropriate servicing 
and delivery arrangements and facilities can be provided.  This could therefore 
result in delivery vehicles stopping on the public road adjacent to the premises 
which would cause a road safety hazard and would interupt the free flow of 
traffic.   
 
 
 
 

 
Dr Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development. 

Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Planning Development Management Committee 
 
DATE      29 October 2013 
 
LEAD HEAD OF SERVICE    DIRECTOR  
Margaret Bochel      Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Planning Digest 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise members about the use of a condition regarding the planning 

application approved for serviced apartments and business unit at Oldmill Road, 
Bon Accord Crescent (reference no. 130743) by the Committee on 23 August 
2013.  

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 That the Committee note that condition 12 will not be attached to any consent and 

that the use of the apartments as serviced apartments will be ensured through the 
legal agreement that will be secured before planning consent is issued and that 
will be binding in perpetuity on the owner and operator of the serviced apartments. 

 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
3.1 There are no financial implications arising. 
 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The report is for information and does not have any implications for any legal, 

resource, personnel, property, equipment, sustainability and environmental, health 
and safety and/or policy implications and risks. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
Oldmill Road, Bon Accord Crescent 
Serviced apartments and business unit 
App.Ref: 130743 
 
Reference is made to this planning application that was considered by the Planning 
Development Management Committee of 23 August 2013. The Committee indicated a 
willingness to approve the application subject to conditions; with consent withheld 
pending a legal agreement being secured to retain the building in single ownership. As 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 293



yet the legal agreement has not been secured and, therefore, the application has yet to 
be concluded 
 
The report to Committee, on 23 August 2013, recommended that a condition be attached 
to the consent as follows: 
 

12. Not any one of the serviced apartments hereby approved shall be occupied for 
a period in excess of 90 days in any one calendar year by any one family, 
individual or group. - The development has insufficient amenity space for 
permanent occupancy as a residential unit and no parking provision, and has 
not been assessed as residential development. It is therefore considered 
expedient to control occupancy. 

 
On re-examination it is considered that this condition is not required in circumstances, 
such as exist in relation to this application, in which a legal agreement is to be secured 
that could be tailored to have much more force and effectiveness in controlling the 
occupancy of the apartments to ensure that they do not become permanent residential 
properties.  
 
Also the purpose of the condition is to ensure that the apartments function as serviced 
apartments rather than as permanent residential properties which have different 
requirements regarding parking and amenity space. In this context a legal agreement 
would achieve the same purposes whilst allowing a level of flexibility to ensure that the 
apartments cater for the particular requirements of the Aberdeen market that cannot be 
specified or built into a planning condition which is by its nature is inflexible (for instance 
a condition with a 30 day time limit would not enable occupation by for oil and gas 
employees on temporary contracts of 9 months or less). 
 
It will also be difficult for the Council to enforce such a condition. The Council does not 
have the ability to continually monitor the occupancy of the apartments both in terms of 
the resource required and the practicability of accurate monitoring and enforcement on 
day to day basis. It is considered that this would be better dealt with through a legal 
agreement that would place a legal obligation to comply its terms with the owner and 
operator of the serviced apartments. 
 
Taking into account the foregoing, the Committee are asked to note that it is proposed 
that the condition is not attached to any consent and that the use of the apartments as 
serviced apartments is ensured through the legal agreement that will be secured before 
planning consent is issued and that will be binding in perpetuity on the owner and 
operator of the serviced apartments. 
 
 
6. IMPACT 
 
The Scottish Government has stated that an effective planning service is fundamental to 
achieving its central purpose of sustainable economic growth. As such the information in 
this report relates to a number of Single Outcome Agreement Outcomes: 

 
1 - We live in a Scotland that is the most attractive place for doing 
business in Europe; 
2 - We realise our full economic potential with more and better 

Page 294



employment opportunities for our people; 
10 - We live in well-designed, sustainable places where we are able to 
access the amenities and services we need; 
12 - We value and enjoy our built and natural environment and protect it and 

 enhance it for future generations; 
13 - We take pride in a strong, fair and inclusive national identity; and 
15 - Our public services are high quality, continually improving, efficient 
and responsive to local people’s needs. 

  
Public - The report may be of interest to the development community and certain 
matters referred to in the report may be of interest to the wider community.  

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 
 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Margaret Bochel 
Head of Planning and Sustainable Development 
Mbochel@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523133 

Page 295



Page 296

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Planning Development Management Committee 
 
DATE  29 October 2013 
 
DIRECTOR  Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Confirmation of Tree Preservation Orders 
 
REPORT NUMBER: EPI/13/213 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To have confirmed four (temporary) Tree Preservation Orders made by 
the Head of Planning and Sustainable Development under delegated 
powers.  The Orders currently provide temporary protection for the 
trees, but are required to be confirmed by the Planning Development 
Management Committee to provide long term protection.   
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended Members confirm the making of Tree Preservation 
Orders 210, 215, 216 and 217 without modifications, and that the City 
Solicitors carries out the requisite procedures.   
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The cost of confirming the orders will be met through existing budgets.  

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
A Tree Preservation Order gives statutory protection to trees that 
contribute to the amenity, natural heritage or attractiveness and 
character of a locality. Planning and Sustainable Development will take 
the necessary steps to ensure that the trees are protected in the longer 
term.  

 
The making of any Tree Preservation Order is likely to result in further 
demands on staff time to deal with any applications submitted for 
consent to carry out tree work and to provide advice and assistance to 
owners and others regarding protected trees. This is, however, 
contained within existing staffing resources. 

 
The making of Tree Preservation Orders reduces the risk of losing 
important trees, groups of trees and woodlands. It further allows the 
Council to protect trees that contribute to local environment quality.  

 

Agenda Item 4.2

Page 297



 

The process of applying for work to protected trees allows for elected 
members, Community Councils and members of the public to have an 
opportunity to comment on work to protected trees.  

 
Promoting the improvement and maintenance of environmental quality 
and townscapes supports investment and economic competitiveness. 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
Tree Preservation Orders 215 and 216 were previously confirmed by 
this committee on 14 June 2012.  However, following a letter of 
objection to another Tree Preservation Order it came to light that these 
Orders had been in made reference to out of date Regulations and 
were consequently invalid.  These Orders, along with two others have 
now been made using the new Regulations and are now being 
presented for confirmation.  
 

• Tree Preservation Order 210, Woodland at Tillyoch and 
Woodend Farms, Peterculter 

 
The reason for making a Tree Preservation Order on this site is as a 
result of representations made to the Council by local residents, the 
owner of part of the woodland and by the local Community Council. A 
large proportion of the woodland to be given TPO status is part of a 
designated Local Nature Conservation Site and is not currently 
protected through legislation.   

 
Distinct woodland blocks that are on either side of Culter House Road 
form the Order. The woodland is clearly used for recreation and the 
well-trodden paths that run through the woodland are evidence of this. 
The woodland is a haven for a variety of wildlife and red squirrels have 
been recorded in the area. There are clear cultural and natural heritage 
reasons for the trees to be protected.  

 
Commercial business premises have been constructed in the fields 
adjacent to the woodland and there is concern that trees within the 
woodland will be removed to allow for the expansion of the business in 
future years. Without the making of a Tree Preservation Order there is 
concern that the trees will be removed without due regard for the 
woodland setting of the locality. 

 
Making of a Tree Preservation Order here would ensure that the trees 
could not be removed or worked on without the express permission of 
the Council. 
 

• Tree Preservation Order 215, Cottage Cars, Land at Howe 
Moss Drive, Dyce, Aberdeen 

 
The need to promote a Tree Preservation Order is a result of a 
development proposal for the site that could entail the loss of the trees.  

Page 298



 

The making of the Order comes after concerns have been raised by a 
Development Management case officer following pre application 
discussions with the owner.   

 

A TPO is proposed in order to protect the amenity of this part of 
Aberdeen and to ensure the continued treed aspect to this particular 
site.  The trees in this part of the City make an invaluable contribution 
to the attractiveness, character and amenity of this particular locality.  

 

The loss of trees would be detrimental to the amenity and 
attractiveness provided to the site and the locality.  The trees form an 
important softening to the otherwise harsh landscapes features 
associated with the industrial estate.  A Tree Preservation Order would 
prevent their removal prior to the submission of a planning application. 
 

• Tree Preservation Order 216, 37 Deeview Road South, Cults 
 
The need for a Tree Preservation Order has arisen from concern 
expressed by the owners of the trees about the potential negative 
impact of the granting of planning permission within the neighbouring 
property on their trees.  The trees provide a valuable screen between 
the properties and are clearly visible from the public road and nearby 
Deeside line.  

 

A TPO would protect the amenity of this part of Aberdeen and ensure 
no works can be carried out to the trees without the prior consent of the 
Planning Authority. The trees in this part of the City make an invaluable 
contribution to the attractiveness, character and amenity of this 
particular locality.  

 
A large number of the trees on the neighbouring site have recently 
been removed and planning permission granted for a new house.  The 
owners of the trees are concerned that the construction of this house 
will require inappropriate works to their trees, and have requested the 
trees are protected.  A TPO will mean that the trees can not be worked 
on without the express permission of the planning authority and any 
works that are given consent are carried out in line with sound 
arboricultural practice.  

 
A petition has been received containing one hundred and twelve 
names in support of the making of the Order.  The majority of 
signatures are from people who live in the local area to the trees that 
are being protected.  This petition was received after the expiry of the 
date for representations to the Order.  
 
 
 

Page 299



 

• Tree Preservation Order 217, Former Victoria Road School, 
Torry. 

 
The Tree Preservation Order is being promoted in order to protect the 
amenity of this part of Aberdeen. The Council has been approached by 
the Local Community Council and Heritage Society expressing their 
desire to have these trees formally protected. The previous ward 
Councillor also asked that the trees be protected.   

 
The preparation of a recent planning statement for the site has 
increased the likelihood of a threat to the trees as the site is likely to be 
sold to enable redevelopment.  Although the site is currently owned by 
the Council, once it is sold the Council would not retain control over the 
trees without the making of an Order.     

 
There are not many mature trees in this part of the city and the few that 
there are should be protected for future generations. The making of a 
Tree Preservation Order would ensure the long term retention of the 
trees. The Council would then have the opportunity to have regard for 
the environmental implications of any proposed future development.   

 
Making of a Tree Preservation Order here would ensure that the trees 
could not be removed or worked on without the express permission of 
the Council. 

 
 
 
6. IMPACT 

 
The confirmation of the Orders will ensure the long term protection of 
the trees on each of the sites.  It would ensure the trees could not be 
removed or worked on without the express permission of the Council.   

 
 

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 Tree Preservation Orders 210, 215, 216 and 217 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
 Duncan McGregor 

Acting Senior Arboricultural Planner 
dmcgregor@aberdeencity.gov.uk / (01224) 522440 

 

Page 300


	Agenda
	1.1 Minute of Meeting of the Planning Development Management Committee of 26 September 2013 - for approval
	2.1 Site at Maidencraig, North and South of the A944 - Mixed use development incorporating residential, commercial uses, community facilities, open space, landscaping and associated infrastructure
	Site at Maidencraig, North and South of the A944 - Letters

	2.2 Units 8 & 9, Queens Links Leisure Park, Links Road - Change of use from Class 11 assembly and leisure to Class 1 non-food goods, including coffee shop and linking of both units to form one single unit and associated works
	Units 8 & 9, Queens Links Leisure Park, Links Road - Letters

	2.3 Ardene House, Skene Road, Kingswells - Erection of Class 4 three storey office development (17,129 SQ M), 425 car parking spaces, associated infrastructure, access, landscaping and ancillary works
	Ardene House, Skene Road - Letters

	2.4 Edgehill House, North Deeside Road, Milltimber - Replacement of existing house and construction of five additional dwellings with associated infrastructure, improved access and tree protection works
	Edgehill House, North Deeside Road, Milltimber - Letters

	2.5 50-52 College Bounds, Old Aberdeen - Proposed entrance light
	50-52 College Bounds, Old Aberdeen - Letter

	2.6 Former Bucksburn Petrol Station, Chapel of Stoneywood to Fairley Road - Certificate of appropriate alternative development for petrol filling station with associated Class 1 retail shop; sale of agricultural vehicles and equipment; and garden centre and nursery
	Former Bucksburn Petrol Station, Chapel of Stoneywood to Fairley Road - Letters

	3.1 122 Broomhill Road, Aberdeen - Change of use of vacant car showroom to Class 1 (Shop), shopfront alterations and other external alterations, erection of gate/fence to rear and other associated works, including footpath and parking improvements
	122 Broomhill Road, Aberdeen - Letters

	4.1 Planning Digest
	4.2 Confirmation of Tree Preservation Orders

